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Corporate Portfolio
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HC Group Inc. (formerly, “HC International, Inc.”, the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) endeavour to become
the leading industrial internet groups in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China”). Since its establishment in 1992, the Company has been
engaged in pragmatic and robust development, managed to be listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in 2003 with its stable performance and strength, and transferred its listing
to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014. As of 31
December 2019, the Group had expanded its business to more than 100 cities
nationwide, with branches established in over ten cities and a service team of
around 2,043 individuals.

As one of the earliest B2B e-business platforms in China, the Group has
initiated its layout towards industrial internet on 17 January 2018. The Group
put forward its vision of “Striving to Becoming a Leading Industrial Internet
Group in China” and its mission of “Empowering Traditional Industries with
the Internet and Data”. In 2019, the Group established three business groups
including platform and corporate services, technology-driven new retail as
well as smart industries, which has invested and incubated several significant
vertical “runways” and formulated a comprehensive industrial internet
ecosystem.

The business group of platform and corporate services leverages on the hc360.
com. It is committed to become an operating service platform for SMEs. In
2019, hc360.com actively collaborated with its cooperative partners and built
the ecosystem collectively. Leveraging on the competency of reaching B-end
customers, it constructed the platform and formulated traffic capacity. Taking
into account the customer demand, it introduced an increasing matured
internet tools for the customers, which built the middle platform and closed
the business loop. With the support of extensive enquiries, it constructed
backstage and created values for customers through manual and Al manners.
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Corporate Portfolio

N EIBER

Our business group of technology-driven new retail relies on zol.com.cn,
China's first tech media. In this segment, we connect with technological
retailers (small B) through internet instruments such as SaaS. We assist
technological manufacturers and small B by providing internet technology and
data analysis service, which increase our ability to attract customers and derive
more channels. On the basis of the previous marketing service, we conducted
two strategic upgrade, including the establishment of content matrix for new
media and comprehensive ecosystem for Baidu Mini Program. The future
business group of technology-driven new retail will strive to link up the
technology based consumers, manufacturers and retailers (i.e. small B), and
empower the iteration of industries such as 3C and home appliances. On top
of the broad prospect of the market of 3C and home appliances, our business
group of technology-driven new retail is progressing towards a comprehensive
strategic transformation from a tech media company to a technology-based
industrial internet company in 2020.

The business group of smart industries integrates several well-developed
vertical “runways” of the Group, including “Union Cotton” (an integrated
e-business service platform that covers the entire industrial chain of cotton,
“PanPass Information” (a standard setter in the anti-counterfeit traceability
industry and the largest provider of 10T solutions for digital transformation,
"ibuychem.com” (a long established supply chain service platform intensively
engaged in the plastics industry), “www.efu.com.cn” (a practitioner of
new retail for apparel), and “Zhongmo International” (a materials bank in
the construction formwork industry). The Group adopted the “investment
+ incubation” method to find outstanding industry experts and resulted in
“dimension reduction”. It rapidly composited the vertical “runways” with its
resources accumulated over the past 28 years. Meanwhile, the Group has
provided six kinds of support to the vertical “runways”, namely the supports
of brands, customers, technology, traffic, finances and financing.
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—E-hE —ZT—)\F T—+F —ZT—FRF —ZT—AF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREBTT AREBETRE ARBTT AREBTRT

Revenue HEWA 14,832,832 10,583,111 3,702,466 1,958,283 916,138
EBITDA EBITDA 88,783 641,212 653,075 555,096 121,215
(Loss)/profit attributable to AN FREZEEH A
equity holders of PR (E51R), 5
the Company (376,490) 275,610 267,777 181,784 52,552
(Loss)/earnings per share X (EBE),/ B
(RMB) (AR®BT)
— Basic —®K (0.3360) 0.2462 0.2651 0.1882 0.0696
- Diluted — s (0.3360) 0.2458 0.2559 0.1852 0.0679
Financial position BRI
Net current assets BB EFE 716,935 1,233,990 1,578,519 41,313 141,176
Total assets BEE 8,426,473 8,767,955 7,334,553 6,252,419 5,687,042
Total liabilities BEE 3,696,761 3,546,331 2,877,424 2,984,276 3,088,096
Total equity s 4,729,712 5221,624 4,457,129 3,268,143 2,598,946
REVENUE EBITDA
HEWA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARKFT
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

REVENUE ANALYSIS $4€& U A 2 #7

Platform
Technology- and 020
Driven Smart Corporate Business
New Retail Industries Services Exhibition
Segment Segment Segment Centre

R FaHE
HEE BEEX ERHK 020/%
EEH EEH EEH BEH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

2019 —E-hF 844,493 13,050,827 916,805 20,707 14,832,832
2018 “T-N\F 557,875 9,211,537 727,563 86,136 10,583,111
Variance be 51.4% 41.7% 26.0% (76.0)% 40.2%

2019 2018
14,832,832 10,583,111
Technology-Driven New Retail @ Platform and Corporate Services
REHZEE e HEP RS
@ Smart Industries @ 020 business exhibition centre
BEEX O20HEREF L
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Management’s Statement
BEEHRE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB14,832.8 million (2018: RMB10,583.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 40.2% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2018. The increase of revenue was mainly derived from
the segment of smart industries through the B2B trading platforms of the
Company.

For the Group's financial performance, a total revenue of approximately
RMB844,493,000 was achieved from the segment of technology-driven
new retail in 2019, and represented an increase of approximately 51.4%
from approximately RMB557,875,000 in 2018. Revenue from the segment
of smart industries increased from approximately RMB9,211,537,000 in
2018 to approximately RMB13,050,827,000 in 2019 which represented an
increase of approximately 41.7%. Revenue derived from the segment of
platform and corporate services was approximately RMB916,805,000 in 2019,
which represented an increase of approximately 26.0% from approximately
RMB727,563,000 in 2018. Revenue from 020 business exhibition centre
was approximately RMB20,707,000 in 2019, which represented a decrease
of approximately 76.0% from RMBM&86,136,000 in 2018 due to a decline in
revenue from sale of properties.

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB376.5 million for the Year, while a profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately RMB275.6 million was recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The loss was mainly attributable to, among
other things: (i) amid the overall macroeconomic situation, some customers
of the Group were prudent in market commitment, resulting in a decrease in
the Group's revenue with high gross profit compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit decreased from RMB1,267.0 million in 2018
to RMB929.0 million in 2019, indicating a decrease of approximately 26.7%;
(i) provision for goodwill and intangible assets impairment amounting to
RMB296.6 million made by the Group as the performance of some of its
business units could not attain the expected results (including but not limited
to the failure of b REZ T AXILEEERRAF] (Beijing Huijiayuantian
Cultural Media Company Limited*)) to achieve the performance target for the
year 2019; and (iii) the Group further contributing its resources to continue
promoting the strategic iteration of industrial internet and the construction of
transaction scenarios.
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Management’s Statement
EEE®RE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the Group continued to work for its vision of becoming a leading
group for “Industrial Internet” in China by leveraging internet thinking,
instruments and methods to ramp up industrial efficiency, empower supply
chains and industrial chains, and establish a win-win ecosystem to serve
customers.

By focusing on and integrating advantageous resources, starting from 2018,
the Group’s business has been divided into three segments, namely the
business groups of platform and corporate services, technology-driven new
retail and smart industries.

In 2019, approximately 5.7% of the Group’s revenue came from the business
group of technology-driven new retail, approximately 88.0% of the Group'’s
revenue came from the business group of smart industries, approximately
6.2% of the Group's revenue came from the business group of platform and
corporate services and approximately 0.1% of the Group’s revenue came
from the 020 business exhibition centre.
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Management’s Statement
EEEB®RE

Business group of platform and corporate services

The business group of platform and corporate services is committed to
developing industrial internet business platform instruments that can
help small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) to improve industrial
efficiency and create value for customers. This business group also works
to build industrial data chains and business scenarios to empower SMEs by
providing them with more value-added services such as financial services,
data marketing and SaaS, which facilitates the transformation and upgrade of
SMEs, and serve the economic development of the PRC.

Being the core operation entity of the business group of platform and
corporate services, hc360.com has sets its strategy to become the “operating
service platform of SMEs”. Its core value is to “manage and operate the
infrastructures of stores” for enterprise customers.

In 2019, products of hc360.com centered on continuous in-depth upgrade of
internet information services, including upgrading and improving traditional
products (such as Mai Mai Tong (BE& &) and Hu Tong Bao (B BE)) and
improving customer experience. hc360.com also focused on developing
technological innovative products (such as Huigitong (Z138) and Huijingcai
(B¥5%)). With technology enhancement, efficient operation and artificial
intelligence, it is able to accelerate product launch, procure more customers
and facilitate transactions, thereby achieving the purpose of maximising
marketing effectiveness and effectively reducing the online store operating
costs of customers.

In March 2019, hc360.com established further strategic cooperation with
b2b.baidu.com and jointly launched the product of “Huijingcai” (Z55%).
In May 2019, hc360.com attended the Global Ecosystem Summit organised
by Tencent, and greatly promoted the launch of “Huigitong” (E{>i&)
together with Tencent. In February 2020, taking into consideration of the
actual difficulties of SMEs affected by the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
(COVID-19), hc360.com responded promptly. Nine major measures were
introduced to alleviate operational difficulties in the industry, and be well-
prepared for the industrial recovery. hc360.com also launched a new, one-
stop multi-contact platform, namely “Huishengyi” (4 &) which assisted
consumers to seize the business opportunities. Buyer clue and manual
matching services are provided to continuously meet the users’ needs, so as to
improve connection between enterprises and customers as well as reduce the
manual communication cost of the enterprise.
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Management’s Statement
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Business group for technology-driven new retail

In late 2018, with zol.com.cn (“ZOL") as the principal entity, the Group
restructured its business group of technology-driven new retail by combining
ZOL with 4t 7 gh 75 38 B 1 & A R 2 & (Beijing Rongshang Tonglian
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Rongshang Tonglian”) and ZEF2E g (k1L ) 4848
R ABR AR (Huicong Yunshang (Foshan) Internet Technology Co., Ltd.*)
("jdhui.com”).

The strategic objectives of the business group of technology-driven new retail
are to connect retailers (small b) through guiding C-end consumers, SaaS
tools, customisation and supply chain services as well as to enhance the ability
to attract customers, profitability and operational efficiency. Meanwhile, with
the data collected through small b along with data analysis, we are able to
provide comprehensive “online + offline” marketing solutions to enterprise
customers (big B) and provide solutions to core requirements of various
parties along the 3C and home appliances industrial chain, which would form
a B2b2C business model.

At the beginning of 2019, to ensure the Company would achieve its strategic
objectives, the business group of technology-driven new retail conducted
a remarkable adjustment and enhancement on the corporate organisation

structure and established three segments, namely “wise marketing”, “smart
retail” and “intelligent platform”.

The wise marketing segment strives to provide professional technology
information for the entire network, with its impact extending to an average
of over 70 million purchasers of technology products each month through
cooperative partners such as search engines, social networks and integrated
reading platforms. In the meantime, the business model will provide
professional, innovative and comprehensive marketing solutions for thousands
of technology companies through continuous service iteration.

The smart retail segment is dedicated to serve thousands of SMEs and
distributors, and it capitalises SaaS to empower the stores in the industries
of smart phone and home appliances. The air purification business segment
of which is responsible for the brand building, product sales and channel
development for the air purification product of HC & RHT in China.

The intelligent platform segment is responsible for the technical needs and
technological innovation of all businesses to ensure the vigorous development
of each business and carry out the functions of innovation and incubation of
new products.
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Management’s Statement
EEEB®RE

Over the last year, new products from dozens of brands have leveraged
on ZOL new media matrix to showcase and create innovative content in
different platforms. They took advantages of profession media influence
to get attention from large number of online users. In addition, with the
strategic cooperation with Baidu, its intelligent mini programs could improve
users’ accessibility and their closed-loop service experiences. ZOL's operating
capabilities and resources reserve in the technology industry have been further
upgraded to provide enterprise customers with marketing services which
integrated branding and effectiveness, and empower channels by generating
informative and considerable amounts of transactions.

In April 2019, ZOL cloud store cooperated with Transpeed, Annto and Log-
research and successfully organised an exchange session for “new logistic”
of home appliances industry in Foshan, and held a home appliance storage
service and product launch event.

In May 2019, ZOL cloud store held the first nationwide promotion campaign
and has achieved satisfactory results. The number of visitors to the
membership stores recorded dramatic growth with an unexpected drastic
increase in the in-store traffic.

In June 2019, the cooperation between ZOL and Baidu Smart Mini Program
was officially kicked off. As at the date of this report, over 1,000 brick-and-
mortar retailers have been introduced into the ecosystem of Baidu Smart Mini
Program. For zol.com.cn, the cooperation with Baidu Smart Mini Program
system is an alliance with a strong power like Baidu Internet Ecosystem in
respect of content service, marketing service and technical service capacities.

In October 2019, ZOL participated in the Guangdong Expo for Household
Electrical Appliances 2019. The on-site demonstration of the SaaS solutions
and membership transaction information service platform by the smart retail
segment has received recognition from a variety of distributors.

Throughout 2019, the daily independent visitors of ZOL amounted to 24.2
million with the peak daily online e-commerce traffic of 610,000 visitors. The
external e-commerce platform reached an average of 4.5 million users per
day, covering 800 product lines and over 650 highlighted original articles. As
at the end of 2019, the business group of technology-driven new retail has
connected with over 8,000 paid small b retailers through the Saa$ tools.
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Business group of smart industries

The business group of smart industries, which mainly comprises of five key
components: four vertical service platforms for industrial internet (“Union
Cotton”, “ibuychem.com”, “Zhongmo International” and “nahuomall.com”)
and PanPass, an loT solutions provider for digital transformation. “Focus” and
“Significant Verticality” are the Group’s important strategies.

Positioned as an excellent spot transaction platform for cotton, Union Cotton
provides integrated B2B e-business service for spot cotton through online
platforms, including self-operated online shopping stores, supply-chain
financial service and warehouse receipt pledge. “Union Cotton”, one of
the earliest B2B e-business pioneers in the cotton industry, has accumulated
extensive industrial experience and significant market resources in the cotton
industry, with an annual transaction size exceeding RMBS5 billion.

In May 2019, Union Cotton was awarded the title of “China’s Top 100
Commodities E-Commerce Enterprises 2019"” (20194 B A 5279 1 8 7%
B8 EE). In June 2019, Union Cotton was awarded the title of Shanghai
E-Commerce “Double Push” Engineering Service Platform ( E/&™ & F 7
[ | TR FA). In December 2019, Union Cotton was listed among
“2019 Top 100 Companies in China’s Industrial Internet” (20197 B&E %
B EA8H 9815), and was included in the “List of Shanghai Private Enterprise
Headquarters 2019” ({20194 Z /BT RE M ¥ EEZ 8 )) issued by
Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce.

Positioned to provide centralised purchasing and integrated e-business service
for chemicals and plastics, ibuychem.com was incubated by the Group as
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary in March 2015, and originated from the
chemical e-business platform established by the Group over 20 years ago. It
has developed into a leading B2B platform in the domestic chemical industry.
Its services cover nearly one million enterprises and eight million online
members in the chemical rubber and plastics industry chain in China. The
platform focuses on the spot trading of chemical rubber and plastic products.
In 2019, the ibuychem.com platform had about 6,500 transaction customers,
including well-known enterprises from home and abroad such as PetroChina,
Sinopec, DuPont, Akzo Nobel and 3trees, with an annual transaction size
of approximately RMB5 billion. Based on the transaction data of buyers and
vendors, ibuychem.com also actively carried out supply chain financing and
commercial factoring services.
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Positioned to develop a national material bank for the construction formwork
industry, Wunan Zhongmo Construction Science and Technology Co., Ltd.*
R R EERIEER AR (“Zhongmo International”) provides smart
attached lifting scaffolding, aluminum alloy formwork system, glass fiber
formwork system, building smart device, etc. Relying on the internet SaaS
system, loT technology and industrial parks, Zhongmo International provides
design, installation, maintenance, refurbishment, supply chain finance, sub-
leasing and leasing business that caters to materials. As at the end of 2019,
Zhongmo International managed assets worth more than RMB600 million,
with its business covering to 17 provinces and cities nationwide, serving over
1,000 buildings under construction.

On 24 December 2019, Liling Shi Lujiang Zhongweichuang Xin Chuangye
Investment Fund Partnership Company (Limited Partnership)* (E&FE %L
FIMBIFEI R ER AR EE (BRER)) ("Liling Partnership”) made
a total capital contribution in the amount of RMB40 million to Zhongmo
International, among which, RMB20 million will be directly invested as
capital increase, and RMB20 million will be used as convertible bonds. Upon
completion of the capital increase, the Group’s equity interest in Zhongmo
International will be approximately 35.38% (assuming that Liling Partnership
converts all convertible bonds into shares). Besides, Zhongmo International
will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and will be accounted for and
consolidated in the Group’s financial results as an associate using equity
method.

“nahuomall.com” is positioned as the preferred purchase platform for home
appliances stores in towns and villages across the country. Through platform
operation and layered service system, it adopts construction or alliance, or
direct operation or franchise to join retailers (small b) to empower the supply
chain, finance, logistics, community marketing, fan operation, etc., and
help them select, stocking and selling, thereby assisting small b to transfer
gradually into a social-community based retail store which serves C-end
consumers.

As an integrated service platform for home appliance stores in towns
and villages nationwide, nahuomall.com maintains strategic cooperative
relationship with many renowned brands. It serves 580,000 home appliance
distributors and retailers across the country and helps them to get rid of the
supply chain constraints of provinces, cities, counties and regions. Since its
establishment in 2016, nahuomall.com has conducted transactions with tens
of thousands of distributors with a high purchase rate from repeat customers.
In 2019, products of renowned brands such as Gree, Media, Haier, TCL,
Skyworth and Changhong were included in the nahuomall.com APP. Over
the past year, nahuomall.com has 100,000 registered members, more than
20,000 active members and over 500 service outlets.
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Beijing PanPass Information Technology Co., Ltd* (“PanPass”) (NEEQ Stock
Code: 430073) relies on its core platform Z-SCM, a proprietary supply chain
management system, and is based on carriers such as loT, big data, artificial
intelligence (Al) and cloud computing, digital code, QR code, RFID and other
markers, providing lifetime traceability and management service for brand
clients.

PanPass’s anti-counterfeiting traceability solutions has served more than
40,000 enterprises, which covers the construction projects of the top 500
enterprises in the world, national industrial leading enterprises and the
national key platforms such as MOFCOM, MOA, MIIT. PanPass owns over 20
national invention patents, including anti-counterfeiting patent for codes and
invention patent for product logistics management system.

In 2019, PanPass has continued further the cooperation with various
customers with long business history such as PetroChina, Junlebao, Lulu (F&
§%), Tong Ren Tang and Hongyuan Waterproof. Taking advantages of “One
Product, One Code”, a new type of retailing, PanPass rendered service to the
market by building a big data bank among enterprises, products, distributors
and consumers which became a sales channel for Chinese liquors, where
serviced customers included Maotai, Langjiu, Luzhoulaojiao, Banchengjiu (1x
UOE), Sitejiu (TU4HE), Shangzhuanglaojiu (LL#E#E) and Hankejiuye (B &)H
*).

In June 2019, PanPass established the southwest regional operation,
continuing its efforts to strengthen the local service and sales capacity.
In August 2019, PanPass entered into an integrated marketing project of
Jiangxiang Wine (#&)H) with Maotao Jiangxiang Wine Company (3 &%
FB/A7]). In September 2019, PanPass Yimatong (—##8) SaaS version
V1.0 platform was officially launched. In November 2019, PanPass assisted
Shandong Taibao (IL158Z=E) to establish an institute for working on the areas
of anti-counterfeiting traceability IoT, which aims to construct product anti-
counterfeiting traceability for enterprises, food safety, smart agriculture and
government key product traceability system platform, and to have an in-depth
cooperation and practice in anti-counterfeiting and anti-channeling, big data
applications and other fields.

In addition, PanPass was awarded the certificate of “Quality Credit 3A
Grade Enterprise ({t%E £/F3A)" and named the “Outstanding Chinese
Enterprise in Anti-counterfeiting (FF BB A71TEE B DR, respectively,
by China Trade Association for Anti-counterfeiting. PanPass has obtained
seven utility model patent certificates and nine certificates of computer
software copyright. PanPass has put more efforts in R&D and product
investment, and is committed to the R&D and innovation of products in areas
of data identity management, supply chain management and marketing
management. It has been improving the performance of the software and
hardware based on different tested products and parameter requirements to
enhance customers’ satisfaction and create greater value for them.

ERKEELERMROERIR(IKERD D (FH=
IRARSEAAS : 430073) A B EABERMLEREERE
RZ-SCMEZLFEER » EloT » KEUHE - ATEE
(Al) ~ BEER - BEFHE - —455  RFIDSHIZH
MAHE  ARBEFPREERSEGAREYRE
B ARTS -

IERGB TR PIRBAT REERBIIBERE
X OBREMRS008EE  BRTREBRLEMER
BEE  REMS  TEIASEFXEHTFaNERA
B - HA0BEEREAEN - B - EBEHEE
MMERDREERRREAENSE -

RIZB—NF  KERODFERRZEZEPNTA
o BEE - BE RCE RRIIKEETRAS
1 KEROAMB—Y—BHTEBRELE  E
i AR BBEZRNAREBERB TS - KA
REN—BHESR  RBEFPeEFG  Bh - &
MZE - IRWOE - MRS - LR - BERERER
Bo

RZZ—NFRA - KEROAIAEEARE - At
RIS AEHE B 35 EMNE - R=ZZ—NFNA » JKiz
ROBNF EESBEARNERBMGEEHER - N
T—NFNA - KERHD—EESaaShikV1.0F A ER
Bt RZE—NFE+— A KEROBFLRFE
BRSZBI BRI BT ElT - B RGN EERM B
B RRTE  HERE  BNEZELHRESR
FRER - Pl - ABBERASESETRES
TEERER -

BEAN - KIER M DS T B RITERSEED
[EEESEMBAIEFEARI TR RITEES
EWE] - WES7TAREMHLNENES - 9BFHHE
BB E RS < JMERDETE RER LHEN
REANE » BARERBFENERE - HEEE
12 2EERFAMNTERELR - RETFRAEE
i~ TRZEEN - TEEC SRR © 1271
EEmEBE  REPRIEEXER -

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif




i ¢ W NN

Management’s Statement
EEEB®RE

Prospects

With the extension of trade friction between China and the United States and
the intensified market competition, China, prompted by such reverse, has
to accelerate its pace of industrial upgrading. Domestic enterprises are keen
to apply new technologies, such as the internet and big data, to accelerate
their transformation and upgrade, reduce costs and enhance efficiency. This
has ushered in a new period of development opportunities for the sector of
industrial internet in China. It has been widely accepted in the industry that
“China ushers in the golden age of the industrial internet”.

Leveraging on the 28 years of experience in serving numerous industries, the
Group has developed an in-depth knowledge into the industry as well as the
ability to reach customers. On this basis, the Group put forward its vision of
“committed to becoming China’s leading industrial Internet group” in January
2018. In March 2020, the Group focused on the two — wheel drive model
with “hc360.com + zol.com.cn” as its principal business.

In 2020, hc360.com (ZFE4E) will, by means of a model of “manpower +
intelligence”, utilise its huge inquiries and clues to form in-depth matching
and pairing-up of sellers and buyers which serves SMEs to seek for business
opportunities. At the same time, hc360.com will promote a greater
cooperation with leading companies to help customers in the most simplified
way that “open multiple stores just with one click” to form multiple business
contacts. In the future, hc360.com will adopt “being the service platform for
SMEs business” as its core strategy, and place “being the infrastructure to
manage and operate multi-stores” for corporate customers as its core value.

Zol.com.cn (FRRARTELR) will focus on connecting consumers, technology
manufacturers and technology retailers. By providing consumers with more
authoritative product recommendations across the entire network, providing
retailers with better quality supply chains and deeper internet technology and
big data analysis services, the website can assist technology manufacturers
and retailers to quickly improve their ability to secure the accurate users
and empower the entire science and technology industry to realise a
comprehensive strategic transformation from a technology media company to
an internet company in technology industry, and to promote the technology
industry to continue moving forward.

Over the past two years, the Group has clearly and explicitly proposed the
“investment + incubation” model to support the independent development
of the vertical runways in the path decomposition of the vision. In 2020,
the Group will continue to support the development of vertical runways,
understand the pain points of the industry, and cooperate with teams with
strong industry backgrounds, output the Group's Internet capabilities and
adopt a “helpful but not hindering” approach to incubate vertical industries,
and ultimately share our benefit with our Shareholders.
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In addition, in response to the call of the central “Promoting the Nation
with Science and Technology”, some cities’ economic development zones
have accelerated the implementation of science and technology innovation
strategies, adjusted and optimised industrial structures, and accelerated the
development of new industries and new formats. Against this background,
on 27 June 2019, the Group entered into cooperation agreements with
Huizhou Daya Bay Economic and Technological Development Zone
Management Committee, Logan Group (88 %% E) and Huizhou Dejie
Transport Equipment Co., Ltd. (BNE#EEH:REHRAF), in relation to
the intention to jointly construct and operate Smart Bay — a new generation
of information technology industry port with a total gross floor area of
approximately 1.8 million square metres, to jointly work on the Daya Bay
Development Zone Industrial Development Fund project and to establish the
Company’s headquarters in the zone. Bay economy stands as a key driving
force for the economic development of China and a leader in pioneering
technological transformations. Committed to becoming a leading domestic
industrial internet group, the Group is able to firmly grasp opportunities and
actively respond to challenges. By concentrating on the vertical tracks of
industrial internet and stressing on ecosystem construction, the Group will
focus on combining the positioning of the industrial internet strategy with
the advantages of the interconnection and exchanges within the Guangdong
-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, to help the Group to achieve high-
quality and high-efficiency development and enables the Group to make solid
steps to become a leading industrial internet group.

At last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the management and every member of the Group for their on-going
dedication and hard work in the past year.

Liu Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 April 2020
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DIRECTORS
As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors
LIU Jun

Aged 42, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Company, he is also
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive

Director with effect from 12 September 2016.

Mr. Liu had been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Group
from October 2017 to January 2019 and is the chairman of the Board who
has been so appointed since March 2018. From 2004 to 2011, Mr. Liu was
the chief executive officer of FESEEHR A A (Yigao Group Company
Limited*), leading the company to enter into the information technology
businesses. Mr. Liu has also been a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu was awarded a master’s degree in Chemical Engineering
from Zhejiang University in March 2004 and a Bachelor of Engineering in
Chemical Engineering and Bio-engineering from Zhejiang University as well in

June 2000.

ZHANG Yonghong

Aged 52, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director with effect from

4 January 2019.

Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager at the business department
of Lenovo Group Limited (B¢ 85 @EBR A 7)) (Stock code: 992), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from April 1993 to June
1996. From October 1998 to November 2009, he was the vice president of
China Hewlett-Packard Co., Ltd.* (A B = AR 2 ]). From November 2009
to October 2015, Mr. Zhang worked as the general manager of the PRC

operations department of Acer Group* (ZRE £ ).

From December 2015 to August 2018, Mr. Zhang was the deputy president of
operations and executive deputy president of Tsinghua Unigroup Limited* (52
HEBAR/AR]). Mr. Zhang served as a director of Unisplendour Corporation
Limited* (53¢ AR A 7)) (Stock code: 000938), a company listed on the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from April 2016 to June 2017.

From November 2017 to August 2018, Mr. Zhang was also the director and
a chairman of the board of directors of 500.com Limited (5005 Z48),
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: WBAI).
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Mr. Zhang has been the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of Beijing Panpass Information Technology Co., Ltd* (Jt RIK[EEE
AR BBR /A 7)), a subsidiary of the Company, of the shares of which are
quoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New
Third Board*), stock code: 430073), since September and December 2018,
respectively.

Mr. Zhang graduated and obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Department
of Precision Instrument of Tsinghua University in July 1990, and obtained a
master’s degree of science in engineering from the University of Science and
Technology of China in 1993.

LIU Xiaodong
Aged 47, is an executive Director and the president of the Company. Mr. Liu
was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 June 2018.

Mr. Liu is also the chairman of zol.com.cn, a subsidiary of the Group. In July
2015, the Group has completed the full acquisition of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu
joined zol.com.cn in 2000 and served as its general manager in 2004. Mr. Liu
also served as the vice president of CNET (China) in 2008. He served as a vice
president of CBSI (China), a general manager of technology cluster and the
consumer cluster of CBSI (China) from 2008 to 2014. Since 2015, he served as
a chief executive officer of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience
in media operation and management in the TMT field. Mr. Liu graduated and
obtained a bachelor’s degree from International Modern Design Art College
Of Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1997, and obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from China Europe International Business
School in 2011.

Non-Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 64, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive
Director on 21 March 2000, and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 18 October 2017.

Mr. Guo found the Group in October 1992. From 1990 to 1992, Mr. Guo
worked as a manager in a State-owned business information company in
Beijing, the PRC. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo served as a director of the
Liaison Office and General Office of the Economic System Reform Institute
under the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, and as the deputy
director of the Western China Development Research Centre. Prior to working
at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo served from
1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial
economics from Renmin University of China, the PRC in 1982.
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LI Jianguang

Aged 54, is a non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit committee”). Mr. Li was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2006.

Mr. Li is currently a partner of IDG Capital. Before joining IDG Capital in
1999, Mr. Li worked at Crosby Asset Management Limited as an investment
manager. Mr. Li graduated from Peking University in 1987 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and attained a master’s degree from Guelph University
in Canada in 1994.

Mr. Li is also a director of Tarena International, Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ (stock code: TEDU) since January 2014; a non-executive director
of China Binary New Fintech Group, a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8255), since April 2015; a director of =#MEI& i1
AIR/A7] (Sanxiang Impression Company Limited*), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000863) since August 2012; a director
of Olympique Lyonnais Groupe SA, a company listed in Paris Stock Exchange
(stock code: OLG.PA) since December 2016; and the chairman and manager
of I B ZNEEEAX{H BFR A F], a company quoted on the National Equities
Exchange And Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code: 831027) since January 2017.

SUN Yang

Aged 49, is a non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Sun was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect
from 27 May 2019.

Mr. Sun is currently the vice president of Digital China Holdings Limited (1%
MEISIEIE AR 2 7)) (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 00861.HK) (“Digital China Holdings”), the
president of Smart Financial Services Group* (B E£4 giiRT5EE), a business
group of Digital China Holdings, and the general manager of Digital China
Software Limited (%) EE5 N 1H B IR A 7).

Mr. Sun graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in applied
computing from Harbin University of Science and Technology (¥ ER/EIE T
KE) in July 1995 and with a master’s degree in engineering from Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (3t R E % A £2) in January 2010.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. He is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, respectively, and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2003.

Mr. Zhang is a certified public accountant in the PRC and is currently the
chairman and founding partner of Shine Wing Certified Public Accountants.
He graduated from Renmin University of China in 1982 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics majoring in industry economics. He has many years of
experience in the fields of economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang
is currently a vice-president of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of Internal Control Standard Committee of the
Ministry of Finance, and the chief supervisor of Beijing Association of Forensic
Science. Mr. Zhang is also an independent director of =X =#94%@ = 1D
BBR/AA] (Erliusan Internet Communication Company Limited*), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive
director of China Coal Energy Company Limited (/B /R (i gE)BRZ 1D B BR A 7)),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1898)
and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601898).

ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 November 2011.

Mr. Zhang is currently the chief investment officer of China Resources Capital
Management Ltd. He was the founder and managing director of Taconic
Capital Ltd. from September 2003 to September 2005. He acted as the vice-
chairman and general manager of Unicredit China Capital Limited from
September 2005 to June 2007. He served as the managing director of J.P.
Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted as
the chairman of J.P. Morgan (China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd. since
its foundation in 2010 to October 2011. He served as the managing director
of Taconic Capital Group from November 2011 to March 2012, and as the
chief operating officer of China Merchants Capital Management Limited from
April 2012 to December 2014. He is the managing director of Mount Flag
Capital Ltd. from January 2015 to September 2018 and was also the chief
executive officer of Mount Flag LLC from August 2015 to September 2018.
Mr. Zhang was a non-executive director to China ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd (stock
code: 1900) from May 2014 to July 2019, whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University (&%= K22) at the Faculty of
Precision Instruments & Mechanology in July 1986. He obtained a Master
of Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (FREI#t&FI&
F) and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The University of
Chicago. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial and business
management.

Ql Yan

Aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Qi was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 November 2017.

Ms. Qi is currently the senior vice president of Xiaomi Corporation, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1810). From
September 2004 to September 2011, she served in B B& SR ER A A
(Aigo Digital Technology Co., Ltd*) as a vice president, and was subsequently
promoted and served as the vice chairman and the chief executive officer
from September 2011 to March 2012. She also served in EEEE TRIEA
fR A A] (Aigo Electronics Technology Co. Ltd*) as the chief executive officer
from March 2012 to December 2012. She has over 20 years’ experience in
the area of business management. Ms. Qi was awarded the certificate of
Postgraduate Master’s degree in applied sociology from the Graduate School
of AE & RIEE7T (Chinese Academy of Social Sciences) in June 1998. Ms. Qi
joined the China National Democratic Construction Association (“CNDCA") in
1987 and served the Central Committee of CNDCA and the Beijing Municipal
Committee of CNDCA. Ms Qi is currently a representative of the 16th National
People’s Congress of Haidian District, Beijing City.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the senior management of the Company comprised
the following members:

LEE Wee Ong

Also known as Alex Lee, aged 50, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Lee was first appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 September 2011 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 1 July 2012 and resigned on 4 January 2019.

Mr. Lee graduated from the Northern University of Malaysia with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting in 1993. Mr. Lee spent 6 years with Colonial First State
Investments Group and Hambros Australia as a fund manager and was
seconded to CMG CH China Funds Management. Mr. Lee had been the chief
financial officer of the Company, and subsequently the chief strategy officer
of the Company from 2000 to 2006.

WU Lei

Aged 40, is the executive vice president of the Group, responsible for the
management of business group of smart industries of the Group. Mr. Wu
joined the Group in 2015 and served as the managing director of a finance
and leasing company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wu was the sales director of the Eastern China
region in Start Group (E#% &) and subsequently the assistant president
of Zhejiang Fuyue Holding Group Co., Ltd. (¥ &= #iiZA% &= E). Mr. Wu has
over 10 years' experience in the operation and management in the industry.
Mr. Wu graduated from Zhejiang University (#17ZA£2%) in 2002 and obtained
a bachelor’s degree of electronic engineering.

Lee Wee Ong
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Song Bingchen

Aged 39, is the executive vice president of the Group. Mr. Song joined the
Group in 2011 and served as the general manager of |BfEE FRi5E %
& (Shunde E-business Industrial Park*). Before joining the Group, Mr. Song
served as the deputy president of Ego Group (FE= &), and the general
manager of FEs X LEE AR AR (Ego Cultural Communication Company
Limited*). Mr. Song spent one year as a teacher under the Chinese Youth
Volunteer Poverty Alleviation Relay Plan (B S FEFEEKRERE H:HE) in
Liangshan, Sichuan from 2002 to 2003.

Mr. Song currently also serves as the deputy president of ER&EF XK
2 (Guangdong Young Entrepreneurs’ Association*), a committee member of
Guangdong Youth Federation (B3R & & FHA®), the deputy president of
Guangdong Electrical Appliances Chamber of Commerce (BRKX B &), and
the deputy president of 3T I RKZHINR A E (Hangzhou Alumni Association
of Zhejiang University*). Mr. Song has over 15 years of experience in industry
operation and management.

Mr. Song graduated from Zhejiang University and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in management in 2002, and obtained a master’s degree in
management from Zhejiang University in 2005.

LU Qingguo

Aged 46, is the secretary of the Board and the general counsel of the Group.
Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 1998 and has served as the Company’s
lawyer, the head of legal department and chief legal officer, and was
appointed as the secretary of the Board in 2011. Mr. Lu is mainly responsible
for the legal affairs and listing affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lu has taught in Guizhou Minzu University for two years. Mr. Lu
graduated from Southwest University of Political Science & Law and obtained
a bachelor’s degree of Laws, LL.B. Mr. Lu also passed the national lawyer
qualification examination and obtained the certificate of lawyer qualification
in 1997. Mr. Lu has over 20 years of experience in corporate legal affairs.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalent decreased by approximately
RMB139,779,000 from approximately RMB471,672,000 as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB331,893,000 as at 31 December 2019,
approximately 93.6% of which is denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total borrowings of
RMB2,304,401,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB2,127,338,000), of which
RMB1,591,089,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB1,228,244,000) were
bank borrowings which bear an average interest rate of 6.69% per annum
(as at 31 December 2018: 6.17% per annum) and mature ranging from 2020
to 2022, and RMB713,312,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB899,094,000)
were other borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no
undrawn banking facilities (31 December 2018: Nil). Other borrowings
of RMB27,816,000 were provided by a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary in which 25% of its equity interest is effectively held by Mr. Liu Jun,
an executive Director of the Company. The borrowings are unsecured, mature
ranging from 2020 to 2022 and bear average interest rate of 6.34% per
annum (as at 31 December 2018: 6.34% per annum). The remaining other
borrowings are provided by independent third parties and bear interest rate
ranging from Nil to 14.3% per annum (as at 31 December 2018: 4.5% to
13.7% per annum). The Group's borrowings were mainly made in RMB. As at
31 December 2019, the Group was in net debt position, whereas the Group's
gearing ratio is 28%, which is calculated as net debt, including lease liabilities,
divided by total capital.

The capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
decreased by approximately RMB314.5 million from approximately
RMB4,337.7 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB4,023.2
million as at 31 December 2019.

During the Year, the Group had conservative treasury policies in terms of cash
and financial management. The Group does not use any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A Business Review and a Financial Review of the Group are set out on page 8
to 15 of this report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND COMPLETED REVERIFIEHERTYE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the Group's investment properties and completed properties held R-Z—AFE+-A=+—BAREB ZIREYENGF
for sale as at 31 December 2019 are set out below: TEHE R TYEFBIHINWT ¢

Investment properties REYE

Approximate
gross floor area

(sq.m.)
Location Group's interest BAEELMBE Existing use Lease term
3k REBE LR (EFK) BRERAE HEH

Block 1-3 and 7, No. 530 Qili Qunan 100% 16,743  Commercial use 2011-2051
Village, Shahe Town,
Changping District, Beijing

bR e FEiE+ B REE 53058 HEAR —E——F%
1-3 71 —ZTH—F
Room 1004, The West Lake Plaza of 100% 1,263  Commercial use 2014-2044

International Science & Technology,
No. 391 Wen'er Street, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

TN —#E3915% [SESiES —T-NER
(FHEIR R AE ) 1004 —ZmE

Room 501, The Great Wall Building, 100% 1,225  Commercial use 2004-2054
No. 3000 Zhongshan North Road,
Shanghai

g L3E#&3000%% [SE;ikzs —TENER
(REAE)501% —TAMF

East of State Road 8, Beijiao Town, 37% 78,680  Commercial and residential 2013-2053
Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong purpose
Province

EERE#HLmIEEEIEE HEREERE —T-=FF
B35 R 1855 ZER=F

Completed properties held for sale HEHER T Y%

Approximate
gross floor area

(sg.m.)
Location Group's interest BAEEMmMAE Existing use Lease term
bk AEEFGRER (BFFHK) BEAR HEH

East of State Road 8, Beijiao 37% 7,887  Commercial and residential purpose  2013-2053
Town, Shunde District, Foshan,
Guangdong Province

EREAHLUmIERERILEHE EmEXEERR —E-=FE
B 78 B {855 —ER=F
Please also refer to notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements. BELBA M EHRENE16 %17 ©
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no significant investment, or
any material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies
or joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2019. Save as disclosed
in this report, there was no plan authorised by the Board for any material
investments or additions of capital assets as at the date of this report.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

In light of the relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting the participation
and operation of internet content services by foreign investors, the Group has
engaged Beijing Huicong Construction Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t =
BHaEREBFEAAR2AA) ("HC Construction” or “Huicong Construction”)
to operate its online platform, and publish its business information on the
internet pursuant to certain contractual arrangements (the “HC Contractual
Arrangements”). The Group relies on the HC Contractual Arrangements in
respect of its online services.

Please also refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003,
the announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2014 in relation to
the transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Transfer of Listing Announcement”), and the 2017 annual report of the
Company for further details of the HC Contractual Arrangements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, save as disclosed in this report, there
was no material change in the HC Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the HC
Contractual Arrangements had been unwound as none of the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

To further strengthen the Group's protection under the HC Contractual
Arrangements and its management and control over Huicong Construction,
the Group amended certain terms of the then existing agreements and
entered into a new exclusive option agreement, an equity pledge agreement
and powers of attorney with Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders on 15 September 2014. As a result of the HC Contractual
Arrangements, Huicong Construction is considered to be a subsidiary of the
Group and the financial statements of Huicong Construction are included in
the Group's consolidated financial statements from 15 September 2014.

As one of the registered shareholders of Huicong Construction has been
changed, on 14 February 2019, the Group entered into a new exclusive
option agreement, an equity pledge agreement and powers of attorney with
Huicong Construction and/or the existing registered shareholders of Huicong
Construction. Save as the change of the registered shareholder of Huicong
Construction, the terms of the above agreements remain unchanged.
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As at the date of this report, agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements include (i) the domain names and trademarks licence
agreement, (i) the technology services agreement, (iii) the online information
distribution agreement, (iv) the online advertisement publication agreement, (v)
the exclusive option agreement, (vi) the equity pledge agreement and (vii) the
powers of attorney.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction (which holds, among other things, the Telecommunications
and Information Services Business Operation Licence (F 381z B R E
TE4RAFFAFE) (“ICP Licence”), bearing a term through 9 March 2022) in
respect of its online services. For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue
generated from related online services of the Group is RMB218,881,000 (2018:
RMB315,565,000), represents approximately 1.5% (2018: approximately 3%)
of the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Huicong Construction

Huicong Construction is a limited liability company established in the PRC. As
at the date of this report, the registered capital of Huicong Construction is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng (a non-executive Director) and 50%
by Mr. Liu Jun (an executive Director). Mr. Liu Jun currently is the sole director
and the legal representative of Huicong Construction, and he is responsible
for making financial and management decisions of Huicong Construction, and
overseeing their implementation, so as to ensure that Huicong Construction
operates in accordance with the terms of the HC Contractual Arrangements.
As each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun holds 50% equity interests of
Huicong Construction and they are the controllers of Huicong Construction,
Huicong Construction is thus a connected person of the Company.

Set out below is the key financial information of Huicong Construction during
the year ended 31 December 2019:

HEWRA
mAE

Revenue
Total assets

RAHERH - BIEEOLH THRRBRE RS
MR - (DB RSB - (I LER
BB - (VELESETIERE  (VBRBRER
o (Vi) R R S (ViDIRAEE o

AEEGEF FRSKBEREEESR (HiFE(HSp
BERVRE-_T-_—F=ZANAZENEEERE
ERCEH B (NICPFAE D) AR 2 BIRE %
F-BHE-FT-NE+_A=+—HLEE K~&£H
MR ERBEE ZHERA B AR218,881,000
T(ZZ—\F : AR¥315,565,00070) © {hALE
AEEIRALI 5% (ZF—\F : 493%) °

SRERcEs
BREZRA/RPERIZERELAR - RAHER
B AT EFRIALEREREEREREMER
50% ' ITEFRIFELRERHEES0% « FIFARER
REBBERZIE-ESEERRA - BFEERE
BERFL AR R ER 2RE - WEEHHETT
INEERZIRERRBIEA N LH 2GR E - ANES
RAEFERBIFELED B A B IBZR50% B K&
HABIER 2T - NEBEERARRR ZEE
AL e

ERR FERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019
RMB’000
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838
15,677

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun, save for the operation and
provision of services for the Group as contemplated under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, Huicong Construction has no other material business operation
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
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Views of the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and confirmed that for the financial year ended 31 December
2019, (1) the transactions carried out during the year have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the HC Contractual
Arrangements; and (2) no dividends or other distributions have been made
by Huicong Construction which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements

Technology Services Agreement

Beijing Huicong International Information Co., Ltd. (“Beijing HC International”)
first entered into a technology services agreement (the “Technology Services
Agreement”) with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of
three years (and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Technology
Services Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to
14 September 2020, and may be renewed for an additional term of three
years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal
shall be subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approvals
and consents in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations
(including applicable rules of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”))).

Pursuant to the Technology Services Agreement, Beijing HC International is
appointed by Huicong Construction as its exclusive agent to provide Huicong
Construction with technology support and services related to the internet
content provider business of Huicong Construction, which includes:

(i)  server maintenance services;

(i)  the development, renewal and upgrading of server application software
and its application in the internet content provider business;

(i) the development, renewal and upgrading of application software for
internet user;

(iv) the technology service of e-business;
(v) the training of technical personnel; and

(vi) other reasonable requests from Huicong Construction for technical
services.

Under the Technology Services Agreement, Huicong Construction shall pay
Beijing HC International an annual fee of RMB250,000 for the provision of the
aforesaid services. The annual fee thereafter may be adjusted, but it shall not
exceed 20% of the amount charged in the previous year.
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Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into a domain names and trademarks
licence agreement (the “Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement”)
with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years
(and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Domain Names and
Trademarks Licence Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September
2017 to 14 September 2020, and may be renewed for additional term of
three years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal
shall be subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approvals and
consents in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including
applicable rules of the Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Beijing
HC International licences Huicong Construction to use certain domain names
and trademarks (including domain names and trademarks owned by Beijing
HC International and to be obtained by it from time to time) for the sole
purpose of operating the website and dissemination of information for the
benefit of Beijing HC International in the PRC. Any intellectual properties
developed by Huicong Construction during the term (including any renewed
term) of the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement would
belong to Beijing HC International. Parties further agreed that where any
intellectual properties are required by law to be registered in the name of
Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction shall, where permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, upon request of Beijing HC International
assign such intellectual property rights to Beijing HC International or a party
as designated by Beijing HC International, and shall return any consideration
received for such transfer. Huicong Construction has undertaken that they
shall warrant and guarantee that such intellectual properties are flawless and
it shall bear all damages and losses caused to Beijing HC International by any
flaw in such intellectual properties. Beijing HC International has the right to
recover all of its losses from Huicong Construction for liabilities to any third
party.

Under the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Huicong
Construction shall pay an annual fee of RMB250,000. The annual fee
thereafter may be adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the
amount charged in the previous year.
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Online Information Distribution Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into an online information distribution
agreement (the “Online Information Distribution Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Information Distribution Agreement
is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to 14 September
2020 and may be renewed for an additional term of three years at the sole
discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal shall be subject to the
Company having obtained all necessary approval and consents in accordance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of the
Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC
International appoints Huicong Construction to exclusively publish the
information collected, edited or produced by Beijing HC International on the
website operated by Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC International
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.

Online Advertisement Publication Agreement

HC Advertising first entered into an online advertisement publication
agreement (the “Online Advertisement Publication Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Advertisement Publication
Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to 14
September 2020, and may be renewed for additional term of three years at
the sole discretion of HC Advertising (and such renewal shall be subject to the
Company having obtained all necessary approvals and consents in accordance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of
the Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
appoints Huicong Construction to publish exclusively advertisement designed,
produced by or entrusted to HC Advertising on the website operated by
Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.
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Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing HC International entered into the exclusive option agreement (the
“Exclusive Option Agreement”) with Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun on 14 February 2019, pursuant to which Mr.
Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun jointly and severally granted to Beijing HC
International (and Huicong Construction having consented to such grant) an
irrevocable exclusive option for Beijing HC International (or such third party
as it may designate) to purchase, to the extent permitted by PRC laws, all or
part of their equity interests in Huicong Construction, at the consideration of
RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
regulations at the time of exercise of such option. Such exclusive option is for
an indefinite term commencing on 14 February 2019 until (i) it is terminated
by Beijing HC International in writing, or (i) upon transfer of the entire equity
interests held by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun in Huicong Construction.
Such exclusive option may not be revoked or varied during the term of the
Exclusive Option Agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Liu Jun has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among other
things, that they shall not create any pledge, indebtedness or third party
encumbrances, and shall not transfer, give by way of gift, pledge or otherwise
dispose of its equity in Huicong Construction to any party other than Beijing
HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it). Further,
Huicong Construction has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among
other things, that:

(i) it will operate its business in accordance with the laws, regulations,
requirements and other management requirements or directions by
relevant governmental department;

(i) it shall ensure the continual existence of Huicong Construction in
accordance with good financial and business standards and practices,
and shall prudently and effectively operate its business and transactions,
and shall use its best endeavours to ensure Huicong Construction
obtaining all licences, permits and approval requires for its operation,
and to ensure that they shall not be cancelled, revoked or declared
invalid;

(iii) it shall provide all its information in respect of its operation and finance
at Beijing HC International’s request;
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

it shall not conduct any of the following matters unless with prior
written approval from Beijing HC International: (a) sell, transfer, pledge
or otherwise dispose of any assets, business, or income, or allow
encumbrance be created thereon (save as in its ordinary course of
business or with prior written approval from Beijing HC International);
(b) enter into any transactions which will materially and adversely affect
its assets, obligations, operation, equity interest and other legal rights
(save as in its ordinary course of business or with prior written approval
from Beijing HC International); (c) declare dividend, or bonus to its
shareholders; or (d) incur, take up, guarantee or allow any indebtedness
other than those in the ordinary course of business and with the prior
written consent of Beijing HC International;

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
International resolve any shareholders’ resolution on increasing or
decreasing its registered capital, or alerting its registered capital
structure;

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
International alter its articles of association, or change its scope of
business; and

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
International change or remove any of its director or senior
management.

Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun, as registered shareholders of
Huicong Construction, has executed a blank equity transfer agreement with
respect of his equity interests in Huicong Construction to the custody of
Beijing HC International, which may be effected by Beijing HC International
(or such third party as it may designate) in the event he fails to discharge his
obligations.

Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun further executed an
undertaking dated 14 February 2019 (the “Undertaking”), pursuant to which,
among other things, they undertake to unconditionally return to the Group
any consideration they receive in the event Beijing HC International acquires
the equity interests in Huicong Construction, and to unconditionally transfer
the domain name “hc360.com” and related registered trademark(s) to Beijing
HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it) in the event
that the agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse,
expire or be terminated.

(iv) FRIFEERFUARBEER2E@RE
HEASETATEMITE : (a)hE -~ HaE - K
ARAEM TR EEMEE  FHREARK
REFFMEAEE EBIRARBEEREEDR
H—REH%BREDREFRIGIE R ERER
EEMRAEZBERTRISERR) : (b)F] ZER
RHUBEEBE - B - BE  REREME
ERNEZEATHZE (NE—REFBET
SESERGUERZERREARNEZERT
ASERIFR) ¢ (QRERRT IR B : K
(ELEFORIEEMER - BUEMERBELER
A FHEMES (RE—REFBRR REREL
RSt REZREREERBZBER T RIS ES

AN .
L

A

v BIFFERFILRBREERZEERE T8
EASRER A BN M A A
BHAMEREEZ RRRBRELFR -

(vi) FRFFEARFBIUARZRERZEBRE - T8
HEAGEREEBRERMAINE S EZEBH
53

EI

o

(i) FRIFFAERF/IARBRERZEBRE S8
ENSEhdReEHAEEXSRERAS

A S REIT S (e ABRR Y SR &
BB AT A 2 BT RRAEE T — (B 2 B
HRGE - BRI RERERTE - AhRER
B (SRR IRR 2 B =) R R LB (TE (L BB
2 -

ZIREE  SNERERZERE#E—SFEIBHA
ZE-NFZATHEABZEBE([HAH]D - Bt
(H A B E) S A It R IR B BRI s Z IR el ik
R EEGRASEREREMEMZ EMRE -
WHREBIRE L L BB R - B H SR IR &
FHRIERERER (KERRZE=F)EEEE
[hc360.com | R ABRE SIS

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif



i :: W N

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEEF WM DA

Power of Attorney

On 14 February 2019, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun has
executed a power of attorney (the “Power of Attorney”). Pursuant to each
of the Powers of Attorney, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun
unconditionally and irrevocably authorises any individual designated by Beijing
HC International (which shall be a director of the Company (other than Mr.
Guo Fansheng, Mr. Liu Jun or their close associates), and shall be a resident
of PRC) to represent him in exercising all his rights as shareholders of Huicong
Construction under applicable PRC laws, including without limitation, to
transfer all his equity interests, to determine the consideration for such
transfer, to complete all relevant procedures regarding such transfer, to attend
general meetings and exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant
documents, agreements and resolutions, etc.. Such Powers of Attorney shall
remain in full force and effect from 14 February 2019 until Mr. Guo Fansheng
or Mr. Liu Jun (as the case may be) ceases to be a shareholder of Huicong
Construction.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Beijing HC International, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun entered into
the equity pledge agreement (the “Equity Pledge Agreement”) on 14
February 2019, pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu
Jun pledged all their respective equity interests in Huicong Construction to
Beijing HC International to secure the performance of all their obligations
and the obligations of Huicong Construction under the Domain Names
and Trademarks Licence Agreement, the Technology Services Agreement,
the Online Information Distribution Agreement, the Online Advertisement
Publication Agreement, the Exclusive Option Agreement and the Powers of
Attorney.

Beijing HC International will be entitled to exercise the rights of pledge in the
event Huicong Construction fails to pay the service fee under the Technology
Services Agreement and the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence
Agreement or fail to perform any other term of the above agreements, the
Online Information Distribution Agreement and the Online Advertisement
Agreement, or any of Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr.
Liu Jun fails to perform any term of the Exclusive Option Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney (as the case may be), upon reasonable notice. If
Huicong Construction declares any dividend, bonus or adopt any proposal for
distribution of profits during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to Beijing HC International.

The Equity Pledge Agreement is for an indefinite term commencing from
14 February 2019 until (i) all the agreements (other than the Equity Pledge
Agreement) underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements have been
terminated by Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising (as the case may
be) or (i) all the obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement have been
fulfilled. The Equity Pledge Agreement has been filed at relevant Industry and
Commerce Bureau.
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Risks associated with the HC Contractual Arrangements

The government may determine that the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with the applicable regulations, or
these regulations or their interpretation may change in the future.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and members of the
Group established in the PRC are considered as foreign-invested enterprise.
Currently, laws and regulations of the PRC restrict participation and operation
of internet content services by foreign investors. The Group depends on the
HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction in respect of its
online services. Upon interview conducted by the PRC legal advisers with
relevant responsible officer of the Telecommunication Department of Beijing
Communications Administration Jt RiREEEREEEIELE), the PRC
legal advisers were informed that currently, there is no prohibition of adoption
of contractual arrangements or variable interest entity in the business
of services, and there has been no law, rules, regulations or normative
documents in the PRC which stipulates that such arrangements constitute the
act of “concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form” under PRC laws.

Save for matters as further discussed in the paragraph headed “Certain terms
of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under PRC
laws” below, our PRC legal advisers are of the opinion that the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements are, collectively and individually,
legal and valid and do not violate PRC laws, rule and regulations. Although
the Group has not received any interference regarding the legality of the HC
Contractual Arrangements, there is no assurance that the PRC government
or judicial authorities would agree that the HC Contractual Arrangements
comply with PRC licensing, registration, other regulatory requirements or
policies that may be adopted in the future. If the PRC government or judicial
authorities determines that the Group or the HC Contractual Arrangements
do not comply with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, it could have
discretion in dealing with such non-compliance, including:

(i) discontinuing or placing restriction on the business operation of Beijing
HC International, HC Advertising and/or Huicong Construction in the
PRC;

(i) requiring reorganisation or restructuring of ownership or business of
Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising;

(iii) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the HC Contractual Arrangements; and

(iv) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could have a
material adverse effect over the Group's financial condition or business.
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The imposition of any of the above mentioned consequences could result
in a material and adverse effect on the Group’s ability to conduct its online
business. In particular, in the event the imposition of any of these consequence
prevent Huicong Construction from providing internet content provider
services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute timely,
the operation of the Group’s platform could be severely disrupted and the
Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses (including
among others, subscription for Mai-Mai-Tong and Biao-Wang search). Where
the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Huicong Construction as
a result of these consequences, the Group would also be no longer able to
consolidate the financial results of Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not provide control as effective as
direct ownership

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, who hold key licences required, in respect of its online services.
Huicong Construction is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and as to
50% by Mr. Liu Jun. The Company and its subsidiaries do not own or hold
any equity interests in Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing control
over website operations in PRC as direct ownership in these businesses. For
example, Huicong Construction and its shareholders could breach or fail to
perform their obligations under the HC Contractual Arrangements. If Huicong
Construction fails to perform its obligations under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, the Group will have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC
law, which could result in substantial litigation costs and diverse the Group’s
management’s time and efforts away from their running the regular business
of the Group. There is uncertainty as to the outcome and duration of legal
proceedings and its enforceable. In addition, the Group cannot be sure that
contractual remedies would be effective or sufficient to enforce its interests.
In the event Huicong Construction refuses or fails to provide the internet
content services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute
timely, the operation of the Group’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses.
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The Group currently operates its online platform principally through the
website of “hc360.com”. Currently, Huicong Construction is the registrant
of the domain name “hc360.com” in light of relevant requirements in the
PRC on internet content provider business. Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun have undertaken pursuant to the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements and the Undertaking that
Huicong Construction will, so far as it is permitted under the PRC laws,
transfer the domain name and trademark(s) to the Group (or the Group's
nominee) in the event the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse, expire or be
terminated. If the Group is unable to acquire the domain name from Huicong
Construction, or if Huicong Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain
name, as part of Huicong Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or
rights of third party, the Group may be unable to continue its existing business
using "hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name,
and to establish new trademark, which may disrupt the Group’s operation,
confuse users and damage the Group’s reputation, and may materially and
adversely affect the Group’s results of operation.

The registered shareholders of Huicong Construction may have potential
conflicts of interest with the Group

As at the date of this report, equity interests of Huicong Construction is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and 50% by Mr. Liu Jun. Mr.
Guo Fansheng is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong
Construction. The Directors are of the view that Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Liu Jun are controllers of Huicong Construction. Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Liu Jun has undertaken to the Company that each of them will
procure Huicong Construction in fulfilling its obligations under the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements. Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and
Mr. Liu Jun, as a Director, also owes fiduciary duties to the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole pursuant to relevant law of the Cayman Islands.

There is no assurance that when conflicts of interests arise, shareholders of
Huicong Construction will act in the best interests of the Group, or that any
conflicts of interests will be resolved in favour of the Group.

To further strengthen the protections to the Group over potential conflicts
of interest between the registered shareholders of Huicong Construction,
and the Group, on 14 February 2019, Beijing HC International entered into,
among others, the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement
and the Powers of Attorney with Huicong Construction. Pursuant to the
Exclusive Option Agreement, Beijing HC International was granted the option
to purchase from the registered shareholders their equity interest in Huicong
Construction when and to the extent permitted by law. Pursuant to the Equity
Pledge Agreement, Beijing HC International is entitled to dispose of the equity
interests of Huicong Construction pledged, in the event of stipulated events
regarding failure of performance by, among others, registered shareholders of
Huicong Construction. Further, each of the Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun
has executed the Power of Attorney which authorises individual designated
by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights and powers as
shareholders of Huicong Construction.
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Since the entering into of the agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements and up to the date of this report, neither Huicong Construction
nor its registered shareholders commits any breach of the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements or undertakings. However, if
shareholder(s) of Huicong Construction cause Huicong Construction to breach
the HC Contractual Arrangements, or in the event Mr. Guo Fansheng and/
or Mr. Liu Jun breach the aforesaid undertakings, the Group will have to
resort to legal remedies under the PRC law, which could result in substantial
litigation costs and diverse the Group’s management’s time and efforts away
from their running the regular business of the Group. There is uncertainty as
to the outcome and duration of legal proceedings and its enforceability, and
the Group cannot be sure that contractual remedies would be effective or
sufficient to enforce its interests. Acquisition by the Group (or by designees of
the Group) of equity interests under the Exclusive Option Agreement and/or
the Equity Pledge Agreement may further be subject to substantial transaction
costs) and taxation. In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements
are breached and the Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide
internet content services timely, the operation of the Group's platform
could be severely disrupted and the Group may breach its existing contracts
for online businesses, and the Group’s operation, result of operations and
financial conditions may be materially and adversely affected. Also, if the
Group is unable to acquire the domain name in such events, or if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain name, as part of Huicong
Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or rights of third party, the
Group may be unable to continue its existing business using the domain name
of “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name, which
may disrupt the Group’s operation, confuse users and damage the Group’s
reputation, and may materially and adversely affect the Group’s results of
operation.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may subject the Group to increased
taxation due to different income tax rates applicable to Beijing HC
International and Huicong Construction

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Huicong
Construction provides internet content provider services for an annual fee of
RMB900,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Beijing HC International is subject
to a preferential tax rate of 15%, and Huicong Construction is subject to a tax
rate of 25%.

In light of the different income tax rates applicable, the determination of such
annual fee and other payment by the Group to Huicong Construction may
be challenged by relevant PRC tax authorities as unfair, and may adjust the
taxable income or tax amount payable by the Group, requesting outstanding
tax amount be paid or imposing administrative penalty, thereby having
adverse tax consequence and affect the Group’s business, financial conditions
and results of operations of the Group materially and adversely.
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Since the entering into of the HC Contractual Arrangements and up to the
date of this report, the Group has not received any interference from relevant
PRC tax authorities as to the different income tax rates applicable.

Huicong Construction may not provide internet content services to the
Group if the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, etc.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, which holds key licences required, to operate the Group’s online
platform. Certain agreements underlying the Contractual Arrangements (other
than the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney, which have an indefinite terms unless terminated)
currently has a term of three years, and will expire by 14 September 2020,
subject to renewal by Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising at
its respective discretion in accordance with the respective terms of the
agreements. The Company expects that the Group will renew the agreements
on equivalent or similar terms prior to their expiries.

If the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, the Group would
have to engage another PRC entity holding relevant licences required to
provide internet content services to the Group.

To strengthen the Group’s protection, Beijing HC International entered
into the Exclusive Option Agreement dated 14 February 2019, pursuant to
which Beijing HC International (or such third party as it may designated) may
purchase the equity interests of Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun in Huicong
Construction, among others, in the event that HC Contractual Arrangements
are not renewed. The said option is for an indefinite period unless terminated
by Beijing HC International or upon Beijing HC International acquiring all
equity interests in Huicong Construction. Further, each of the registered
shareholders of Huicong Construction (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Liu Jun) has executed the Power of Attorney which authorise individual
designated by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights and
powers as shareholders of Huicong Construction. In addition, as each of Mr.
Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun, being all registered shareholders of Huicong
Construction, is a Director, each of them further owes a duty of care to
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole under applicable laws. The
Directors are of the view that Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders are not entitled to terminate the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements save for material breach by Beijing HC International
and/or HC Advertising (as the case maybe). In such cases of termination,
that the Group will be entitled to exercise its rights under the Equity Pledge
Agreement to uphold its rights or have to resort to legal remedies under the
PRC law.
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There is no assurance that the Group can identify new entity which provides
internet content services required for the Group’s operation timely, or on
equivalent or similar terms. In the event that existing PRC entity cannot be
located, the Group may be required to engage other parties to set up new
entity. Pursuant to the existing laws and regulations, approval procedures
for key licences to operate internet content services usually takes three to six
months, with such requirements including among others, the Qualification
Requirement (as further discussed below) and a minimum requirement of
registered capital of not less than RMB1,000,000, while there is no assurance
that such approval will be granted, or will be granted on a timely manner.

In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements are discontinued and the
Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide internet content services
timely, the operation of the Group'’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses, which could
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business operation and financial
results.

Certain terms of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC laws

The HC Contractual Arrangements provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the Beijing Arbitration
Commission in the PRC. The HC Contractual Arrangements also contain
provisions to the effect that, the arbitral body may award remedies over
shares and/or assets of Huicong Construction, injunctive relief and/or winding
up of Huicong Construction, and that courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are of competent jurisdiction with power to grant interim remedies in
support of arbitration pending formation of arbitral tribunal or in appropriate
cases.

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that the above mentioned
provisions regarding injunctive relief or interim remedies contained in the
HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable, and that under PRC
laws, arbitral body does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or
liquidation order in case of dispute.

Accordingly, such remedies may not be available to us timely, or be available
to us at all notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in
the HC Contractual Arrangements.

Exercise of option to acquire the equity interests in Huicong Construction
may be subject to limitations and the ownership transfer may be subject to
substantial costs

Under the HC Contractual Arrangements, the Group has the option to
purchase equity interests in Huicong Construction. It is the intention of the
Group to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements as soon as the law allows
the business to operate without such HC Contractual Arrangements.
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The Administrative Rules for Foreign Investments in Telecommunications
Enterprises (2016 amended) (the “FITE Rules”) currently stipulated that
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% of the equity
interests of a company providing value-added telecommunications services,
including internet content provider services. As the Company is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, all members of the Group controlled by
the Company through majority shareholdings or equity interests are regarded
as such foreign invested enterprise, which restrict the exercise of option.

In addition, under the FITE Rules, a foreign invested enterprise wishing to
acquire any equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business
in the PRC must demonstrate a good track record and experience in
providing value-added telecommunications services overseas (“Qualification
Requirement”). There is currently no clear guidance on the interpretation
of the Qualification Requirement under the existing applicable PRC laws,
regulations or rules, and the Company is therefore unable to ascertain the
Qualification Requirement. There is no assurance that the Group will be
able to sufficiently satisfy the Qualification Requirement, or there will not
be any subsequent change, interpretation or guidance on the Qualification
Requirement, or such other requirements concerning the operator of internet
content provider services. If the restrictions on the percentage of foreign
ownership in telecommunications services are removed, the Group may need
to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements before the Group is in a position
to comply with the Qualification Requirement.

The exercise of option to acquire equity ownership of Huicong Construction
may incur substantial costs on the part of the Group. Pursuant to the HC
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has an exclusive option to purchase,
to the extent permitted by PRC laws, equity interests in Huicong Construction
in all or part, at the consideration of RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase
price permitted under PRC laws and regulations at the time of exercise of
such option. Where the relevant PRC authorities determine that the purchase
price is below the market value, they may require Beijing HC International to
pay enterprise income tax for ownership transfer income with reference to the
market value. The amount of tax may be substantial, which could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operation
of the Group.

SNEREBELREERTE (201655 ([SMEKR
BEECXEERTE DRBREIEREE TR~
MRREEEESERB(BELBBANTRYE) 2 AR
BZR50% M AERD - ANARERFEEREEM
L2 BRAR - AAREBIFA KD BRRERAL
ArEmied| 2 AR EER B A RFRERIIEHREDR
£ HRBIBEREZITE -

LS - IRIBIN R EBELEEERE @ IIHRED
ERUBH B EEEREES AR - A
FRERMRIMNEEEERSE T EEBRFEERLS
Rgs((ERER] - RIBRITEBZTEZER &
RERA - RETESERE R 2BREHARE
5 Eb AR R REERTE ABBRENR - SHEERE
AEERAIZENAERER  HERERIGHR
ERREZS - 2ELIES RAEMEMENT RS
ey 2 28 E 2 HMEF o WERNEERE 25
BHEAEZBOLRS  AEEXFTRBRERAOR
RN RERER -

HARKEM S - TBRENRIE SRR 2 A
BRRGELEANA - REZBANLTH  K&E
BABRBIRE - EREERAFTZERT - AIAR
B AR 1,400,000 T sk AR #5171 7% Z BB A 2 B
BRRMEZR AR AR EEREEZRERE N
BBy AR o M BN ER B EEERT
B REAERIERERER2RTERELEEE
WA EEMEHR - MEXEIFEEA - AIEHA
SEZER  BHIRALREREERERTNF

.
=

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif



i > W N

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
BEEREN WM

If Huicong Construction fails to obtain and maintain the requisite assets, — HZEIHZRKEEILBE ERBMT AR P K E T
licences and approvals as required under the regulatory environment for — A8 25 e B 2 75 BV 1S e A 1 S R EE ~ FFRI B Kot
internet content provider business in the PRC, the business, financial condition — xx + A2 « B AT R AR & 4E st & F 5| EATF
and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected 74

The telecommunications services industry in China is heavily requlated by  fE > BERETESFEBFRYES - MipEH
the PRC government and numerous regulatory authorities of the central i fiF 2 (BEc& HRE A MM N iE1 TS B2 IRIEFT
PRC government are empowered to issue and implement regulations — 2&5mE 75538 o ZE TR 2 52 N EEAE
governing various aspects of the telecommunications services industry. These s R EiEs - A EEREMS @ L5 E2N
telecommunications services-related laws and regulations are relatively new — sEE 2 ERHTAEATEERE - Bt - £2F
and evolving, and there are a certain degree of uncertainty especially on &R T - A48 EEMiETAsUE R @ w8 A
the interpretation and enforcement of these laws. As a result, in certain i@ miE2 RIELE o

circumstances it may be difficult to determine what actions or omissions may

be deemed to be in violations of applicable laws and regulations.

Huicong Construction is required to obtain and maintain certain assets  ZpaEi/ERERAEELEEAHEY ETEAENL
relevant to its business as well as applicable licenses or approvals from  [EEREE S EEEVSE A 2 FFa] BRI - LURHEE
the relevant regulatory authorities in order to provide its current services.  IBHRIE - ZEEE LI BHLBOBERNERE
These assets and licenses are essential to the operation of internet content  #EEEKE+HSEE - — BT SASEURTHRIES
provider business and are generally subject to annual review by the relevant  4F32r] - 14} - BEAE R EEVERINFR]E o 52
governmental authorities. Also, Huicong Construction may need to obtain  Fap i kacEE sk G (TN E 2 BE - FFa Bait
additional licenses. If Huicong Construction fails to obtain or maintain any of v HERE(ERETE VB EEFELENSEDEE
the required assets, licenses or approvals, its continued business operations in = g% » S4B 7REE RS20 L 4R 1SR HI E 484 - (42
the telecommunications services industry may subject it to various penalties, — Faz:g > fxass LI RARPY @ KoY AER
including but not limited to fines and the discontinuation or restriction of > 25 « B FEHAST M AT A8 248 0 R B AT FI S22 -
its operations. Any such disruption in the business operations of Huicong

Construction will materially and adversely affect our business, financial

condition and results of operations.

The Company may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held by Huicong sz 6 g A st F RS ot E 4872 % - Al A
Construction that are important to the Group’s business if Huicong — gjajap4 = (5 /5 6 = & 20 20 fr i A 4 7K £ 7 %
Construction declares bankruptcy or becomes subject to a dissolution or g =—j = > wz= > 2t #

winding up proceeding

Huicong Construction holds certain assets that are important to the Group's s AEm LKL ETsBESE Y 2T
business operations, primarily the ICP Licence and the domain name of 2, ;@& |CPHAIE R he360.com |14 » M=
“hc360.com”. The HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction TR0 R E RS BIAA 4R G 165 - BRI 5P
and its shareholders contain terms that specifically obligate Mr. Guo Fansheng g a4 4 205 45 A3 L HE (R SRR S0 A U B o &
and Mr. Liu Jun to ensure the valid existence of Huicong Construction. (1 o gkif » 436 7,4 5o sk 2B 50 A B LB (T R 4
However, in the event that Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun breaches  smasesn = pmase | o srpnm s e sl U E 05
this obligation and voluntarily wind up Huicong Construction, or Huicong  stgzs . A& o sia i F 2 KL ES @K | -
Construction declares bankruptcy or is otherwise dissolved, some or all of  wikem > 25 . GBS R RATL 245 AT 4L T B A
the Group’s online business operations may have to be ceased, which could  r=se . fysmaE e /T ARt IE G BB RIS -
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results = 5 4= A st 25 46 A4 s (T A E b5 = 5B 4E A ATAY
of operations. If Huicong Construction undergoes a voluntary or involuntary  xiem pgE s e BL L EE - HTLEEAER
winding-up proceeding, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun or any other third- s | e > a5 . S alALUAREE > %75 - BI7S
party creditors may claim rights to some or all of these assets, resulting in ursn 1 s ms s g o 2 SR 204

hindrance to the Group's ability to operate the Group’s online business, which

could materially and adversely affect the Group's business, financial condition

and results of operations.
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Even the transfer of trademark of “hc360” has been completed, there may
still be potential penalties

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that holders of the ICP
License shall hold the domain name and the trademarks used for conducting
the internet content provider business pursuant to the MIIT Notice.

In order to comply with the notice requirement of the ICP, Beijing HC
International transferred the trademark “hc360” to Huicong Construction
through the HC Contractual Arrangements. On 25 January 2016, the
trademark transfer was completed and Huicong Construction obtained the
trademark certificate for “hc360” on 13 March 2016. The Company has been
advised by the PRC Legal Advisers that, upon completion of the Trademark
Transfer, it is unlikely for Huicong Construction be penalized in respect of
failure to fulfill the trademark requirement under the MIIT Notice regarding
any period prior to the Trademark Transfer.

Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of share
capital of Orange Triangle Inc. (“Orange Triangle”). L= AR AR A
A (Beijing Orange Triangle Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Orange Beijing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Orange Triangle entered into certain structured contracts
(the “BZR Structured Contracts”) with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology Co.,
Ltd. AL RATHERIFAR A F) (“Beijing Zhixing Ruijing”) and/or its then
shareholders on 3 July 2015. On 21 February 2020, Mr. Guo Jiang ceased to
be a shareholder of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and $§ S Z#(BEM ){E 8HHEY
1 E (BBRA % )(Ruijing Huijie (Huizhou) Information Consultation Partnership
(Limited Liability)*,”Ruijing Huijie”) became a shareholder holding 60% of
equity interest in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Ruijing Huijie is a limited liability
partnership owned by Mr. Liu Jun, the executive Director and chairman of the
Board, and Mr. Zhang Yonghong, the executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company as to 60% and 40%, respectively. In light of the
aforesaid change, Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong entered into a new set of BZR Structured Contracts on 26
March 2020. Save as the change of the party to BZR Structured Contracts
from Mr. Guo Jiang to Ruijing Huijie, there was no material change to the
terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.

Pursuant to the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing or Orange Triangle
will provide certain technical consultation and service, including but not
limited to technical services support, intellectual property licensing, and
business and management consultation, whereas Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will
pay (a) the annual service fees RMB5 million to Orange Beijing; (b) the annual
service fees which equal 12% of its annual revenue to Orange Triangle; and
(c) the service fee equivalent to its revenue deducted by its expenses, net
operation loss and reserve fund extracted to Orange Beijing. Orange Beijing
relies on the BZR Structured Contracts to control the finance and operation of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing so as to obtain the economic benefits and the rights to
variable returns from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 17 March
2015, 8 May 2015 and 3 July 2015, respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 4 June 2015 for further details.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, save as disclosed in this report,
there was no material change in the BZR Structured Contracts and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the BZR
Structured Contracts had been unwound as none of the restrictions that led
to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

Further, the Group entered into the BZR Structured Contracts to conduct the
restricted business in the PRC in order to comply with the abovementioned
PRC laws and regulations and to assert management control over the
operations of, and enjoy all of economic benefits of, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
on 3 July 2015, pursuant to which the Group has the right to enjoy all the
economic benefits of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, to exercise management control
over the operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and to prevent any leakage of
the assets and values of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to the registered shareholders
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. As a result of the BZR Structured Contracts, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing is consolidated into the accounts of the Group in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies from 3 July 2015.

As at the date of this report, the Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing include (i) the exclusive technical services agreement, (i) the exclusive
licensing agreement on intellectual property, (iii) the exclusive right to share
purchase agreement, (iv) the voting rights proxy agreement, (v) the pledge
agreement and (vi) the management and operation agreement

The Group depends on the BZR Structured Contracts with Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing (who holds, among other things, the value-added telecommunications
business operating licence (BB (= E 154 E 7 A %) (“VAT Licence”), being
valid until 8 January 2025) in respect of its information service business within
the second type of value-added telecommunication services (the “Value-added
Telecommunications Businesses”).
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Information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is a limited liability company established in the PRC on
11 September 2014 with registered capital of RMB10 million and paid up
capital of RMB10 million. As at the date of this report, the registered capital
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is owned as to 60% by Ruijing Huijie and 40% by
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (2]/]\5R), an executive director of the Company.

Set out below is the key information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing during the year
ended 31 December 2019:

HEWBA
BEE

Revenue
Total assets

FRLFEATHSZ2ER
EREAMTHE BN _E—NFNA+—BEPBEKL
ZERAR  AMERBARE—FTEL  HERER
BARB—TEL - WARERH - SIEE2ERAR
AIFITESR R NREAED AR IR AT = 2 i
B AR60% K40% °
IERATHEREE_T—NF+A=T—HILF
EZEZERFINMT :

Year ended 31 December 2019
RMB’000

BE_Z2-NFt+-RA=t—HLEEFE
ARBTT

270,981
671,718

As at the date of this report, the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing mainly
involves the Value-added Telecommunications Businesses, excluding
technology development; economic and trade consultancy; organisation of
cultural and art exchange activities (not including commercial performances);
and exhibition and demonstration hosting activities (the “Excluded
Businesses”).

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has
no plan or road map to develop and operate the Excluded Businesses as at the
date of this report.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the BZR
Structured Contracts

Exclusive Technical Services Agreement

Orange Beijing entered into an exclusive technical services agreement with
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the "Exclusive Technical Services
Agreement”). The Exclusive Technical Services Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Orange Beijing
is appointed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing as its exclusive services provider to
provide technical consulting service, other related technical services and
related services agreed by both parties from time to time during the term of
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and
conditions.

Under the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall
pay Orange Beijing an annual services fee of RMB5 million.

Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property

Orange Triangle entered into an exclusive licensing agreement on intellectual
property with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Licensing
Agreement on Intellectual Property”). The Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property,
the right of use of Orange Triangle’s network domain names, registered
trademarks, databases, software systems and other intellectual properties is
granted to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Such rights cannot be transferred to any
other third party.

Under the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing shall pay annual service fees equivalent to 12% of its total
annual revenue to Orange Triangle. Beijing Zhixing Ruijing had also procured
Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong to provide their holding shares of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a pledge to guarantee the payment of the payable service
fee to Orange Triangle or its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into an exclusive right to share purchase agreement on 26 March
2020 (the “Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement”). The Exclusive
Right to Share Purchase Agreement shall remain in force during the existence
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance
with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, Ruijing Huijie
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong jointly and individually granted Orange Beijing the
exclusive right to purchase the shares of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, irrevocably and without any additional conditions. Orange Beijing
can, by its own will, decide the way to exercise the right and purchase all
or part of shares held by shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or any
specified third party at the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC at any time, by one or more times.

Under the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, the share
repurchase price shall be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. The paid shareholder of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
will return the rest of the transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital
injected by them to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Voting Rights Proxy Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a voting rights proxy agreement on 26 March 2020 (the “Voting
Rights Proxy Agreement”). The Voting Rights Proxy Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, Orange Beijing (or its
designated parties) was granted the power to, inter alia, exercise all the rights
of Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong as the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, subject to applicable laws, regulations and Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
articles of association. No prior consent from Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is required before exercising such right. Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong shall recognise Orange Beijing’s voting result.

Pledge Agreement

Orange Beijing (as the pledgee), Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr.
Liu Xiaodong (as the pledgers) entered into a pledge agreement on 26 March
2020 (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant to which each of Ruijing Huijie
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong pledged their equity interests in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
held by them as security for Orange Beijing’s rights and interests granted by
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, Management and Operation Agreement, Voting Proxy Rights
Agreement and the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property
(collectively, the “Master Agreements”). Orange Beijing shall have the right
to get compensation by converting the Equity interests into money and seek
preferential payments from the proceeds from the auction or sales of the said
equity interests concerned or other disposal methods as agreed by each party
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
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Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the Master
Agreements, without written consent of the pledgee, Ruijing Huijie and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong shall not assign the said equity interests in Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing.

The Pledge Agreement has become effective upon the execution date. Unless
otherwise agreed by Orange Beijing in writing after the Pledge Agreement
comes into effect, upon the full and complete performance of the Company
and pledgors’ obligations under the Master Agreements as well as Orange
Beijing’s written confirmation, the pledge shall be terminated.

Management and Operation Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a management and operation agreement on 26 March 2020
(the “Management and Operation Agreement”), which shall remain in force
during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with clauses of the agreement.

Under the Management and Operation Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
will appoint Orange Beijing as its exclusive services provider to provide
complete management support, business support, technical support and
related consulting services during the term of the Management and Operation
Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions, which may include all
necessary services within the scope of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s business, such
as but not limited to business consultations, marketing consultancy, technical
services, intellectual properties licenses, product research and development,
system maintenance, as well as general corporate management.

The service fee shall be payable to Orange Beijing by the Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, where the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall pay to Orange Beijing such fees
equivalent to the amount of the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s revenue deducted
by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s (and its subsidiaries’) expenses (including Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing’s costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments, and
relevant tax payments incurred during the term of the Management and
Operation Agreement), net operation loss made by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and
the reserve fund extracted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. The service fee shall be
calculated within three (3) months since the end of each financial year based
on the audited report prepared in accordance with the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within fifteen (15) days of the
issuance date of such audited report.
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Risk associated with the BZR Structured Contracts

The PRC government may determine that BZR Structured Contracts are not in
compliance with any existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations

If the PRC government finds that the BZR Structured Contracts (which
establish the structure for operating the Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in the PRC) do not comply with applicable
PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their interpretations
change in the future, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing could be subject to severe
consequences, including the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts and
the relinquishment of the interest of Orange Beijing in the BZR Structured
Contracts.

According to the FITE Rules, foreign investors’ ultimate equity ownership in
an entity in the PRC which provides value-added telecommunications services
must not exceed 50% and a foreign investor who wishes to acquire any
equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business in the PRC must
demonstrate (i) a good track record and (ii) experience in providing value-
added telecommunications services (“Qualification Requirements”).

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has been engaging in the development and operation
of the Value-added Telecommunication Businesses. Under the current PRC
regulatory circumstances, Orange Beijing as a wholly foreign owned enterprise
would not be able to obtain the VAT License and thus is unable to provide the
value-added telecommunications services in the PRC directly.

On 13 July 2006, the Ministry of Information Industry (F2E A RHFE{S &
EE ), currently known as MIIT (the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC (Fh3E A RHFE T 25015 B 3)) issued the Circular
on Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Investment in Value-added
Telecommunications Business (B8 Mo /NS % B LG EBEEHEEHB
Z0) (“MIIT Notice”), which reiterated restrictions on foreign investment in the
telecommunications businesses. Under the MIIT Notice, a domestic company
that holds a VAT License is prohibited from leasing, transferring or selling the
license to foreign investors in any form, and from providing any assistance,
including providing resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investors to provide
ICP services illegally in the PRC. Due to a lack of interpretative materials from
the authorities, it cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider the BZR
Structured Contracts as a kind of foreign investment in telecommunication
services, in which case Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Orange Beijing may be
found in violation of the MIIT Notice.
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In addition, several recent articles published by some news agencies reported
discussions that a recent PRC Supreme Court decision and two VIE structure-
related arbitration decisions in Shanghai had cast doubt on the validity of
the VIE structure. According to these articles, the PRC Supreme Court ruled
in late 2012 that an entrustment agreement entered into by and between
a Hong Kong company and a PRC domestic entity, which was purported to
enable such Hong Kong company to make an equity investment in a PRC
bank through the proxy PRC domestic entity, was void on the grounds that
this agreement established an entrustment relationship meant to circumvent
the PRC laws and regulations that prohibit foreign investment in PRC financial
institutions and as such, constituted an act of concealing illegal intentions
with a legitimate form. These articles argued that a contractual arrangement
in a VIE structure and the entrustment agreement in the cited case, which
were similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, were also designed to “get
around” the regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in certain industries.
As such, the articles noted that this Supreme Court decision might increase
the uncertainties relating to the PRC government'’s view on the validity of the
VIE structure. These articles also reported, without providing sufficient details,
on two arbitration decisions by the then Shanghai CIETAC which invalidated
the contractual arrangement used in a VIE structure in 2010 and 2011.

The PRC legal advisor is of the opinion that, based on their understanding
and the numerous precedents of PRC domestic internet content providers
controlled by overseas companies through contractual arrangements that
are similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, the BZR Structured Contracts do
not result in a violation of PRC laws, or would not be deemed as “concealing
illegal intentions with lawful forms” (as a matter concerning Article 52 of the
PRC Contract Law). The BZR Structured Contracts are enforceable, valid and
legally binding in accordance with their terms and provisions (except for part
of the arbitration clauses contained therein setting forth that the arbitration
tribunal may issue injunction or winding-up orders and the Courts of Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands have the jurisdiction to grant interim remedies
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitration tribunal).
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However, according to the PRC legal advisor, it cannot be assured that the
PRC government or judicial authorities would agree that the BZR Structured
Contracts comply with current PRC laws or regulations, would not strictly
enforce current PRC laws regulating the provision of internet content, or
would not adopt new laws or policies in the future. If the PRC government or
judicial authorities determine that the BZR Structured Contracts do not comply
with applicable laws and regulations, such contracts would be deemed void
and the PRC government or judicial authorities could have broad discretion in
dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) requiring the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) revoking of the business licenses or operating licenses of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing;

(iv) discontinuing or placing restrictions or onerous conditions on the
business operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(v)  taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to
or even shut down the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or Orange
Beijing.

In addition, where the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a result of these consequences, the Group would no longer
be able to consolidate the financial results of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Orange Beijing relies on BZR Structured Contracts to control and obtain the
economic benefits from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, which may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership

Due to the PRC’s legal restrictions on foreign investment in the value-added
telecommunications services, Orange Beijing controls, through the BZR
Structured Contracts rather than equity ownership, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the
operating entity in the PRC and the holder-to-be of the key licenses required
to operate the value-added telecommunications services in the PRC. However,
the BZR Structured Contracts still may not be as effective as equity ownership
in exercising control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. For example, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and its shareholders could breach or fail to perform their obligations
under the BZR Structured Contracts. If Orange Beijing had direct ownership of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Orange Beijing would be able to exercise its rights as
a shareholder to effect changes in its board of directors, which in turn could
effect changes, subject to any applicable fiduciary obligations, at management
and operational level. Under the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing
would need to rely on its rights under the BZR Structured Contracts to effect
such changes, or designate new shareholders for Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or its shareholders breach their obligations under
the BZR Structured Contracts or if Orange Beijing loses the effective control
over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for any reason, Orange Beijing would need to
bring a claim against them under the terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.
The BZR Structured Contracts are governed by PRC law and provide that any
dispute which arises will be submitted to the CIETAC, for arbitration, the
ruling of which will be final and binding. Furthermore, personal liabilities of
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may also cause the equity interest
they hold in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to be subject to court preservation actions
or enforcement. The legal framework and system in the PRC particularly
that relates to the arbitration proceedings is not as developed as in other
jurisdictions such as Hong Kong. As a result, significant uncertainties relating
to the enforcement of legal rights through arbitration, litigation and other
legal proceedings remain in the PRC, which could limit Orange Beijing’s ability
to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts and exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or any of its shareholders fails
to perform its respective obligations under the BZR Structured Contracts, and
Orange Beijing is unable to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts, or suffers
significant delays or other obstacles in the process of enforcing the BZR
Structured Contracts, the business and operations of Orange Beijing could
be severely disrupted, which could materially and adversely affect operation
results. As a result, the Company’s investment in Orange Beijing could also be
materially and adversely affected.

Remedies of BZR Structured Contracts may not be obtained effectively under
PRC laws

The BZR Structured Contracts provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the CIETAC in the
PRC. The BZR Structured Contracts contain provisions to the effect that the
arbitration tribunal may award remedies when Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches
the BZR Structured Contracts. In addition, the BZR Structured Contracts
contain provisions to the effect that the courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal.

However, the abovementioned provisions contained in the BZR Structured
Contracts may not be enforced effectively. Under PRC laws, an arbitration
tribunal does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or provisional
or final liquidation order to preserve the assets of or any equity interest in
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in case of disputes, and the courts in Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands may not be empowered to grant interim remedies in
support of the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal under
PRC laws. As a result, the provisions may not effectively protect Orange
Beijing, notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in the
BZR Structured Contracts.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AL AT T8 R L EBIRE R AN AT H R 4518
MALET 2 EEkHE=ARERIEAM ARSI
RATHEZBRIEE - B= AR EREIR
HMITHSEBEROZERARSIRE AR « ALRA
TIRSAEBESNRTEEERELREEAZS B
HBRZ AN SRR E B MR ETINE - HERE
REEREBRLRA » 1o - ARFITHIBRRZ
EABFETRAT LRSI R AT RAFH 2 R
FEGRETTEI SR BIMITAAR o B ZARER KR
BRALAREMERFARE) LT NEEEE LA
FERER—ETE o Bt - PENEEEEBE - F
AR EMERIZFARIMITEEZEN B 2 EATHE
EREE - ErEgRHIE=ARIMITIERATHS
AR AN REIERANITH R BITARIES 2887 -
AL RATTH R B EAFBRRARFEEITEE BRI R
TS EBESQIRT ZEE AR =ABERY
TR AT SEBIEE L - R HHITIE R A
TIRSABIESOBIEPERBAER LA WA
A =AZEFEREENGEXBETE - BM AT
HHKERAELBATINEE - A AATRE
ZAZRENAESERTNEE -

P BEABZ AR 15 0 B2 1R B AR f L AN T R a1 1
BRI RO
ERATHREBUER DR EUNARBEME ZF
FSRAIAFE T R EER - L RATTIR S AT
SRBBENFEHEATRIERATHSEREBIES
WRHE TROBE 2 63T - tEoh - AERFTTHSAEBIES
BRI T BB R S B SRR N AR
PR T i B 02 A 13 B (&,

AT AL RATTH S AR A QS 2 L SOR 14
BEBRRBITTT o RIBHEDER - MHBRAS -
R REAL AT S 2 BE S EMARER T
MESH AL RRLFTES - MRETFEER
TR N5 S8 BARE TN PR A AT T R
ROBLAB BN HEL - Bt - BEILRAMITHSEBIES
DHBEREA OGS ZERSORVEEEBRERE=
7 o



N .

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EERE WM DN

Therefore, in the event that Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches any of the BZR
Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing may not be able to obtain sufficient
remedies in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and conduct its business could be materially and
adversely affected and the financial performance of Orange Beijing could be
materially and adversely affected. As a result, the Company’s investment in
Orange Beijing could also be materially and adversely affected.

The shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may potentially have a conflict of
interests with the Group

The Group's control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is based on the contractual
arrangement under the BZR Structured Contracts. Hence, conflict of interests
of the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will adversely affect the
interests of the Company. Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement,
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing have irrevocably authorised
Orange Beijing (or its designee) as their proxy to exercise all the rights of the
shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and such authorisation shall not be
altered unless otherwise instructed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Therefore, it is
unlikely that there will be potential conflict of interests between the Company
and the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. However, in the unlikely event
that conflict of interests arises and cannot be resolved, the Company will
consider removing and replacing the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed

The Group could face material adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax
authorities determine that the arrangements under the BZR Structured
Contracts was not entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the
PRC tax authorities determine that these agreements were not entered into
on an arm'’s length basis, they may adjust our income and expenses for PRC
tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing
adjustment could adversely affect the Group’s financial position by increasing
the relevant tax liability without reducing the tax liabilities of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, and this could further result in late payment fees and other penalties
to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for under-paid taxes. As a result, any transfer pricing
adjustment could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.
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The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks relating to
the BZR Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder
The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks relating to the BZR
Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
Company has no intention to purchase any new insurance in this regard. If
any risk arises from the BZR Structured Contracts in the future, such as those
affecting the enforceability of the BZR Structured Contracts and the relevant
agreements for the transactions contemplated thereunder and the operation
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the results of the Group may be adversely affected.
However, the Group has been monitoring the relevant legal and operational
environment from time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, the Group has been implementing relevant internal
control measures to reduce the operational risk.

Actions taken to mitigate the risks associated with the BZR
Structured Contracts

The BZR Structured Contracts contain certain provisions in order to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing,
including but not limited to that, without the prior written consent of Orange
Beijing, the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall not at any time
dispose, transfer, pledge, sell or create any charges over the assets, business,
revenue or any beneficial interests of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing shall conduct its business in its ordinary and usual course to preserve
the asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and shall not engage in any act (or
lack thereof) which may have any adverse effect on the business, operations
and asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and etc.

In addition to the abovementioned internal control measures as provided
in the BZR Structured Contracts, the Company has implemented, through
Orange Beijing, additional internal control measures against Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing as appropriate, having regard to the internal control measures adopted
by the Group from time to time, which may include (without limitation):

(i)  Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to make available monthly management accounts
and submit key operating data after each month end and provide
explanations on any material fluctuations to Orange Beijing;

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to assist and facilitate Orange Beijing to conduct
quarterly on-site internal audit on Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(i) if required, legal advisers and, or other professionals will be retained to
deal with specific issues arising from the BZR Structured Contracts and
to ensure that the operation of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will comply with
applicable laws and regulations.
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Further information regarding risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements and the BZR Structured Contracts are also set out in the
Transfer of Listing Announcement and the announcement of the Company
dated 8 May 2015 respectively.

Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou Saidian
Technology

On 8 January 2016, the Group had acquired entire issued share capital of
ZhongFu Holdings Limited from its then shareholders pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement dated 18 December 2015 and entered into between,
among others, the Company and its then shareholders. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 8
January 2016.

The results and financial position of ZhongFu Holdings Limited have been
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 8 January
2016.

On 5 January 2016, Hangzhou Saidian Information Technology Company
Limited* #7/l&H{Z BEHE AR AR (“Hangzhou Saidian Information”)
("#)NEEEL{E B "), a wholly owned subsidiary of ZhongFu Holdings Limited,
entered into a series of structured contracts, including Exclusive Right to
Purchase Agreement; Authorisation Agreement; Management and Operations
Agreement and Pledge Agreement (as respectively defined below, and
collectively the “ZhongFu Structured Contracts”) with the shareholders of
Hangzhou Saidian Technology Company Limited #i/NEZRH AR A T
("Hangzhou Saidian Technology”) (“#7/NZ&EERHL "), Mr. Guo Jiang (£5)1),
Mr. Chen Xuejun (FRE2E) (together the “PRC Equity Owners”).

The shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology unconditionally and
irrevocably authorise any individual designated by the Group to represent
them in exercising all their rights as shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology including without limitation, to transfer all their equity interests,
to determine the consideration for such transfer, to complete all relevant
procedures regarding such transfer, to attend general meetings and
exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant documents, agreements
and resolutions. In addition, if Hangzhou Saidian Technology declares any
dividend, bonus or adopts any proposal for distribution of profits, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to the Group.
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In accordance with the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, the Group has acquired
the control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology as the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities (i.e. the
activities that significantly affect the Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s variable
returns). The Group is also entitled to substantially all of the operating profits
and residual interest generated by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology in turn held 80.38% of the equity interest of Zheliang
ZhongFu Internet Technology Company Limited #7 T FpARAE R AR A
7] (“Zhejiang Zhongfu”). Consequently, Zhejiang Zhongfu has become a
subsidiary of the Group with effect from 8 January 2016.

Information of ZhongFu Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Zhongfu Group”)

ZhongFu Holdings Limited is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI on 28 August 2015 with limited liability and issued capital of
US$50,000. As at the date of this report, ZhongFu Holdings Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

ZhongFu Holdings Limited held the entire issued share capital in SaiDian HK
Limited (“SaiDian HK"), an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 15 September 2015 with limited liability and issued capital of
HK$10,000, which in turn held the entire equity interest in Hangzhou Saidian
Information, a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology is a limited company established in the PRC on
8 December 2009 with paid up capital of RMB5,250,000 and is an investment
holding company. It held 80.38% equity interest of Zhejiang Zhongfu which
is a limited company established in the PRC on 18 June 2001 with paid up
capital of RMB10,000,000.

Set out below is the key financial information of Zhejiang Zhongfu during the
year ended 31 December 2019:
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MAJOR TERMS OF THE ZHONGFU STRUCTURED
CONTRACTS

1. Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
PRC Equity Owners enter into an exclusive right to purchase agreement
(the "Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement”), under which the
PRC Equity Owners will irrevocably, and jointly and individually grant
Hangzhou Saidian Information the exclusive right to purchase the shares
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology at the minimum price permitted by
the relevant laws and regulations of PRC at any time, by one or more
times. The PRC Equity Owners may not transfer their shares in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology without written consent from Hangzhou Saidian
Information.

The exclusive purchase right may be exercised by Hangzhou Saidian
Information by written notice to the PRC Equity Owners. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and the PRC Equity Owners shall provide all
necessary information and documents for the share registration. In
the situation that more than one shareholder holding the shares, the
PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall procure
any remaining shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, if any
to agree to transfer the shares to Hangzhou Saidian Information and/
or its designated parties in written statement, indicating their waiver of
pre-emptive rights. In the event of transfer of shares, Hangzhou Saidian
Technology shall procure the shareholders to sign a share purchase
agreement with Hangzhou Saidian Information and/or designated
parties upon the receipt of exercise notice. To ensure the performance
of this agreement, a Pledge Agreement (as hereinafter defined) will be
signed.

The price would be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws
and regulations of PRC. The paid shareholder will return the rest of the
transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital by them to Hangzhou
Saidian Technology. Any taxes, charges and fees shall be borne by the
parties pursuant to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement shall be effective upon
execution and as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology subsists. The
parties agree that the Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.
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Authorisation Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into an authorisation agreement
(" Authorisation Agreement”). Pursuant to the Authorisation Agreement,
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its designated parties who must be
one of the Director and a PRC citizen, and must not be the PRC Equity
Owners or their connected person(s) (the “Designated Party(ies)”)) will
have the power to, inter alia, exercise all shareholder’s rights granted by
applicable laws, regulations and Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s articles
of association, including but not limited to convening shareholders
meeting, voting and signing resolutions at shareholders meeting,
filing documents to company registration authorities, designating and
appointing directors and supervisors, transferring or disposing off equity
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, participating in Hangzhou Saidian
Technology’s major decisions, and choosing management for Hangzhou
Saidian Technology.

No prior consent from the PRC Equity Owners is required before
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its Designated Parties) exercise its
voting rights. The PRC Equity Owners shall recognize Hangzhou Saidian
Information’s voting result.

The Authorisation Agreement shall be effective upon execution and
as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s shareholders remain to be
Hangzhou Saidian Technology's shareholders. The parties agree that
the Authorisation Agreement can be terminated by Hangzhou Saidian
Information each by giving 30 days’ written notice.

Management and Operations Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a management and operation
agreement (the “Management and Operation Agreement”), which has
been renewed in 2019.

Pursuant to the Management and Operations Agreement, Hangzhou
Saidian Technology will appoint Hangzhou Saidian Information as its
exclusive services provider of management and operations services. Such
services include all necessary services within the scope of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology’s business, such as but not limited to business
consultations, marketing consultancy, technical services, intellectual
properties licenses, product research and development, system
maintenance, as well as general corporate management.
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The PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall
procure the resignation of directors and supervisors whose appointment
Hangzhou Saidian Information does not agree to. Those directors and
supervisors shall be replaced by personnel appointed by Hangzhou
Saidian Information.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall pay Hangzhou Saidian Information
such service fees equivalent to the amount of the Hangzhou Saidian
Technology's revenue deducted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s (and
its subsidiaries’) expenses (including Hangzhou Saidian Technology’'s
costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments, and relevant tax
payments incurred during the term of the Management and Operations
Agreement), loss covered by Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
relevant reserve fund extracted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. The
service fee shall be calculated within three months since the end of each
financial year based on the audited report prepared in accordance with
the PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within
15 days of the issuance date of such audited report.

The Management and Operations Agreement shall be effective
upon execution for three years, and upon expiry, Hangzhou Saidian
Information has a sole discretionary right to renew the Management and
Operations Agreement for another three years, subject to the applicable
law, regulations and rules at that time (including the Listing Rules). The
parties agree that the Management and Operations Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.
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Pledge Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a pledge agreement (the “Pledge
Agreement”).

According to the Pledge Agreement, the PRC Equity Owners will pledge
to Hangzhou Saidian Information their equity interests in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology (the “Pledged Interests”, being the entire equity
interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology) as security for Hangzhou
Saidian Information’s rights and interests granted by the Exclusive
Right to Purchase Agreement, the Authorisation Agreement and the
Management and Operations Agreement (the “Master Agreements”)
(including any payment (including legal expense), expense, loss, interests,
liguidated damages, compensation, costs for realization of loans, costs
and losses for specific performance of Hangzhou Saidian Technology,
and the liabilities incurred as results of the termination, recession, whole
or partial invalidation of the Master Agreements). Hangzhou Saidian
Information shall have the right to compensation by converting the
Pledged Interests into money and seek preferential payments from the
proceeds from the auction or sales of the Pledged Interests concerned
or other disposal methods as agreed by each party in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Pledge Agreement shall become effective upon the execution
date. The PRC Equity Owners has cooperated with Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and registered the pledge in shareholders’ register with the
relevant authorities.

Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the
Master Agreements, without written consent of the Hangzhou Saidian
Information, the PRC Equity Owners shall not assign any of the Pledged
Interests.

Unless otherwise agreed by Hangzhou Saidian Information in writing,
upon the full and complete performance of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and the PRC Equity Owners under the Master Agreements as
well as Hangzhou Saidian Information’s written confirmation, the Pledge
Agreement shall be terminated. Costs reasonably incurred thereof shall
be borne by the PRC Equity Owners.

In the event where Hangzhou Saidian Technology or the PRC Equity
Owners failed to fully discharge their obligations under the Master
Agreements, Hangzhou Saidian Information shall continuously enjoy the
pledge until the above-mentioned obligations being fulfilled in a manner
to its satisfaction.
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The Company will unwind the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and
directly hold the equity interests of Hangzhou Saidian Technology when
the relevant restrictions no longer exist. The current legal or regulatory
restrictions in exercising the purchase right under the Exclusive Right
to Purchase Agreement is stipulated in the FITE Rules. Furthermore,
even if the foreign ownership restriction is relaxed, the transfer of the
equity interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology from the shareholders
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology to the Group may still be subject to
substantial costs.

Reasons for and the benefits of the sale and purchase
agreement and the ZhongFu Structured Contracts

By leveraging on the combined customer base and business network of the
Group and the Zhongfu Group, it is envisaged that the Group will have a
wider and deeper access to different groups of customers who would require
the existing services provided by the Group and/or facilitate the matching
between the subscribers of the Group (being a customer or a supplier) with
the customers and business network of the Zhongfu Group. Besides, upon
completion of the Zhongfu Acquisition, the Group may widen its industry
coverage and geographical coverage. Moreover, the Group may integrate
the resources between the Group and the Zhongfu Group in various aspects
(such as human resources, sales and marketing, financing, back office
support, technical support etc.) to achieve economy of scale, cost reduction
and efficiency improvement. The Directors (including the independent non-
executive Director) consider that (i) the Zhongfu SPA, the ZhongFu Structured
Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into on
normal commercial terms in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company after arm'’s length negotiation, and that the terms of the Zhongfu
SPA, the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the amount of the annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the ZhongFu Structured Contracts are fair
and reasonable.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Change of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the changes
and updated information regarding the Directors since the Company’s last
published this report and up to the date of this report are set out below:

D)

(i) Appointment of executive Director; (ii) resignation of co-president;
(iii) re-designation as president; (iv) change of chief executive officer;
(v) resignation of executive Director; and (vi) change of authorised
representative of the Company

With effect from 4 January 2019,

(i)  Mr. Zhang Yonghong has been appointed as the executive Director
and as the chief executive officer of the Company and has resigned
as the co-president of the Company;

(i) Mr. Liu Xiaodong has been re-designated from the co-president of
the Company to the president of the Company;

(iiiy  Mr. Liu Jun has resigned as chief executive officer of the Company,
but continues to serve as the chairman of the Board;

(iv) Mr. Lee Wee Ong has resigned as an executive Director, but
continues to serve as the chief financial officer of the Company;
and

(v)  Mr. Lee Wee Ong has ceased to be the authorised representative of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules (the “Authorised
Representative”) and Mr. Zhang Yonghong has been appointed as
the Authorised Representative.

Following the appointment of Mr. Zhang Yonghong as the chief
executive officer of the Company in place of Mr. Liu Jun on 4 January
2019, the Company has complied with the Code Provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in respect of the separation
of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer. For more details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 January
2019.
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2)  Change of non-executive Director and member of the remuneration
committee of the Company

With effect from 27 May 2019,

(i)  Mr. Sun Yang has been appointed as the non-executive Director
and a member of the remuneration committee; and

(i) Mr. Wong Chi Keung resigned as the non-executive Director and
ceased to be a member of the remuneration committee.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14
May 2019.

Fulfilment of Zhongfu Performance Target and Huijia
Performance Target for the year ended 31 December 2018
Zhongfu Performance Target

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 5 January 2018 entered into
between Daxiong Holdings Limited, Hanson He Holdings Limited, Richard
Chen Holdings Limited, Grand Novel Developments Limited (&T25E AR
/xa\]) and Mr Moustache Holdings Limited (together, the “Zhongfu Sellers”)
and the Company, the yearly target amount of the audited consolidated
distributable profit (after-tax) of Zheliang ZhongFu International Technology
Company Limited* CINT AR BEE R ARR A A], “Zheliang ZhongFu"))
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB16,900,000 (“Zhongfu
Performance Target”). According to the audited consolidated financial
statement of Zhejiang Zhongfu for the year ended 31 December 2018
dated 26 March 2019, the audited consolidated distributable profit (after-
tax) of Zhejiang Zhongfu for the year ended 31 December 2018 exceeded
RMB16,900,000. Accordingly, the Zhongfu Performance Target for the year
ended 31 December 2018 has been met, and 3,014,250 new shares have
been released to the Zhongfu Sellers, representing approximately 0.27% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
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Huijia Performance Target

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 5 January 2018 entered
into between Mu Hao Holdings Limited, Hong Rui Technology Holdings
Limited, Chance Technology Co. Ltd and Vanguard Technology Holdings
Limited (together, the “Huijia Sellers”) and the Company, the yearly target
amount of the audited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders

of Beijing Huijiayuantian Cultural Media Company Limited* (it

AXALEEBPR AT, “Beijing Huijia”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB26,000,000 (“Huijia Performance Target”). According to
the audited consolidated financial statement of Beijing Huijia for the year
ended 31 December 2018 dated 27 March 2019, the audited consolidated
distributable profit attributable to equity holders of Beijing Huijia for the year
ended 31 December 2018 exceeded RMB26,000,000. Accordingly, the Huijia
Performance Target for the year ended 31 December 2018 has been met, and
10,909,090 new shares had been released to the Huijia Sellers, representing
approximately 0.97% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of this report.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
18 December 2015, 8 January 2016, 28 March 2017, 13 January 2017, 3

February 2017, 5 January 2018 and 26 March 2019.

Refreshment of the Existing Scheme Limit on the grant of

options under the share option scheme

Pursuant to the passing of resolution by the then shareholders of the
Company in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 22 May
2015, the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme")
was adopted. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted/to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme was 66,774,661 Shares
(the "Existing Scheme Limit"”). Prior to the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company (the "EGM”) held on 24 May 2019, only 844,661 Shares
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Connected transaction in relation to provision of loan to
Chongqing Micro-credit

On 20 June 2019, Jb REHAE Bi{Z ST A R AT (Beijing Huicong Internet
Information Technology Co., Ltd*) (“Beijing Huicong”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with M EEF I EEFHER A7 (Chongging Digital
China Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.*) (“Chongqing Micro-Credit”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which Beijing Huicong
agreed to grant to Chongging Micro-Credit an unsecured loan in the principal
amount up to RMB100,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 8% per annum
for a period of one year.

On 25 November 2019, Beijing Huicong and Chongging Micro-Credit entered
into a supplemental agreement to the Loan Agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to adjust the maximum principal amount of the Loan from
RMB 100,000,000 to RMB140,000,000 (the “Revised Loan Principal”).

Save for the aforesaid amendment, all other terms in the Loan Agreement
remain unchanged and continue in full force and effect.

Chongging Micro-Credit is indirectly owned by the Company and Digital
China Holdings Limited (“Digital China"”), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00861), as to 70% and 30%, respectively
and is principally engaged in development and operation of the microcredit
internet financing business in the PRC and development of micro-finance
products such as trade finance, personal credit and guaranteed loan. As at
the date of this report, Digital China and its associates held approximately
22.64% of the total issued shares of the Company. Digital China is thus
a substantial shareholder and a connected person of the Company at the
issuer level. Therefore, Chongqging Micro-Credit is a connected subsidiary
of the Company under the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of each of the Loan and the Revised Loan
Principal is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the entering into of the Loan
Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
June 2019 and 25 November 2019.
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Grant of Options

The Board had resolved on 20 June 2019 to grant 10,000,000 share options
(the "Options”) to subscribe for the ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”) at an exercise price of HKD4.6
per Share to Mr. Zhang Yonghong (“Mr. Zhang”), the executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company under the Share Option Scheme,
subject to the acceptance of Mr. Zhang Yonghong.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
June 2019.

Renewal of Scheme Limit and Grant of Awarded Shares
pursuant to the Employees Share Award Scheme

As the existing maximum number of shares (“Awarded Shares”) to be granted
under the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board on 17
November 2011 (the “Scheme”) has almost been utilised, on 8 July 2019,
the Board resolved to amend and renew the existing limit to grant Awarded
Shares up to 56,000,000 Shares (“Renewed Scheme Limit”), representing not
more than 5% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 8 July
2019.

On 8 July 2019, after the approval of the Renewed Scheme Limit and
pursuant to the Scheme, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of
28,100,000 Awarded Shares, representing approximately 2.51% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, to 26 selected employees, of which
4,000,000 Awarded Shares is granted to Mr. Zhang, and 2,000,000 Awarded
Shares is granted to Mr. Liu Xiaodong, an executive Director and president of
the Company, subject to the vesting periods and conditions of the grant of
the Awarded Shares.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
17 November 2011, 14 June 2012 and 8 July 2019.
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Withdrawal from Listing of Convertible Bonds

On 20 November 2014, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
(the "Subscription Agreement”) with Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited
and China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited
(the "Joint Bookrunners”), under which the Joint Bookrunners have agreed
severally and not jointly to subscribe and pay for, or to procure subscribers
to subscribe for, the bonds to be issued by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of HKD780,000,000 (the “2014 Bonds”), on the terms
and subject to the conditions set out therein. In addition, the Company has
agreed to grant the Joint Bookrunners an option to subscribe for all or any
of the additional 2014 Bonds to be issued by the Company upon exercise
of an option granted by the Company to the Joint Bookrunners under the
Subscription Agreement to subscribe up to an additional HKD200,000,000
aggregate principal amount of 5.00% Bonds due 2019. The 2014 Bonds
are convertible into Shares in the circumstances set out in the terms and
conditions in relation to the 2014 Bonds at an initial conversion price of
HKD11.28 per share (subject to adjustments).

The issue of the 2014 Bonds in the principal amount of HKD780,000,000 was
completed on 27 November 2014.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2014 Bonds, the 2014
Bonds matured on 27 November 2019 and the Company redeemed the
entire outstanding principal amount of the 2014 Bonds in the sum of
HKD51,600,000 plus interest accrued thereon on 27 November 2019 and
there were no outstanding Bonds in issue. Accordingly, the listing of the 2014
Bonds has been withdrawn from the Stock Exchange.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
November 2014, 27 November 2014 and 27 November 2019.
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Discloseable Transaction in relation to Capital Increase

Agreement of Zhongmo International

On 24 December 2019, Beijing Huicong Zaichuang Technology Co., Ltd*
(tRERBAIRHLBERR AR, “Beijing HC Technology”), a limited liability
company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, together with Kashen Tongyuan Information Technology
Limited Partnership* (BB REE{E BERMTAR A B2, “Kashen Tongyuan™),
Zhuhai Zhongmo Tongyuan Consulting Service Co. (limited partnership)* (¥
AR RERARRBEE(BERAR)), Tianjin Yanglinyuan Management
Consulting Partnership (limited partnership)* CKZBEINRERARASBZDE
(BIR4&%)), and Beijing Qiyuan Sifa Investment Management Partnership
(limited partnership)* (I R RBEHREEEEROE(BRER))
entered into a conditional capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with “Liling Partnership” to increase the registered capital and
capital reserves of Zhongmoyun (Hunan) Construction Science and Technology
Co., Ltd.* (R IEEZZ LR AR A 7], “Zhongmo International ).

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, Liling Partnership agreed to
make a total capital contribution in the amount of RMB40,000,000 (the “Total
Capital Contribution”) to Zhongmo International (the “Capital Increase”).
Out of the Total Capital Contribution, RMB20,000,000 will be directly
invested into Zhongmo International as capital increase and the remaining
RMB20,000,000 will be invested into Zhongmo International as convertible

bonds.

Immediately prior to the date of the Capital Increase Agreement, the
equity interest held by the Group in Zhongmo International is 36.80%,
however, pursuant to the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in
Concert Agreement”) dated 10 April 2019 entered into between Beijing HC
Technology and Kashen Tongyuan, Kashen Tongyuan is acting in concert with
Beijing HC Technology and thus the consolidated financial results of Zhongmo
International has been consolidated with the Group's financial results and is a

subsidiary of the Company.

Upon completion of the Capital Increase, the Group's equity interest in
Zhongmo International will be approximately 35.38% (assuming that Liling
Partnership converts all convertible bonds into shares). The Acting in Concert
Agreement will be terminated and Zhongmo International will no longer be a
subsidiary of the Company and will be accounted for and consolidated in the
Group's financial results as an associate using equity method. The transaction
contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement therefore constitutes a

deemed disposal of Zhongmo International under the Listing Rules.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24

December 2019.
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Amendment to Terms and Conditions of Convertible Bonds
On 16 November 2018, the Company and Chance Talent Management
Limited (the “Investor”) entered into an investment agreement, pursuant to
which the Investor agreed to subscribe for the 2.85% guaranteed and secured
notes due 2020 (the “Notes”) and the 2.85% guaranteed and secured
convertible bonds due 2020 (the “2018 Convertible Bonds”). Completion of
the issue of the Notes and the 2018 Convertible Bonds has taken place and
the Notes and the 2018 Convertible Bonds were issued to the Investor on 3
December 2018.

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a supplemental deed
(the “Amendment Agreement”) with the Investor pursuant to which
the Company and the Investor have conditionally agreed to amend the
conversion price under the 2018 Convertible Bonds from the initial price for
conversion of HKD6.00 per new Share to be issued upon conversion of the
2018 Convertible Bonds (the “Conversion Share”) to the adjusted price for
conversion of HKD4.50 per Conversion Share (the “Adjusted Conversion
Price”), subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
instrument constituting the 2018 Convertible Bonds.

As at the date of this report, no Conversion Shares have been issued pursuant
to the Convertible Bonds. Based on the Adjusted Conversion Price and
assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the Adjusted Conversion
Price, the Convertible Bonds will be convertible into 22,222,222 Conversion
Shares, representing approximately 1.98% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report and approximately 1.94% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the Conversion
Shares.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2018, 4 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE CONVERTIBLE
BONDS ISSUED BY THE COMPANY

2014 Bonds

Details of the issue of the 2014 Bonds are set out on page 67 in the section
headed “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” of this report. The net
proceeds from the 2014 Bonds was approximately HK$761,629,000.
The amount of net proceeds brought forward as at 1 January 2019 was
HK$51,600,000, which had been fully utilized for micro-finance business
expansion and general corporate purposes. The Company had redeemed
the entire outstanding principal amount of the 2014 Bonds in the sum
of HK$51,600,000 plus interest thereon on 27 November 2019. As at 31
December 2019, there was no remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2019.

& 5] AT R IR & 35 2 R AR I R4
R=ZZ—NF+—HF+/"8 ' K"AFHEChance Talent
Management Limited([1&& & IR & i - 12
I REERERE_T_Z ¢ |5 2 2.85% & 1R
REERZER([EER]) T _ZFF|822.85%
BERIBEEFITRERES (22— NEARRKRE
#]) BER - \EFEAMRESFBETETH R
BR-Z-\FABRRESFER_Z-N\F+A=
BRI EE T ©

REZZE-NAF+ZA=+—0  ARREKREEFL
—tmaEZR(HERTHE ) - Fit - KRR REES
BIREREBER] —Z— \FrBRREFZERE &
ﬁﬁfifﬂiTﬁ%E%&i%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ
BALE6.0078 T ([HRBEHD DERT L REEEIE
B (4. 5078 T ([ EHRBBAARAE ) - AIRBEER =
T— NFARRIE 77 2 B Z R AR SR -

ARG BE - WERE AT RRESF I TIRRARD -
IR ARIRRRME KRR T R E IR A IR E

BEgin o A RRESBEIRE22,222,222K %
MR - HERARABRARE B BB BITRALY

1.98% AR RS BITHARB D IR Z BBITIRAL

1.94%

BHESHN - BENARAAMA-T—N\F—
A+AA - —B-N\F+-AMAR-E-AF+=
A=+—B22MH -

RRTBRT 2T RRESR ZRERE
Rz

—E-NEEH

FAZT - NFEF2FBRHINEARE B8
BRI | —E5E678 c —TE—MEEE 2B
FIBFEEH /761,629,0008 7 - R—ZE—NF— A
— RARI A 2 FTiS RIB £ #8/351,600,0008 7T © &
HAEDEREEBBRM—REERS - ARFE
REZZ—NFt+—AZ+EHAE=Z—NOFEHFAKE
BAGREMERES1,600,0008 TERFESEEENL T
—NEFSH o RZE-AF T ZA=+—BAERER
Fr{SRIE ©

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif



Y o W NN

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEEF WM DA

2018 Convertible Bonds

Details of the issue of the 2018 Convertible Bonds are set out on page 69 in
the section headed “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” of this report.
The net proceeds from the 2018 Convertible Bonds was approximately
HK$96,880,000. The amount of net proceeds brought forward for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$96,880,000. Set out below is the details of
the use of proceeds from the 2018 Convertible Bonds during the year ended
31 December 2019:

—E-N\FAUBRRES

BRI \FURRES 2 FBEIIRNERE
[BEEBFA®MAONT] —f$698 - —F— \FA[#&
B& (&% 2 T8 5 IE F RE#) 596,880,000 7T - B E
—E-NE+ A=+ BILFERREE L FRER

% #/396,880,000/87T ° TIIMABE_F—NF
tToA=t—RLEFE=F—
BREZ S -

NEAE SIS

Expected
Proceeds Unutilized timeframe
utilized during proceeds  for utilizing the
Percentage the year ended as at remaining
of total net 31 December 31 December unutilized net
proceeds 2019 2019 proceeds
BE-Z-hF Rn=
Intended +=A=+-—-H F= BAKT
use of net FiSERE FifSEA TS LHEEEHA A AFTEHRE
proceeds RERZ BO PSR FERIE BEZEHEER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTHET THET
Transaction services enablement %2 5 BR#% 1% I
and supply-chain financing HrEsBRE 50%-55% 48,440 - -
Information services related B IRISHERE
technology development BiifE - BEERE
including user-generated [REIAA RKEMTEN
content and apps 20% 19,376 - -
Data services related Software- &% IRTS 1B R A&
as-a-Service, internet of things ~ BIARTS - 48448 2
and blockchain applications IR 1R RE FAE 20% 19,376 - -
General purposes —RH# 5%-10% 9,688 - -
Total st 100% 96,880 - -
Note: B & -
The expected timeline for utilising the remaining proceeds is based on the best estimation BB T P1S A2 FEIR IR AR EEH AR H&E

of the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be subject to change based
on the current and future development of market conditions.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,120,552,210 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: 1,120,402,210).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had repurchased
1,100,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange, all of which had been cancelled.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, an aggregate of 1,250,000 Shares

were issued upon exercise of the share options granted under the share
option schemes of the Company adopted in 2003 and 2015, respectively.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

PSSR + R ACRIS 2 16 SR B R T AR -

BXEE
R-F—NET-A=+—R  ARARETRHE

87/41,120,552,2100% (== — /A4 : 1,120,402,210
B&) o
HEZT-NFTZA=+—HLFE  ARAERN

b 22 FTBE (11,100,000 i 10 + AR HE Frkds
HE-_Z-AF+=ZA= + BIEEE  A#
1,250,0000& i) BERBEAR B D RIN ZTZT=F K

—ﬁiﬁmz,ﬁﬁw&ﬁ%&sz,ﬁﬁﬂx@%fﬂiﬁﬁ

T e



Uy wy .

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEEF WM DA

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The success of the Group depends on the skills, motivation and commitment
of its staff. As at 31 December 2019, the total number of Group’s employees
was 2,043, among which 735 were sales staff, 1,009 were responsible for
editorial, marketing, research and development, operations, products and
customer service, and the remaining were employed in other divisions of the
Group.

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the salary level in the industry, with share options
granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to the
Group’s employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes, training
programmes and educational subsidies.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group participated
in a state retirement plan whereby the only obligation of the Group with
respect to such plan is to make annual contributions to the scheme calculated
at 20% of the basic salaries of the employees. The Group has no obligation
for further pension payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond these
annual contributions.

Details of the retirement scheme are set out in note 9(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to
RMB730,000,000 (2018: RMB372,376,000) are secured by properties,
investment properties and land use right, which is classified as right-of-use
assets after the adoption of HKFRS 16 with carrying value amounting to
RMB979,310,000 (2018: RMB771,035,000). Bank borrowings amounting to
RMB248,500,000 (2018: RMB251,500,000) are secured by restricted bank
deposits with carrying amount of RMB282,171,000 (2018: RMB276,003,000).

Other borrowings of RMB27,816,000 (2018: same) were provided by a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, in which 25% of its equity interest
is effectively held by Mr. Liu Jun, an executive director of the Company. The
borrowings are unsecured, mature ranging from 2020 to 2022 and bear
average interest rate of 6.34% per annum (2018: 6.34% per annum). During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the corresponding interest expenses was
approximately RMB 1,763,000 (2018: RMB1,763,000).
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The remaining other borrowings are provided by independent third parties
and bear interest rate ranging from Nil to 14.3% per annum (2018: 4.5%
to 13.7% per annum). Out of these other borrowings, RMB442,218,000
(2018: RMB519,917,000) are either guaranteed by the executive directors
and non-executive director of the Group (2018: same) and secured by certain
inventories, right-of-use asset, listed equity shares held by the Group and the
equity of certain subsidiaries (2018: certain loan receivables, inventories, and
listed equity shares held by the Group).

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group's operations are principally located in the PRC and majority of
the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors
believe that the Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

IMPORTANT EVENT(S) AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

COVID-19 Outbreak

After the outbreak of COVID-19 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a
series of precautionary and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the country/region. The Group will pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the date of
this report, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on the
Group's operation and financial performance as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.

Huijia Performance Target for the year 2019

According to the audited consolidated financial statement of Beijing Huijia
for the year ended 31 December 2019 dated 27 March 2019, the audited
consolidated distributable profit attributable to equity holders of Beijing Huijia
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is less than RMB23,660,000, being the
minimum level of Huijia Performance Target for the year ended 31 December
2019. According to the subscription agreement dated 5 January 2018 entered
into between the Huijia Sellers and the Company, no Shares will be released
to Huijia Sellers, and the Company will buy back and cancel 10,909,091
Shares with HK$1. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 March 2020.

Save as the above, there were no significant events after 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no contingent liability (2018: Nil).
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year including an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance, an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business and events affecting the company that
have occurred since the end of the financial year are set out in the sections
headed “Management’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report. These discussions form part of this report of Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in pursuing
long-term sustainability, and is committed to improving environmental
sustainability and will closely monitor the performance. Further information
of the Group’s policies and performance about the environment would be
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
to be published within three months from the publication of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out in the PRC while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied in all material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact on its
business and operation.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 123 to 124.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in retained earnings of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 128.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2019, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB2,175,718,000 (2018: RMB2,555,224,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 6 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. Liu Jun (appointed on 12 September 2016)
(Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Yonghong (appointed on 4 January 2019)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Xiaodong (President) (appointed on 1 June 2018)

Mr. Lee Wee Ong (appointed on 9 September 2011
(Chief Financial Officer) as an independent non-executive

Director and re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 July 2012 and
resigned on 4 January 2019)

Mr. Guo Fansheng Note (appointed on 21 March 2000)
Mr. Li Jianguang Note! (appointed on 1 August 2006)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Nete ! (appointed on 12 September 2016 and

resigned on 27 May 2019)

Mr. Sun Yang (appointed on 27 May 2019)

Mr. Zhang Ke Note2 (appointed on 28 March 2003)
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei Nete 2 (appointed on 1 November 2011)
Ms. Qi Yan Note2 (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Notes:

1 non-executive Directors

2 independent non-executive Directors
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In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s articles of association
("Avrticles of Association”), Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Zhang Tim
Tianwei will be subject to, and eligible offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Sun Yang will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 18 to 22.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Zhang Yonghong and Mr.
Liu Xiaodong has entered into a director’s service contract with the Company,
whereby each of them has accepted the appointment as an executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years from 12 September 2019, 4 January
2019 and 1 June 2018 respectively, which may be terminated by either party
giving three months’ prior written notice or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei and Ms. Qi Yan has entered into a director’s service contract
with the Company, whereby each of them has accepted the appointment for
a term of one year, and the service contracts shall be renewed automatically
at the end of the term. Either party may terminate the service contract at any
time by giving one month’s prior written notice or in accordance with the
terms of their respective service contracts. There is no service contract, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in respect of any director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the year are set out in
notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no arrangement in which the Directors
waived their remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES,UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying (a) EERAATRORABRA 2FA

Shares of the Company

Total Percentage of

Class of Personal Family Corporate Other ~ numberof shareholding
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests interests interests interests Shares (approximate)
RERDL
R &t fBAER E4L i ARk His REEH (#4)
LiuJun Ordinary Beneficial owners 80,150,000 - - - 80,150,000 7.15%
s LR EREAA (note 1)
(FzH1)
Zhang Yonghong Ordinary Beneficial owners 14,100,000 - - - 14,100,000 1.26%
FoKAL LR EnBEEA (note 2)
(fitzk2)
Liu Xiaodong Ordinary Beneficial owners and 6,000,000 - 62273,79% - 6827379 6.09%
B/hE =R Interest of controlled (note 3) (note 3)
corporation (f33) (f33)
EREAAR
REHIA AR
Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owners 57,749,015 - - - 57,749,015 5.15%
P& LR EREBA (note 4)
(Fizta)
Li Jianguang Ordinary Interest of controlled - - 32,000,384 - 32,000,384 2.86%
B3 ER corporation (note 5)
S IUNG (F3ts)
Notes: BT

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 50,220,000 Shares, of which
44,870,000 Shares have been provided as security to Chance Talent
Management Limited for the Notes and the 2018 Convertible Bonds and (ii)
29,930,000 underlying Shares derived from the Options held by Mr. Liu Jun.

ZERADNRZEROIE BB LEMEG)
50,220,000% % 15 (E 144,870,000 & 15 B 12
#tF Chance Talent Management Limited{E/A22
BT — \ARREH 2 ERm) k(i) ERE
% 1.2 29,930,0000% FERBARR (S

2. Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 100,000 Shares; (i) 4,000,000 ZERARRNR 2B ¢ (i) 100,00008% 1%
underlying Shares derived from the awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhang (NRKALEERBR_ZT——F+—A++tH
Yonghong under the employees’ share awarded scheme adopted on 17 PR 8 B AR 10 SR BV R RN P e 2
November 2011 and (ii) 10,000,000 underlying Shares derived from the 4,000,000 18 BANE 15 K (ii)aR K 4T 2 A Fris R A%
Options held by Mr. Zhang Yonghong. 1% % 210,000,000 FHRAAL 15 ©

3. Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 4,000,000 underlying Shares ZERERDRIZERBIE ()8R EPTFEEE

from the Options held by Mr. Liu Xiaodong; (ii) 2,000,000 underlying
Shares derived from the awarded shares granted to Mr. Liu Xiaodong under
the employees’ share awarded scheme adopted on 17 November 2011
and (ii) 62,273,794 Shares held by Wisdom Limited (a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong) which have been provided
as security to Chance Talent Management Limited for the Notes and the
2018 Convertible Bonds. Mr. Liu Xiaodong is deemed, or taken to have,
interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom Limited pursuant to the SFO.

fi&48 % I 2 4,000,000 A8 AR 1 (i) 211N %
ERBR-_Z——F+—A+HBRAZEER
&5 B2 B = B 1% 2R AR 15 2 J 2 2,000,0008%
HRBARL D R (i) Wisdom Limited(ER 2/ NS84
2EEREE 2 NR)FA 262,273,794
(ZE R 15 B2 F Chance Talent Management
Limited{E BEEM =T — N\ AR ES 2 IIF
M) o MEBEEHRBEGD - B/ NREEREE
ARERWisdom Limited g = 2 5BALH
BB R -
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4. Such interest in the Company comprises:

(@ 35,000,000 Shares (long position) held by Mr. Guo Fansheng; and

(b) 22,749,015 Shares (long position) held by a trustee of a trust of
which Mr. Guo Fansheng is a founder of a discretionary trust who can
influence how the trustee exercise his discretion.

5. The references to 32,000,384 Shares relate to the same block of shares
of the Company held by Venture Profits Holdings Limited, the entire share
capital of which is held by Malvern PTC Limited, a trustee of a trust of which
Mr. Li Jianguang is a founder of a discretionary trust who can influence how
the trustee exercise his discretion. Accordingly, Mr. Li Jianguang is deemed,
or taken to have, interested in the said 32,000,384 Shares pursuant to the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated
30 November 2003, among others, a share option scheme (the “2003 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Following the listing of the
Shares being transferred from the Growth Enterprise Market (now known
as GEM) to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014, the
2003 Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company was terminated on 10
October 2014. Notwithstanding the termination of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme, the outstanding options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme (the
"Qutstanding Option”) shall continue to be valid and exercisable until the
expiry of the option period (i.e. the period to be notified by the Board to the
grantee in the offer of options, but in any event shall not exceed 10 years
from the date of the offer).

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(@) B4 %A FFE 2 35,000,000 4% B 7
(FE) : &

(b) PMEFEZXFEAFE 222,749,015 %
HUFE) ERBAELEREEET
ZElEA - AT EEEATTE ARG -

5. FT$8.2 32,000,384 % % 15 £ Venture Profits
Holdings Limited T AR &R —#tAR 1D HREE -
&% A 82 2 ERE A fMalvern PTC Limited({
RZERANEE ERTRAEERDER
FEZ BRI A - AT ERFEAITEERNISE
bt ARERFESF RSN - TR AEREE
SRVER Lilt32,000,384MR A% 15 A #E RS o

@iﬁﬁ%%%'ﬁﬁ§$&$“ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ
AR AR EE (&R ES KR GREXV
)2 - KRG RESTS - BEREES L
EIRBIEXVEE 7R ESHD EAME AR T REE P
ZEMERSAR (BERIEES LA EENERIK
NESWEFRRIEEE 2 EEAR) - B A
RRABIRIE ﬁ&%a%%%%Z%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
FAEESAR - SRBEETABMNEARR
R R SRR ©

BT

—ER-FRRETS
BREANREAR-_TE=F+—A=THZKRE
ERZER - (AR ER) ARRHRA—RERE S
(=TT =FEREE]) - KON -—F—mF+A
T B BB RGEME E R ET& - AR R TR
Z_vvfiﬁk%?ﬂﬁ_i E¢+H+Eﬂ
CEE_TT=FERESBCSKL =T
:i%h%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁiZ%h%U*ﬁﬁ%%
RSB R R A 1T - B =B AR fEm (B
‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁ@%ﬁ'ﬁ%Eﬂ
ERTAEHEBELN B HE105F) -



Uy N .

Report of the Directors

ESERE

The principal terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme were summarised in the
paragraph headed “Share Options” under the section headed “Statutory and
General Information” in Appendix V of the prospectus of the Company dated
8 December 2003. Set out below is a summary of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme:

Purpose and participants of the 2003 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to directors or employees of the Group and other persons who in the
sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue and the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all the outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2003
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% (or such other percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the time of such
grant.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue in
respect of the Outstanding Option is 5,268,000 Shares, representing 0.47 %
of the issued shares as at the date of this report.

Time of exercise of the options

An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period to
be notified by the Board to the grantee in the offer of options, but in any
event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of offer.

Notwithstanding the termination of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
Outstanding Option shall continue to be valid and exercisable until the expiry
of the option period.

Minimum holding period

The Board may offer to grant any options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the options to be held and/or
the performance criteria to be satisfied before such options can be exercised
and/or any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.
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Amount payable on acceptance of the Outstanding Option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an Outstanding Option
to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
and to have taken effect when a letter in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine signifying acceptance of the Outstanding Option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within 7 days from the offer date (inclusive of the offer date).

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
offer fate, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal

value of a Share on the offer date.

2015 Share Option Scheme

On 22 May 2015 (the “Adoption Date”), a new share option scheme
was approved by the shareholders of the Company (2015 Share Option
Scheme”). Set out below is a summary of the 2015 Share Option Scheme:

Purpose and participants of the 2015 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2015 Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-
time and part-time), directors, consultants, customers, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, business partners or service providers of
the Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group
("Participant(s)”). The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the aforesaid classes of persons of any member of the

Group to be a Participant of the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme is 66,774,661 Shares,

representing 5.96% of the issued shares as at the date of this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each Participant under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
Options) under the 2015 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

An Option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period
to be notified by the Board to the grantee (the “Grantee”) in the offer of
Options (the “Offer”), but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of offer (the “Offer Date”).

Minimum holding period

The Board may offer to grant any Options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the Options to be held and/or
the performance criteria to be satisfied before such Options can be exercised
and/or any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

Amount payable on acceptance of the Option

An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an Option to which the
Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have
taken effect when a letter in such form as the Board may from time to time
determine signifying acceptance of the Option duly signed by the Grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company within 7 days
from the Offer Date (inclusive of the Offer Date).

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and
notified to a Participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
Offer Date, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the Offer Date.

Remaining life of the 2015 Share Option Scheme
The 2015 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

The principal terms of the 2015 Share Option Scheme were summarised in
the Appendix of the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2015.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS i ARITEE 2 BB AR

B RS

RIZB—NF+_A=+—08 BE_ZZT=FE
Rt R T —AFEEREAE R FURESH
75,348,000/ 8% (7 < FERRE M ARTTEE - EFBRIEZT
T = FHERMERT B T 25,268,0000% Ak i K —F

Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2019, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
75,348,000 Shares granted, which comprise 5,268,000 options granted
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme and 70,080,000 options granted under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme, were outstanding, details of which were as

follows: — R FEEHER T 270,080,000/ EEAAE - BRAFIS
Ul
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at

price 1 January during during during 31 December

Name of grantee Date of grant per share 2019 the Year the Year the Year
R=Z-h&

RRALR RiiAH BRITEE —-A—-H FREL FRTRE FRRA

HK$ (Note 1)

BT (KHzE1)
Directors
s
Liu Jun (note 15) 13 October 2017 6.476 29,930,000 29,930,000
2B (MiE15) “E—tETATZH
Zhang Yonghong (note 15) 20 June 2019 4.6 10,000,000 10,000,000
FoKAL(FitzE15) ZE-NERAZTH
Liu Xiaodong (note 15) 19 July 2018 4.6 4,000,000 4,000,000
B (FEE15) —E-NELATNE
Senior management
BREERE
Lee Wee Ong (note 14) 3 April 2013 4.402 1,500,000 1,500,000
Lee Wee Ong(fff3£14) “E-=4WA=H
(note 15) 19 July 2018 46 2,200,000 2,200,000
(FFzE15) —E-N\EtATNE
Wu Lei (note 15) 19 July 2018 4.6 3,500,000 3,500,000
R (Fiz15) ZZ-NEtATNH
Song Bingchern (note 15) 19 July 2018 4.6 3,000,000 3,000,000
Rk (HEE15) ZE-NELATNE
Other employees
HitfEg
In aggregate (Note 2, 14) 7 April 2010 0.82 1,438,000 (1,250,000) 188,000
A3t 14) ~T-TFNALA
In aggregate (Note 3, 14) 28 March 2011 1.108 200,000 200,000
AT (M3 - 14) —ET——F=f=F/\H
In aggregate (Note 4, 14) 18 November 2013 9.84 9,972,000 (6,592,000) 3,380,000
At (M4 - 14) —E-=F+-AtN\R
In aggregate (Note 5, 15) 19 July 2018 4.6 23,300,000 (5,850,000) 17,450,000
Bat(tEEs - 15) “E-N\ELATAR
Total 79,040,000 10,000,000 (1,250,000  (12,442,000) 75,348,000
w5t
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Notes:

1.

Each Option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the expiry
of twelve months from the date of the grant of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$0.82 granted on 7 April 2010, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the Shares
comprised in his or her option (less any number of Shares in respect of which the
Option has been previously exercised), commencing from the first and second
anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28 March 2011, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the Shares
comprised in his or her Option (less any number of Shares in respect of which the
Option has been previously exercised), commencing from the first and second
anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$9.84 granted on 18 November 2013, the
relevant grantees may exercise Options up to 10%, 20%, 40%, 70% and 100%,
respectively, of the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of
Shares in respect of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing
from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant
of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$6.476 granted on 13 October 2017, the
relevant grantees may exercise Options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%,
respectively, of the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of
Shares in respect of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing
from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant
of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$4.60 granted on 19 July 2018, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100%, respectively, of
the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of Shares in respect
of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$4.60 granted on 20 June 2019, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100%, respectively, of
the Shares comprised in his Option (less any number of shares of the Company in
respect of which the option has been previously exercised), commencing from the
first, second and third anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

1 employee have been granted Options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 188,000 Shares at HK$0.82 per Share.

2 employees have been granted Options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 200,000 Shares at HK$1.108 per Share.

16 employees have been granted Options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 3,380,000 Shares at HK$9.84 per Share.

13 employees have been granted Options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 17,450,000 Shares at HK$4.6 per Share.

e
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The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 7 April
2010, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB12,527,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$0.82 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 79.8%, expected
life of Options ranging from 3.4 to 5.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.865%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28 March
2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 77.4%, expected
life of Options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 3 April
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,754,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.402 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 75%, expected
life of Options ranging from 9.1 to 9.6 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 1.111%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18
November 2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB50,125,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$9.84 standard deviation of expected share price returns of
71.5%, expected life of Options ranging from 4.7 to 7.9 years expected dividend
paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate 1.915%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other
comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 13 October
2017, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB100,356,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$6.476 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 62%, expected
life of Options 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0.9% and annual
risk-free interest rate 1.745%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price
movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.
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11.  The fair value of Options granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme on 19 July
2018, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB70,258,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.6 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 70%, expected life
of Options 10 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free
interest rate 2.13%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of
the Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

12. In respect of employees resigned during the period whose Options have not
been vested, such Options are lapsed, and the share compensation costs
recognised previously are credited to condensed consolidated final statement of
comprehensive income.

13.  The values of Options recognised in share-based compensation reserves are
subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation of the
valuation model.

14. The Options were granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme.
15.  The Options were granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

16. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on
which these Options were exercised was approximately HK$3.06 per Share.

Save as disclosed, no options were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the
Year. Details of the value and movement of the share options during the Year
are also set out in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements for the
Year.

1.

12.
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EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award
scheme. For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 November 2011.

On 8 July 2019, after the approval of the Renewed Scheme Limit and
pursuant to the Scheme, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of
28,100,000 awarded shares, representing approximately 2.51% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, to 26 selected employees, of which
4,000,000 awarded shares is granted to Mr. Zhang Yonghong, an executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company, and 2,000,000 awarded
shares is granted to Mr. Liu Xiaodong, an executive Director and president of
the Company, subject to the vesting periods and conditions of the grant of
the Awarded Shares.
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The Awarded Shares which remain outstanding as at 31 December 2019 are  RZZT—NF+ZA=+—1 ' HARFEB 2 EZHRD

set out below: ;AT -
As at Granted Vested As at

1 January during during 31 December
Name of Grantee Date of grant 2019 the Year the Year 2019
ARAER R A —A—H FRAKRHE FRER
Director
i
Zhang Yonghong 8 July 2019 4,000,000 4,000,000
SRIKAL “T-NFEANH
Liu Xiaodong 8 July 2019 2,000,000 2,000,000
ZR “T-hFEANA
Senior management
BREEE
Lee Wee Ong 8 July 2019 800,000 800,000
Lee Wee Ong —ZE-NFELANER
Wu Lei 8 July 2019 1,800,000 1,800,000
RE “E-nEFtANB
Song Bingchen 8 July 2019 1,800,000 1,800,000
Rk —ET-NFLANE

Other employees

Hitigg
In aggregate 23 November 2011 2,649,780 (521,001) 2,128,779
= —Z—F+—A=+=H
17 January 2014 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
—T—NF—HF++tH
8 July 2019 17,700,000 17,700,000
“T-NEtANH
20 August 2012 8,351,000 8,351,000
—E-—F7\A=+H
Total 13,000,780 28,100,000 (2,521,001) 38,579,779
st

Details of the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme during the — BREIARFE R G SENEHE] 2 ZEIR (DB IRE SR
Year are also set out in note 32(d) to the consolidated financial statements for ~ F/E 2 & I BRFHE32(d) °
the Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER =
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN #8
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of substantial RZZT—hFE+=A=+—8  REQ T HEF[HE
Shareholders (not being Directors and the chief executive of the Company)  EHEE (F35 BB 5 R EEHIEXVER) Z M5 & iE
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated B T EABIZEE L R EEHIEXVEE2RE3
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified ~ A EFZBMEAQE KRBT - WAL AR R BB EE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part 5 K EiE §HI1E33615FE B2 X AR Z
XV of the SFO and required to be entered in the register maintained by the ~ EFERE(WIFBBEXARAITHAT)WT ¢
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

REQBRG R
B

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

as at
Name of Shareholder Class of Shares Long position Short position  Capacity 31 December 2019
R=B-hF
+-A=t-AH
BRRES B8 IR 6285l b4 E20i) ZREBNES T
Talent Gain Developments Limited Ordinary 253,671,964 Beneficial owner and 22.64%
LB (note 1) interest in controlled
(FzET) corporation
ERBEAK
AR
Digital China Holdings Limited Ordinary 341,314,821 Beneficial owner and 30.46%
HNEIBIERER DA TiEk (note 1) interest in controlled
(FzET) corporation
ERBEAK
AR
China Construction Bank Ordinary 123,810,461 Interest in controlled 11.05%
Corporation L@ (note 2) corporation and person
BRI TIRID BRR AR GEY) having a security

interest in Shares
XESATERERES
AN A EUN

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Ordinary 123,810,461 Interest in controlled 11.05%
PRESREFREEAR TR (note 2) corporation and person
GEY) having a security

interest in Shares
Xt RERRER
I in R E R 2 (A

Chance Talent Management Ordinary 123,810,461 Interest in controlled 11.05%
Limited AR (note 2) corporation and person
GEY) having a security

interest in Shares
Xt N mERRER
B REREZ A
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Notes:

Save
been
other

Such interests in the Company comprise: (1) 230,263,964 Shares held by Talent
Gain Developments Limited; (2) 23,408,000 Shares held by and Unique Golden
Limited; and (3) 87,642,857 underlying shares derived from the subscription
of Shares by Digital China Holdings Limited pursuant to the formal sale and
purchase agreement dated 19 May 2017. Unique Golden Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Talent Gain Developments Limited, which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Digital China (BVI) Limited and indirectly wholly
and beneficially owned by Digital China Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 861). Therefore, Talent
Gain Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Unique Golden Limited, and each of Digital China (BVI) Limited and Digital China
Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Talent Gain
Developments Limited and Unique Golden Limited.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (1) the convertible bonds (i.e. the 2.85%
guaranteed and secured convertible bonds due 2020 issued by the Company)
subscribed to by Chance Talent Management Limited on 16 November 2018
which may be fully converted to 16,666,667 Shares; and (2) 107,143,794 Shares
held by Chance Talent Management Limited as person having security interest.
Chance Talent Management Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by CCBI
Investments Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by CCB
International (Holdings) Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by
CCB Financial Holdings Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by
CCB International Group Holdings Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 939) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 601939). China Construction Bank Corporation is owned as to
57.11% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Therefore, all of the abovementioned
companies in this note 2 and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Chance Talent Management Limited pursuant to
the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had not
notified of any interests or short positions of substantial Shareholders or
persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

e

ZERNARAR ZEEBIE (1) B Talent Gain
Developments Limited#48 2 230,263,964 817
(2)EUnique Golden Limited# % 223,408,000 %%
?m RQERERSHA-ZE—t+FRAATINAZER
BB - wMNBISIZERER AR ZBERG PP R
287,642,857k A% 5 © Unique Golden Limitedg
Talent Gain Developments Limited®= & Bz A © M
Talent Gain Developments Limited8lfiDigital China
(BVI) Limited 2 & B /5 0 i1/ BB IR B IR A F)
(ER I RBE 2P 70 (IR 5% - 861) ) A2 EE
#=i#A © Bt - Talent Gain Developments Limited#
E{ERUnique Golden Limitedffiig A 2 B {n i A 1
%5+ MDigital China (BVI) Limited K48 512 AE B R
NEIE B W E ERMTalent Gain Developments Limited
KUnique Golden LimitedFfr#%% 2 f& {7 P A S o
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i % 5 o Chance Talent Management Limited F
CCBI Investments Limited& & Bz # 4 + M CCBI
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Bl - mEREE (ER) GR AR BETERIZE
REBARZEE=ER - MBETSRIZERER AR
AETEREEZERERAAZEERESR - METT
Bl R B IR A PR A R B R R RITIRID B R A A
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The connected transactions of the Company are set out on page 65 in the
section headed “Management'’s Discussion and Analysis” in this report.

Save as the connected transactions disclosed in this report, all the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statement did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company which are subject to the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions in note 45 to the consolidated financial statement were
provided under the service contracts of relevant management and thus were
all fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Also, as the loan granted by the Group to Hui De Holding Co., Ltd., an associate
of the Group was conducted on normal commercial terms, such financial
assistance was fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules from time to time in respect of the aforementioned
connected transactions.

There is no continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2019 which is subject to annual review
and disclosure requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group's customers are mostly small and medium sized enterprises in the
PRC and certain well-known companies. The five largest customers of the
Group together accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total turnover for
the Year. Most of the Group’s revenue is derived from B2B trading platform
and online products. The major customers of trading platforms include a
large number of small and medium sized enterprises and factories. The sales
contracts are entered according to orders. Online products mainly consist
of B2B member service and online advertising. The sale agreements have a
term of one or two years, which, depending on different contracts, shall be
renewed by the customers upon such sale agreements expired. As the price
of each online product is not significant and the online products are sold
to a large number of customers, each customer’s contribution towards the
Group's revenue is relatively small. Therefore, the Company merely relies on
individual customers.

The Group’s major suppliers are as follows: (i) the major suppliers of B2B
trading platform are large-scale factories and traders; (ii) the suppliers of
online products provide search engine and promotion services, allowing our
paid members to have a higher exposure of their products by getting more
search engine hits and promoting their products and achieving transactions.
The five largest suppliers of the Group together accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s total purchases for the Year. We currently have four search
product suppliers which are leading search engine providers like Baidu and
360 Search and the respective service contracts with them are renewed on a
yearly basis.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) has an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 24
July 2003 with written terms of reference based on the guidelines set out in “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang Ke and Ms. Qi Yan and a non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jianguang. Mr.
Zhang Ke is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the annual results of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 and has met with external auditors and discussed the
financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code disclosed in
this report, during the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had
complied with the code provisions of the Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or interest
in any company that materially competes or may compete with the business
of the Group or any other conflict of interests with the interests of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation or an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that the independent non-executive Directors are or have remained
independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices. This
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of the said persons. Such provisions were in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and remained in force
as of the date of this report. The Company has also arranged appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of potential legal action
against Directors and other officers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had repurchased

1,100,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of
HK$3,439,665, all of which had been cancelled.

Details of the repurchase of Shares by month is shown below:

Number of
shares repurchased

BEROGHE

May 2019 1,100,000
—E-NF1A
Note: The aggregate price paid excludes expenses paid for the share repurchased.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Highest price

paid per share
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AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. There has been
no change in the auditors of the Company for the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
HC Group Inc.
Liu Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2020
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This corporate
governance report describes its corporate governance practices, explains the
applications of the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code"”) and deviations, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code save for the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the Code as set out below. The Company believes that by achieving
high standard of corporate governance, the corporate value and accountability
of the Company can be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be
maximised. The Board has continued to monitor and review the Company’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and
other guidance notes were issued to the Directors and senior management of
the Company to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, upon the appointment of Mr. Liu Jun
as the chairman of the Board, Mr. Liu Jun performed both the roles as the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, which
deviated from the said code provision. After evaluation of the situation of
the Company and taking into account the experience and past performance
of Mr. Liu Jun, the Board was of the opinion that it was appropriate and
in the best interests of the Company for Mr. Liu Jun to hold both positions
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company as it helped to
maintain the continuity of the policies and the stability of the operation of
the Company. Furthermore, the Board considered that this arrangement did
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company as a majority of the Board members were non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and the Board
met regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group
and all Directors were properly and promptly briefed on such matters with
adequate, complete and reliable information.

Following the appointment of Mr. Zhang Yonghong as the chief executive
officer of the Company in place of Mr. Liu Jun on 4 January 2019, the
Company has complied with the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code in respect
of the separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4
January 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
set out in code provision D3.1 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the
Board has reviewed and monitored: (a) the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices; (b) training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management; (c) the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the Company's
code of conduct; and (e) the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures
requirements.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 20 March 2006, the Board also adopted written guidelines on terms not
less than the required standard of dealings for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Prior to the adoption
of such an internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
employees, relevant employees who had in their possession of price-sensitive
information were formally briefed on the dealing restrictions in relation to
the securities of the Company at management meetings during the reporting
period.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report, the Board
comprises nine (9) Directors, of whom three are executive Directors, three
are non-executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board provides
the Company with a wide range of expertise and experience, and plays an
important role in the work of the Board and brings independent judgement
on issues relating to the Company’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of
the Company have been duly considered. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her duties
effectively and efficiently.
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In full compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises the benefits of diversity of Board
members, and will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experiences
and diversity of prospect appropriate to the Company’s business need
prospectus.

The Board as at 31 December 2019 comprised:
Executive Directors
Liu Jun (Chairman), Zhang Yonghong (Chief Executive Officer), Liu Xiaodong

(President)

Non-executive Directors
Guo Fansheng, Li Jianguang, Sun Yang

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhang Ke, Zhang Tim Tianwei, Qi Yan

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among any members of the Board.
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Board meetings and general meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, 5 Board meetings and
2 general meetings were held and the attendance record of the meetings by
each Director is as follows:

Attendance
General
Meetings

Board
Meetings

Executive Directors

Liu Jun 5/5 2/2
Zhang Yonghong 4/4 2/2
Liu Xiaodong 5/5 2/2
Lee Wee Ong I7Al N/A

Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng 4/5 0/2
Li Jianguang 5/5 0/2
Wong Chi Keung 3/3 0/2
Sun Yang 2/2 N/A

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke 5/5 2/2

Zhang Tim Tianwei 5/5 2/2

Qi Yan 3/5 0/2
Notes:

(1) Two general meetings of the Company were held during the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

(2)  Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been invited by the Company but some of them were unable to attend the
general meetings held during the year due to other engagements. The non-
executive Directors actively participates in the Board and will attend the general
meetings of the Company if possible.

(3) Board meetings at which relevant Director is required to abstain pursuant to the
Listing Rules and/or the Articles of Association of the Company are excluded.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss
the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.

The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any) in the
meeting. Drafts of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors
have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman
ensures that management will supply the Board and its committees with all
relevant information in a timely manner. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the accounts and statement.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities reserved
to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board delegates day
to day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible
for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and
policies; approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Company and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company's affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended the board meetings.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials to
enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations and the
Board'’s polices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has circulated to Directors training materials relevant to the directors duties
and responsibilities and prepared a training record and the Directors have
reviewed the training materials.
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During the reporting period, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations, and
the individual training record is summarised below:

Attending seminar(s)/
relevant materials

Executive Directors

Liu Jun YES
Zhang Yonghong YES
Liu Xiaodong YES

Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng YES
Li Jilanguang YES
Sun Yang YES

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke YES
Zhang Tim Tianwei YES
Qi Yan YES

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the existing non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Li Jianguang, Mr. Sun Yang, Mr.
Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei and Ms. Qi Yan was appointed for a
fixed term of one year, subject to rotation and/or re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company, as specified by the Articles of Association
of the Company. Under the code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment and every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

On 10 November 2006, a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company to approve the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association to ensure compliance with the Code. Pursuant to the amended
provisions of the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed, and that
all Directors are properly briefed and have received all relevant information
prior to each meeting.

The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the implementation of corporate
strategies of the Company. The chief executive officer of the Company is
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Company.

During the reporting period, upon the appointment of Mr. Liu Jun as
the chairman of the Board with effect from 27 March 2018, Mr. Liu Jun
performed the roles as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company, which deviated from code provision A.2.1 of the
Code. After evaluation of the situation of the Company and taking into
account the experience and past performance of Mr. Liu Jun, the Board was of
the opinion that it was appropriate and in the best interests of the Company
Mr. Liu Jun to hold both positions as the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company as it helped to maintain the continuity of the policies and the
stability of the operation of the Company. Furthermore, the Board considered
that this arrangement did not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company as a majority of the
Board members were non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors and the Board met regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Group and all Directors were properly and promptly briefed
on such matters with adequate, complete and reliable information.

Following the appointment of Mr. Zhang Yonghong as the chief executive
officer of the Company in place of Mr. Liu Jun on 4 January 2019, the
Company has complied with the code provision A.2.1 of the Code in respect
of the separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4
January 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 March 2006. As at
31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Liu Jun (executive Director), Mr. Sun
Yang (non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-
executive Director) and Ms. Qi Yan (independent non-executive Director).
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee was responsible for
formulating and recommending the Board in relation to the remuneration
policy, determining the remunerations of executive Directors and members
of the senior management of the Company, and reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme and share award
scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-related
issues. The Remuneration Committee consulted with the Chairman and/or the
chief executive officer of the Company on its proposals and recommendations.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling it
to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and when
necessary. For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Liu Jun 2/2
Zhang Ke 2/2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 2/2
Wong Chi Keung 2/2
Qi Yan 2/2
Sun Yang N/A

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

At the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held in the period under
review, the members of the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy and discussed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for the forthcoming financial year.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined based
on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/or
prevailing market conditions. The Company has also adopted the share option
scheme and share award scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

With effect from 20 March 2012, the Company established the Nomination
Committee and written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
have been adopted. As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this report, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee was Mr. Liu Jun (executive Director)
and other members include Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-executive Director).
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board, identifying individual suitably
qualified to become Board members, selecting or making recommendation
to the Board on selection of individuals nominated for directorship, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the structure and
composition of the Board.

In August 2013, amendments to the written terms of reference of the
nomination committee have been adopted. In deciding the composition
of the Board, the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural and academic
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and terms of
services.

Board nomination policy

The Company has also adopted a Directors nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) in compliance with the Code, which establishes criteria and
procedures for the Nomination Committee to identify and consider individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships with
reference to the formulated criteria. The Board is ultimately responsible for
selection and appointment of new Directors.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the Nomination
Committee, has used its best efforts to ensure that Directors appointed to
the Board possess the relevant skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
critical to the Group’s business to enable the Board to make sound and well
considered decisions.

Nomination Process

When receiving the proposal to appoint a new Director, the Nomination
Committee shall (i) assess the candidate with reference to the selection criteria
as set out in the Nomination Policy to determine the eligibility of the candidate
to serve as a Director; (ii) if there are more than one desirable candidates, rank
them in accordance with the needs of the Company and the merits of each
candidate; and (iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of a suitable candidate to serve as a Director (if applicable).
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When a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election, the
nomination committee shall (i) review the overall contribution and services
of the retiring Director and the performance and level of participation of the
retiring Director; (i) assess whether the retiring Director satisfy the selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy; and (iii) if considered appropriate
make recommendations to the Board, which may make a recommendation to
the Shareholders to re-elect the retiring Director at a general meeting.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account the Board Diversity Policy, a
candidate’s: (i) character (in terms of his/her honesty, integrity, motivation or
reputation); (i) merits (in terms of his/her qualifications (including professional
qualifications)), skills, knowledge, accomplishment and experience related to
the business and strategy of the Company and the diversity in gender, age,
ethnicity, length of service and skill set of the Board in accordance with Board
Diversity Policy of the Company); (iii) business expertise; (iv) whether sufficient
time can be devoted to properly discharge its duties as a member of the Board
and a member of the board committees; and (v) his/her independence (if an

independent non-executive director is being considered).

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine Directors, including
three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors, who come from diversified professional and
education backgrounds and one of them is a woman. The Company considers
that the Board possesses a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
The Nomination Committee had reviewed the diversity of the Board during
the year ended 31 December 2019 and will continue to review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that the Board Diversity Policy is

implemented effectively.

The Board shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its effectiveness

on a regular basis or as required.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings. The Individual attendance record of each members is as

follows:

Members Attendance

Liu Jun
Zhang Ke
Zhang Tim Tianwei
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records
to the Board enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the
financial statements and other financial disclosures. In full compliance with
Rules 3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) was established in July 2003 and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive Director). Other members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Li Jianguang (non-executive Director) and Ms.
Qi Yan (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company'’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Audit Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Li Jianguang 2/2
Qi Yan 172

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 and met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31 December 2019. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, there
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or discussion of the external auditors.

Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.
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The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 119 to 122 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Company. The Group's external
auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Group in relation to the year ended 31 December 2019
comprised fees for audit services of HKD7,340,000 and interim review services
of HKD1,400,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretarial services and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne is appointed as the
Company Secretary. The primary contact person in the Company for Ms.
Kwong in relation to corporate secretarial matters is Mr. Lu Qingguo, the
Board Secretary and the General Counsel of the Company.

Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
in relation to the professional training requirements during the year ended 31
December 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEHMBHRRZEM - ARINEZEENE R 2 &
FERAIREFE 11981228 -

S 5 A

EREZ BB EE BINEREE 2 Z T REEINEZX
HEMEIT 2 EMERB T - BRI ERETEY
BEARNRER T EEEATF L o AEBINE
BEI AR ERCGESMERT - B2 -2 14F
TZA=Z+—ALEE  BSENAEEINEIZE
R 2 37 Bl &2 15 4% IR 75 B 37,340,000/ 7T & HAER
BIBR7%1,400,000/8 7T

REME
ARBRIRAESBIRIG MR IR A R EIRTS - BB
LT REERARNE - ARREBL TR AR
ESTHZIBBRATARARREFTEWERERE
EREFREERLE -

BE-_Z-NF+A=+-HILFE  BHEFLL
B ERAIE3.200EE I BT -
EREEASHMH

BRERB D cEREEAEHS
MesENT -

Number of individuals

Nil to HKD2,000,000

£ %2,000,000/ 7T
HKD2,000,000 to HKD4,000,000
2,000,000;% 7T £4,000,000/ 7T
HKD4,000,000 to HKD6,000,000
4,000,000/ 706,000,000/ 7T

N -
2019
—E-NF
- 2
2 2

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



A O |/ AU

Corporate Governance Report
SEEARRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard the Company’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’
effectiveness. The Board conducts review of the Company’s internal control
systems annually, covering financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In such review, the Board has considered factors
such as changes since the last review; scope and quality of management’s
monitoring of risks; incidence of significant control failings and weaknesses
identified; and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 28 December 2015, the Company adopted the new terms of reference of
the Audit Committee in accordance with the amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report made by the Stock
Exchange, which is applicable to the accounting period beginning from 1
January 2016. In addition, the Company set up a Group Audit Department in
order to enhance the internal control and risk management of the Company.

Each year, external auditors will also report on issues in the Group’s internal
control and accounting procedure which have come to their attention during
the course of their audit, if any.

The Audit Committee periodically considers the risk management and internal
control issues raised by the Company’s management, if any. The Audit
Committee will then review the remedial plans proposed by the management
in addressing the issues and will then be submitted to the Board for
consideration.

For the year of 2019, having reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems, no critical internal control issues have been identified and the internal
control systems is considered effective and adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to provision E.1.5 of the Code, the Company should have a policy

on payment of dividends.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) to enhance
the transparency of dividends distributed by the Company and to facilitate the
Shareholders and potential investors to make informed investment decisions.

There is no guarantee or assurance that dividends of any amount will be
declared or distributed in any given period and the Company does not have a

predetermined dividend payout ratio.

The declaration, payment and form of dividends is at the absolute discretion
of the Board, and the final dividend to be declared shall be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders, memorandum and articles of association (the
"Articles”) of the Company, the laws of Cayman Islands, any other applicable

laws and regulations and the provision of this Dividend Policy.

The Board in determining the level of dividends will consider factors including:

1. distributable profits;

2. earnings;

3. current financial position;

4. capital requirements and expense planning;

5. past financial performance;

6. past and forecasted cash flows;

7. business status and strategies;

8. future operations and profitability;

9. shareholder interests; and

10. restrictions on dividend payments (including contractual restrictions,

such as restrictions stipulated in any financing agreements).

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at a general meeting and to the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC, any applicable rules and regulations, the
Articles and after consideration on the factors above, the Company may
also declare interim dividends, final dividends, special dividends and/or any
distributions that is considered appropriate by the Board in addition to the

annual distributions.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer their
enquiries (if any). The Directors make their efforts to attend annual general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, there is no significant change in the
memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The proceedings of the annual general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding
corporate governance.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The Directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
Shareholders and investors promptly.

A Shareholders’ communication policy was reviewed and updated on 20
March 2012 to comply with code provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

7/F, Tower A1, Junhao Central Park Plaza
No.10 Chaoyang Park South Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100026

The People’s Republic of China

Email: ir@hcgroup.com

Tel No: (8610) 6592 0059

Fax No: (8610) 6592 0068

Investor Relations Department of the Company handles both telephone and
written enquiries from Shareholders from time to time.

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/or
relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ right to convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by

the Company.

Procedures for putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a notice signed by a Member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

is posted on the Company’s website at http://www.hcgroup.com.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HC GROUP INC.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HC Group Inc. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 304, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

B B

HEREEEROTRRE
(REEHEAML T HIBR L A])

=

RMEETHNRE
EHREEBRARATEHBIERAR ) REWNBEAF
ATHTEIEER ISR E 12323048 WA 75

W& B

e RIZE-NFTZA=+—HHEHTBHRR
=

e HEZHIEFEMNGHZEKEGER

o HEZBHULEFENGHERZEIK

e HEZHILFEMNAHRERER X

o AOHUBERME  BRIESHERRNE -

EMHWE

HMRR  ZEEHUBBRRCBREBETESHIAE
BECEBMEREENEEMTEHRKRT &
SER-_Z-AF+-A=+—ANAHHBIRR R
HBEZREFENAHUBRERGHASRE
W2 BIREBC R RGN IR EE R EZ R EE

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif



Y 1 W

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENERE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

e Impairment assessment of loans to customers

o Deemed disposal of Hunan Zhongmoyun Constructions Science and

Technology Co., Limited

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BREEITER

A O/ AIEA

ARETEEe

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAPNFANAEEREFENSEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill and intangible
assets

BEREREERENG

Refer to note 2.13, note 4.1(a) and note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ERRA IR FNE2.13 ~ W15t4.1(a) RHTE19 -

The Group’s goodwill and intangible assets were allocated to eight
cash-generating units ("CGUs”), namely (i) anti-counterfeiting
products and services; (ii) online services — B2B2C business; (iii)
online services — garment industry; (iv) integrated marketing and
advertising services; (v) financing services; (vi) trading services —
cotton industry; (vii) electronic appliance e-business; and (viii) new
technology retails solution.

EEECBHEREVEAEE A RE \ERSELBL((ReES

B ) - BN R m R IRFS ¢ (iR - PRAS —B2B2C SR ¢ (iR
RITRG LR (WESBHERESRGE - V2RRE ()RS

IR —FRIETTE ((iDB2RE TR R(IFIRMTERRT R -

As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.13 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is required to, at least
annually, test goodwill for impairment.

WINE DTS IRERMI 512,13 2 G RTECER At -
REEETRENR -

Management performs the impairment assessments, with
supports from external valuers, and determines the recoverable
amount of each CGU by using value in use calculation ("VIU").
These assessments involved significant management judgments
and estimates in the determination of valuation model and the
application of assumptions in the model, including forecast revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin, customer attrition rate, terminal
growth rate, and volatility and cost of equity for discount rate used
in the projection period.

EINSIEERZ BB T - EEBETRENEYIREREEE
AE(EREEDEESERSELEM 2 AIREESE - ZF

S35 R ETE B B A (S RS 0 2R
ERAE R A - BERTENSREMA 2 BAHEE RAE R
% EFE  BERAE  BEERERAREZEHRBA
R -

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessments over
the goodwill and intangible assets balance, we have performed the
following:
REHEEEBEEE B EEEGRIERENGE - M2
HETATR I -

e  Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash flow
forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of all the CGUs,
and the process by which they were drawn up, including
testing the underlying calculations and comparing the
forecasts to the latest budgets approved by the board of

directors;
o B EXBERAEReELBMETERBEETEZR

KR REFRR 2ERED REEE 2 BRE - SRR
SAE MR RS RS SR EFERLR

e Understood the impairment triggering events through
discussions with management and corroborated
management'’s assessment With supporting evidence;

o FEBEEEENWEAHERIEEIERE 2 BHY

BOREZ E

e Assessed the key assumptions including the revenue growth
rate and gross profit margin in the forecast with reference
to management’s development plans and past results of
operation the CGUs;

s ZEEREZERAENNEGEFEEMZBELLESE @ 7T
HEHNEERR - BERAZHEWARRRRENE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNFHNAEERERTSE

As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group recognised
impairment for the goodwill and other intangible assets over
(i) online services — garment industry CGU and (ii) integrated
marketing and advertising services CGU amounted to
RMB38,426,000 and RMB258,213,000, respectively.
HPNETTRIER S - ERERO)G ERE - RETEZRSES
BR(NBEEHEMEERE R EE B ERHE LA ME
FREERE 55l AARE38,426,0007T K& A R ¥ 258,213,000

JC °

For the online services of garment industry CGU, the financial
results were underperformed as the operating environment for
online services provider on garment industry continues to be very
challenging. While for the integrated marketing and advertising
services CGU, the financial performance was significantly below the
budget resulted from the downtrend of the automotive industry in
China, which is the major customer sector of this CGU.
MIREITER BB REEFELMTME - ARRETEZR L
PRI HIER 2 LB RIF TR MKE - BRI EERIR RIS -

Mt e EENEERBZREEESEMMS » ARTPETET
¥MBRSEFBUCTFERTFITX)2TTBE  BEUBRE
RIENTEE -

After the impairment losses recognised during the year,
the Group had goodwill and intangible assets amounted to
RMB1,542,408,000 and RMB1,010,218,000 respectively as at
31 December 2019. Management concluded that no further
impairment would be necessary.

REANERFAEBER R_T-—NAF+ZA=+—8 &
%@2%%&%%%%“%%/\@%1 542,408,0007C & A R #
1,010,218,0007T « EIRER ABAMELIE—FRIE

We focused on this area because the size of impairment losses
recognised during the year was significant and the management'’s
impairment assessments involved significant judgements and
estimates.

HAZIN SR - DTHRAFERRAZNESESEELR - M
ERT IR R E IR E R E A R hE -

e Assessed the discount rate used in the forecast by comparing
to relevant external sources of market data with the assistance
of our internal valuation specialists;

o  FERANMHEZTRZRE - LLBUERSNEI TS EIEIR - &Y
ETERIPT R Z B IR =

e Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions to which recoverable amount are most sensitive;

and
e FMEEREYSRSFEZITWBIERE L FBMBBEITIER
DT &

e Assessed the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by management.

o FMABEREZEIZELINELEMELSAEER  BReHRY
HEH

We found management'’s judgements and estimates applied on the
impairment assessments in respect of the goodwill and intangible
assets were supported by available evidence.
BMRRERERRE LB E ERERE R &80 2 K fh5T15
BB -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BREEITER

A O/ AR

ARETEEe

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAPNFANAEEREFENSEE

Impairment assessment of loans to customers
BEFEFRENE

Refer to note 3.1(b)(iii), note 4.1(e) and note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FRHE UL TR TE3. 1)) ~ H7E4. 1(e) R 15121 -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has gross loans to
customers of financing services business amounted to
RMB1,684,983,000 and accumulated impairment allowance of
RMB140,014,000 was recognised.
RZZE-NE+A=+—0  EXEEXRTERRBES
BEZ@EAANRNE1,684,983,0007T  WEBRRRHER
& AR #5140,014,0007T °

HKFRS 9 applies a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL")
approach. The measurement of ECL requires the application of
significant judgement and increased complexity which include
the identification of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models.
BAVBREEAFESFEAAEHEREEBE((EHEERE
BiE1)%E - HEEEBE I EFRERERHEAERCE
ML eEBMGEEEREER AR ENEHEEBER
AR |RER -

We focused on this area due to the size of the balance of
loans to customer is significant to the consolidated financial
statements and the impairment allowance involved significant
management'’s judgements and estimates.

BMZINULEER - THAREFPERARUSHUBRRE
R - MRERE S R EE BN ERAE R

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessment of
loans to customers, we have performed the following:
RAEEREHEPERRENER - AT ETATIE
7 :

o Understood, evaluated and validated the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring of loan receivables;

o BREE - TEURIEUEIE  CHEREZEEKRERZHE
HAEPIES 2 525 - B SEERRL

e  Understood, evaluated and validated the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls over impairment
assessment of loan receivables, which relate to
management’s identification of loss stages and estimation
of the amount of provisions;

o B FHEUREBRKETORER LIEH 2 R REE
B BOFRERERBNEREERIAR MG
HhE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) ARETEE®

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EREER RANETNAEERREEEE

° Obtained and evaluated management’s assessment on
the expected credit loss allowance of loan receivables,
and assessed the reasonableness of the expected loss
rates. We corroborated and validated management's
assessment based on the historical settlement pattern
from past years and market research regarding the
relevant forward-looking estimate;

e HERIEEEENREWERTEREEBBRE 2T
i WAHEEHEIER 2 A8 - BRMZBBATFEZ
ESHEERREBAEAE LG 2 m5HE - BRER
IR EIRE 2 5

. Carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the
accuracy of the aging of loan receivables as at the
reporting date used in management’s assessment;

o DA RBITER - ARBERENGARERSH
A2 FEME SR AR B 2 R R

° For forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
appropriateness of economic indicators selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application; and
assessed the reasonableness of the estimate by comparing
them with industry data; and

o HAIEMAEMS  RMELEREITERE  KBEBR
RONERA B - BB ETEBIBET B Mk
mErz BB &

. Checked major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group’s record.

o HASEZSHMERESEREEBEEAMCANEE
SRR o

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the impairment assessment of loans to customers
were supported by available evidence.

BMRE  BERERTFEFRENLIEL 2 HIES B EE
o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

RREEITER

A O |/ A

ARETEEe

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANFANAEERERESNSEE

Deemed disposal of Hunan Zhongmoyun Constructions
Science and Technology Co., Limited
BEHENEPEERERNEARAE

Refer to note 4.1(b) and note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ERHE IR M4, 100) R T2 26

On 26 December 2019, the Group’s subsidiary, Hunan
Zhongmoyun Construction Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
("Zhongmo"), completed its share placement in which an
independent third party subscribed 1.96% of newly issued
shares in Zhongmo with an aggregate consideration of RMB20
million.

RZZE-NE+ZAZ+B - EXEMEQGNREPES
BEMBFARAR(THE DX » —2BLE=AER
BEARM2,0008 TRBEHE1.96%FETHMD

Upon completion, the Group no longer controls the board
of Zhongmo and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zhongmo
Group”) but continue to exercise significant influence over
Zhongmo Group. As a result, Zhongmo Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group and has since been accounted for
as the Group's investment in associates in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Such transaction was recognised as a deemed disposal of
subsidiaries. A fair value gain on deemed disposal of Zhongmo
Group amounting to RMB246,797,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on the
fair value of the retained equity interest of Zhongmo Group.
TG BEETHEGFERENE AR (SE PES
B ) EEEETESEEAEATES - Bt - FEREET
AfEr BSEMBRR - Bz EFERERGHENEG O
MmAPARINE EEERBERRZRE - AR5
REBELEMB AR - RIEHERREEZ AFERSAR
#246,797, 000 TIREF EEBRNRERE R TERE MRS
ek R AR ©

In assessing judgement and estimate over the valuation, we
have performed the following:

REHESEEME 2 RERER - FRAISETUATIE

e Assessed the competency, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent external valuer used by management;

o AERBEEMABEIIMNEEHERMESRER - Bl
RAGEE

e  Understood and assessed the rationale of management
and external valuer on the identification of intangible
assets and methodologies used in the valuation based on
our knowledge of the business;

o HREMZEBMD BN GEREELEEM
ERRBRI B EERMEEMA 2T EZRE

o Evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology adopted by management and the external
valuer with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialists;

e FEBNIHMEZERZHE  MEEEERINEGAEMA
KRz EET Az @t
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETER

RREETEE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNFHNAEERERTSE

As described in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements,
the fair value of retained equity interest of Zhongmo Group is
determined by valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer engaged by the Group. The valuation involved significant
judgements and estimates in the determination of valuation model
and the application of assumptions in the model, including forecast
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin, terminal growth rate and
discount rate used in the projection period.

MINE GBS MR 26 P73 - R REBRB 2 REQAFE
B EEEZEZHEUEXMGEMETZHEMEE - EE[HE
A R ZAE A P B RS R E A A R i 5t - B4R TR R
MR FERHE WA ZIERE « EFE  HEERERYRE -

We focused on this area as size of fair value gains recognised
during the year was significant and the accounting and valuation
of this transaction required significant judgements and estimates
by management.

BB ESE - TRRFARRZATERESEER - Bit
RHZ G RIERAAEFTEERBFHERHE Rkt -

e Assessed the key assumptions including the revenue
growth rate and gross profit margin in the forecast with
reference to management’s development plans and past
results of operation of Zhongmo Group;

o ZSETEEIBERABNRTESEECBELLEESE T

HERZ FERE - BEENZHERAERERER

=

=

° Tested the mathematical accuracy of the forecast;

o RITERIZ BMEEREE

e Assessed the discount rate used in the forecast by
comparing to relevant external source of market data
with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists;
and

o FEBRNIAEEZERZWHE) - LLEABRIINED TS IR 2K
R FHETERIFT A BRIRE - R

e Assessed the term and conditions of the capital increase
agreement and discussed with management with respect
to the detailed terms of the transactions.

o EEEBEZERREN  TRERENREERS
2 B -

We found management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the accounting and valuation were supported by available
evidence.
BMRAEEEBR ST RE RIAERENFIE RIGEEFR
XFf ©
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 April 2020
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A O/ BEEA

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-ZT—h&+-A=+—HILEE

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Revenue THEUA 5 14,712,969 10,447,418
Interest income from financing services ARG PSS A 5 119,863 135,693
14,832,832 10,583,111
Cost of revenue SHE AR (13,903,827) (9,316,068)
Other income HUA 6 28,962 35,464
Other gains, net HAbYe= 558 7 272,453 258,181
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTSHEEZR (684,337) (722,858)
Administrative expenses 1THE A (420,957) (413,885)
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets P2 % £ 12 & B RUE K518 19 (296,639) -
Net impairment losses of financial assets TREEREERFE (97,629) (37,144)
Operating (loss)/profit S (E1R) 5 (269,142) 386,801
Finance cost, net BTSN 558 11 (159,943) (82,380)
Share of post-tax profits of associates DS N EIBR TR 23 13,593 28,014
Share of post-tax loss of SME—EEERE 23
a joint venture FRE 18 s 1E (5) -
(Loss)/profit before income tax TSR AT (B8 ) i 7 8 (415,497) 332,435
Income tax expense i8R 12 (44,268) (55,560)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER), &5 (459,765) 276,875
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hib2mE(EE), WA
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AEF 2 Rm B
Currency translation differences EHENZR 33 2,090 14,913
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss T & E#H 42 B
HA
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value ZAFEF AR EERA
through other comprehensive income ZeBMEE A THEEE
— Group —KREEH 33 1,100 (16,856)
- Associate VNGl 33 6,716 -
Currency translation differences for financial SAEMEEmEKRAZ 33
assets through other comprehensive income TRMEECEKIERZR 1,423 3,932
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, AFEZ2E(E1E) A
net of tax 4a%E - HIBRTIIE (448,436) 278,864
(Loss)/profit attributable to: AR AT IEE(E1E), S8
Equity holders of the Company RARERFBA (376,490) 275,610
Non-controlling interests PR i R (83,275) 1,265
(459,765) 276,875
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AEBTTT

Total comprehensive (loss)/income THATEEEE

attributable to: (B518), A
Equity holders of the Company RATE=FEEA (365,161) 277,599
Non-controlling interests FEVEIR MRS (83,275) 1,265

(448,436) 278,864

(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to the RARERFE ARG

equity holders of the Company (expressed in BRR(E18), B F

RMB per share) (ABRAREE)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR(ER),/EZF 13 (0.3360) 0.2462
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share FIRESE (BE1R) BF) 13 (0.3360) 0.2458

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read il & 4R 4 U s 7% FE B pa B i 55 — G BIE -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SOFBFBRR R

As at 31 December 2019 R-Z—hE+-_A=+—H

2019 PAONES]
—E—-hE —E—)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Land use rights —+ Hh sk PR A 15(a) - 161,934
Investment properties EME 16 770,831 623,829
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MK 18 64,139 533,787
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15() 214,305 N/A 73 FB
Intangible assets mEE 19 2,552,626 2,992,052
Long term deposits and prepayments REZ S RIEN A 20 3,568 5,604
Loans and interest receivables FEUE TR T B 21 42,257 103,160
Deferred income tax assets REFSHERE 38 46,969 31,292
Investments accounted for using equity method — EEFR#EZADIBR Z IRE 23 969,248 677,808
Finance lease receivables & TH & e s 29 176,266 25,000
Financial assets at fair value through other WAFEAHA
comprehensive income FEHBRAZEREE 27 65,387 95,247
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1ZAF{EET A2
SREE 27 20,592 16,758
Total non-current assets EREEELE 4,926,188 5,266,471
Current assets RENEE
Completed properties held for sale BIEHERIYEE 17 47,324 82,500
Finance lease receivables R A E EWIE 29 153,481 63,855
Loans and interest receivables BT 21 1,591,722 1,419,592
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BENRER
Hofth e W I8 20 487,412 281,079
Trade receivables FEURBE X 20 413,698 512,094
Contract related assets BHEEEE 5(b) 22,390 38,965
Inventories FE 30 147,523 354,984
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & AF{EFFABZZ
TRUEE 27 22,671 740
Restricted bank deposit ZRRFIBITIER 317 282,171 276,003
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 37 331,893 471,672
Total current assets MEEERE 3,500,285 3,501,484
Total assets BEE 8,426,473 8,767,955
Equity #x
Equity attributable to the Company’s EATEBEFEA
equity holders LR
Share capital &N 32 103,638 103,625
Other reserves Hib 33 3,152,947 3,092,149
Retained earnings BIEEs 766,586 1,141,955
4,023,171 4,337,729
Non-controlling interests IR ER 706,541 883,895
Total equity R 4,729,712 5,221,624
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 W-Z—HhE+-A=+—H

2019 2018
—EB-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETIT
Liabilities =V
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Non-current portion of bank borrowings RITIEE 2 IEREH D 36 480,000 368,000
Non-current portion of other borrowings HiEE ZIERIHE D 36 23,539 351,162
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(a) 17,397 N/A 7R3 3
Deferred government grants IEAE ST+ BN 34 155,958 165,808
Convertible bonds - liabilities portion ESE —BES D 37 - 83,145
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTHBE 38 236,517 274,100
Contract liabilities EHEaE 5(b) = 36,622
Total non-current liabilities IEmEaEess 913,411 1,278,837
Current liabilities P =R
Trade payables FERSERK 35 128,209 94,922
Accrued expenses and other payables EETE R L A RS FOE 35 130,551 282,652
Contract liabilities AHEE 5(b) 410,987 348,866
Current portion of bank borrowings RITIEE Z e a5 36 1,111,089 860,244
Current portion of other borrowings HEE 2 REED 36 689,773 547,932
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(a) 74,598 N/A i A
Deferred government grants IEIE AT 47 B 34 11,450 10,650
Convertible bonds - liabilities portion AR ES - BB 37 90,670 44,417
Other taxes payables HAb fEIE 39 90,488 25,882
Income tax payables FERIFRISHR 39 45,535 51,929
Total current liabilities mEAaELeRE 2,783,350 2,267,494
Total liabilities Hmafs 3,696,761 3,546,331
Total equity and liabilities HiEEREE 8,426,473 8,767,955

FI12323U4 B 26U BHRER_ST_EFMA
+HAEEESHETH TIESRRETTERSE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 304 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 17 April 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

LIU Jun ZHANG Yonghong
Director Director

2= RAKAL

E E

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in il & 3B 75k 5 35 FE B pa B B 31— B BI3E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EOERZBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-ZT—h&+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to the Company’s

Y WY -

equity holders
KARERIE AR
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
ke HthEE  ERkE Mt EERESR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT AR%TR ARETRT ARMTR AR%TR ARETx
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—-R&# 100,740 2,737,941 815417 3,654,098 803,031 4,457,129
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RERE BN
ELvd 7 - (63,515) 51,042 (12,473) (1,760) (14,233)
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-B-\E-A-R&H 100740 2674426 866450 3641625 801271  4,442,8%
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year REERN - - 275610 275610 1265 276,875
Other comprehensive income Ath2EEMA
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BRATESAEBZERA
through other comprehensive income, net of JeREEI N TE
deferred tax B RETHE - (16,856) - (16,856) - (16,856)
Currency translation differences EBEHER - 18,845 - 18,845 - 18,845
Total comprehensive income el - 1,989 275,610 277,599 1,265 278,864
Transactions with owners HRERBEARTZIRS
Issuance of shares in relation to contingent AAARELHETRD
consideration arrangement 2,964 163,620 - 166,584 - 166,584
Buy-back of shares B (114) 4.877) (114) (5,105) - (5,105)
Exercise of share options TR 35 177 - 212 - 212
Share based compensation PRGOS A2 EE - 74,580 - 74,580 - 74,580
Issuance of convertible bonds - equity BARES - REDS - 12,359 - 12,359 - 12,359
Non-controlling interests arising on business ERAREL ZIEERES
combination - - - - 81,509 81,509
Contribution from non-controlling shareholders of ~ MBZ FZERMRRE 2 T4
subsidiaries - - - - 11,789 11,789
Transactions with non-controlling interests BIRRERET IS - 169,875 - 169,875 (1,803) 168,072
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of a m—EHBARZ
subsidiary SERRERIRN 2 RE - - - - (1013 (10,136)
Total transactions with owners BEGRA AT RHH0R 2885 415734 (114) 418,505 81359 499,864
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=1+—-R#&H 103,625 3,092,149 1,141,955 4,337,729 883,895 57221624
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BOHERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the Company’s

equity holders
KARERE AR
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Re  Hth@E @Rk Mt ERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT AR¥Tn ARETRT ARMTR AR%TR ARET:x
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
TZR=T-RE&H 103,625 3,092,149 1,141,955 4,337,729 883,895 5,221,624
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 RE R BREER
B FE - - (2,146) (2,146) (4,589) (6,735)
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZT-nF-A—-R&H 103,625 3,092,149 1,139,809 4335583 879,306  5214,889
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year TEEEE - - (376490)  (376,490)  (83,275)  (459,765)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ARA
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BATEG AR 2ERA
through other comprehensive income, net of eREEZATE
deferred tax B8 MBEERE - 7,816 - 7,816 - 7,816
Currency translation differences EHESER - 3513 - 3513 - 3,513
Total comprehensive loss 2EEBEE > 11,329  (376,490)  (365161)  (83,275)  (448,436)
Transactions with owners RRERREAETZRS
Buy-hack of shares BERG (97) (2,840) (97) (3,034) = (3,034)
Exercise of share options TEERE 110 785 - 895 - 895
Share based compensation SARRA 3215 2 B - 80,685 - 80,685 = 80,685
Share purchase under share award scheme i BRI THRNEE - (21,247) - (21,247) - (21,247)
Redemption of convertible bonds - equity BB RES - RED D - (3,364) 3,364 - - -
Contribution from non-controlling MBLRAHERRE 2 TE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - 7,158 7,158
Transactions with non-controlling interests BIRERERETIRS - (4,550) - (4,550) (5,164) (9,714)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of BLNEINGPE R 2
subsidiaries iopdE) = = = = (2,554) (2,554)
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHEHBAR - - - - (3,204) (3,204)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 26) BIEHENBAR (Mz26) - - - - (85,726) (85,726)
Total transactions with owners BESHANEITIR 508 13 49,469 3,267 52,749 (89,490)  (36,741)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-Z-h%&
+ZA=T-RE&H 103,638 3,152,947 766,586 4,023,171 706,541 4,729,712

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in it &GRS B EN K fEERREMI P 5T —HFRI:8

conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EORETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-ZT—NAF+_-_F=+—HILFE

2019
“E-hF )
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBRLRE
Cash generated from operations WEEL7ES 40() 105,836 52,852
Interest received EHE 13,785 9.922
Interest paid BAFIE (138,136) (84,189)
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") income tax paid BiIREARARME([HE])
HiaRs (41,561) (82,750)
Net cash used in operating activities CEEHFA RS FE (60,076) (104,165)
Cash flows from investing activities REEBH RERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WENBARGIREAZES) 24 (35,742) (44,182)
Cash and cash equivalents derecognised at deemed disposal R {EiH EM B A RIAR IHFER
of subsidiaries ZESRBELEEY 26 (6,190) -
Additions of property, plant and equipment RNENE  BERE (130,039) (192,042)
Additions of intangible assets NEBFAE (773) (260)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BENREBHREIE 40(b) 925 808
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEBSARPTERE 1,890 12,037
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—REEEMBENE = 165
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value HERATEFAER
through profit or loss SREAEMSERE = 177,748
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value HERATEFAEMBZERAZ
through other comprehensive income SREERSHRE 15,000 -
Dividend received BUiRE 23,030 714
Loans to investment accounted for using the equity method B FREEF A 2% E (22,427) -
Loan repayment received from associates BEEDAIEEER 9,100 18,000
Loan repayment received from third parties and employees 245 E&EEJE REN = 6,054
Additions of investment accounted for using the equity EERER AR
method RE 23 (65) (26,330)
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMACRETE (145,291) (47,288)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—-Z

—NFETZA=t—RLEFE

the accompany notes.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2019
“E-NE
RMB'000
ARETR

Cash flows from financing activities MEEHELZRERE
Buy-back of shares BERH 32(a) (3,034) (5,105)
Purchase of shares under share reward scheme RER D RENEH Bl B R 1D (21,247) -
Exercise of share options il 895 212
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds BITAARES RS = 85,959
Repayment for the redemption of convertible bond B ATARES &N (43,280)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEERMGEE 919,400 511,380
Proceeds from other borrowings HuEEmMGHE 660,272 794,085
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETES (546,156) (397,300)
Repayment of other borrowings BREMES (823,848) (433,506)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEBRA (73,963) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FERERTE 7,158 11,789
Transactions with non-controlling interests IR ERET IR (9,714) (57,150)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries B AR 2 I Hﬂg

TR Z LB (2.,554) (10,136)
Increase in restricted bank deposit R GIRITF LM - (279,405)
Net cash generated from financing activities REZDELCRLFE 63,929 220,823
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁ

HD),/Bm (141,438) 69,370

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ﬁomw%&f%%% 471,672 401,918
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents ReRRESENIER

25 1,659 384
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year REZZEESRALEEY 31 331,893 471,672

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with e BFIR € 2 R E EREE P T X — ORI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT B mRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-ZT—h&+-A=+—HILEE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
HC Group Inc. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is 4th Floor, One Capital Place, P.O. Box 847, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The Company has its
primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the

following activities in the PRC:

—  Providing industrial internet trading platform and advertising
services through its B2B website “hc360.com” and offering
comprehensive [T-related product information by “zol.com.cn”;

—  Sales of goods through its B2B trading platforms;

- Providing SaaS (Software as a Service) services in 3C industrial
internet and new technology retail solutions in PRC;

—  Providing cross-industrial integrated marketing and advertising
services;

—  Providing anti-counterfeiting products and services and supply
chain management to enterprises;

—  Engaging in finance business; including micro-credit financing,
lease financing and factoring services;

—  Providing construction equipment rental services;

—  Sales of properties and provision of property rental and
management services via its 020 business exhibition centre;

—  Hosting exhibitions and seminars.

—REHR
BREEERAR(ARE])E—ERHASE
M2 BRAR - Het =R R 4th
Floor, One Capital Place, P.O. Box 847, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies ° AARIREBBEZHFAERR
A (B3RP ) ERE— L7 -

KRR A—EIREERAT « KQFREWE

RAGRBAIAEERPEEEREUTE

)

—  EBEB2BAUL[ hc360.com | IR E ¥
EMEARSRESRE - WEBF A
[zol.com.cn IRE2E 2 THEAEREE

— BREHEBBRZFARIHER

- RPEHRM3C T XM SaasS (R EIR
BRB LA MBERATE

—  RHEBTEESLHIESERE
—  REEREDBERRRBEAREEEE
IF

- WEEREY - BEEERRE  BE
THE R RIZIRTS

- RHRERBHEERT

—  ERHO20MERBTLHEWRLEH]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 26 December 2019, the Group’s subsidiary Hunan Zhongmoyun
Construction Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongmo”) completed
its share placement to an independent third party in which the
investors subscribed 1.96% of newly issued shares in Zhongmo with
an aggregate consideration of RMB20 million. Upon completion of
the above transaction, the Group’s interest in Zhongmo was diluted
from 36.80% to 36.08%. Following the completion of the transaction,
the memorandum of articles of Zhongmo had been revised, and the
acting in concert agreement that the Group entered into with another
shareholders as disclosed in Note 25 have also been terminated.
Accordingly, the Group only has right to appoint two directors out of
five positions in the Board of directors of Zhongmo, and will no longer
be able to control Zhongmo Group but continue to exercise significant
influence over Zhongmo Group. As a result, Zhongmo Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group with effect from 26 December 2019 and
Zhongmo Group has then been accounted for as investment in associates
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Such transaction was recognised as deemed disposal of
subsidiaries. A fair value gain on deemed disposal of Zhongmo Group
amounting to RMB246,797,000 was recognised as “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for
the Group consisting of HC Group Inc. and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with HKFRS
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS").

(ii) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEHEw)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
(iii) New and amended standards and interpretations (i) FEBETERAA 2 5T RAZIE55T £ B
adopted by the Group R2rE

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2015-2017
Cycle (amendments)

HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement (amendments)

HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures
(amendments)

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
(amendments)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of
adopting HKFRS 16, details of which are disclosed in note 2.2.
Most of the other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior period and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations issued but not yet
effective
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2019 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by
the Group.

2 FTESHBEBEw

2.1 REEEE)
(iv) BB RENZFETERRZ
b
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HBHHSE
AR B JB MR 1B I A 58 HIl AE J B A
EEMWERNRAZE T8
R R 2R

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on

or after
RZBERZEZ
BHEARBREN

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
EEEHERE 19K
EE e ERIE8R
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
“E-N\FUBHRESIELR
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
EHEGTERIZE395 -
BB EERE7H R
BB MEERIER
HKFRS 3
B ELERIZE35R
HKFRS 17
BBV EENE75R
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB REERF 105 K%
FRGRTERIE 285

Definition of Material (amendments)

EAZERERIA)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

ISR B E B ER

Hedge accounting (amendments)

R E R (1BETA)

Definition of a Business (amendments)

¥ ER(BETA)

Insurance Contracts (new standard)

Riga & (GFral281)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)

KREEHEBENTIREERE M2
BEHESFEEFTA)

1 January 2020
—T-FF—-A—H

1 January 2020

—E-TF—F—H
1 January 2020
—E-TF—HF—H

1 January 2020

—E-EF—-H—H
1 January 2021
—E-—F—-H—H

To be determined

FEE

None of these new standards and interpretations are
expected to have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with current year presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-Z—NF+_-_F=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEBEw

2.2 SHBUEREE

2.2 Changes in accounting policy

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Lease
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January
2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.31.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 7.1%.

The measurement principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that
date. The remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as
adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately after the
date of initial application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued)
(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used
the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics,

o relying on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous as an alternative to perform an impairment
review — there were no onerous contracts as at 1
January 2019,

e accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as
short-term leases,

e excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date
the Group relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17
and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued) 2.2 EHBEESEH(H)
(ii) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 (i) RERWEEBLHIREERFE16% 0
B2 2
RMB’000
ARETTT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZZ2-N\F+_A=+—H
31 December 2018 R 2 TR E AR 185,063
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing AR AR B X ER BB
rate as at the date of initial application B EEERREITELIR 170,825
Less: short-term leases recognised on W BESAERAAI 2 REHAHEE
a straight-line basis as expense (7,515)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—HBER
HEBE 163,310
Of which are: Hrp
Current lease liabilities nEEERE 70,714
Non-current lease liabilities JERBEEAR 92,596
163,310
(iiij) Measurement of right-of-use assets (i) FEFREEZEZE
The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were MERENHEBAEREEEREN
measured on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had HAERITHE  IREZEEER
always been applied. Other right-of-use assets were measured wE A ER - HiEREEER
at the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the BHEEEABESNLHEFE I
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating RB-ZZE-\F+ZA=+—HA
to that lease recognised in the consolidated statement of PSRN R A HER B L2 1 B4R
financial position as at 31 December 2018. BRI TR S BT A E T IA
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 SEBEREE(E)
(i) FRIRAE BB R 2R E 165505
e Er e

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued)
(iii) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16

As at 1 January 2019
R=—ZF—NF—H—H

Effect on
Consolidated statement of As previously adoption of
financial position (extract) stated HKFRS 16 As restated
BB
HEERIE165%
& OO & (FgR) LATEZI7R -7 B2 &7
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARBETIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights T A 161,934 (161,934) -
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 259,118 259,118
Equity Ea
Equity attributable to the KA B RERITE AE
Company’s equity holders {5
Retained earnings Bl 1,141,955 (2,146) 1,139,809
Non-controlling interests FEFERR i A 883,895 (4,589) 879,306
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 92,596 92,596
Current liabilities RENEE
Accrued expenses and other R E R R HAFER
payables IE 282,652 (46,582) 236,070
Contract liabilities aHaE 348,866 (12,809) 336,057
Lease liabilities MEARE - 70,714 70,714

(iv) Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor under operating leases as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 TESTBEBEw

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued) 2.2 EHBEESEH(H)
(v) Accounting for sales and leaseback transaction (v) HEREZHMEXZZEEE

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset
and the leasing back of the same asset. The lease payment
and the sale price are usually interdependent because they
are negotiated as a package.

Until 31 December 2018, the accounting treatment of a
sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the type of
lease involved. If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a
finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. If a
sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease,
and it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value,
any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the sale price is
below fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately
except that, if the loss is compensated for by future lease
payments at below market price, it is deferred and amortised
in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which
the asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair
value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortised
over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

On the initial application day, the Group do not re-assess
sale and leaseback transactions entered into before the
date of initial application to determine whether or not the
sale fulfilled the condition of HKFRS 15. The seller-lessee
accounts for any deferred gain or loss due to off-market term
as an adjustment to the leaseback right-of-use asset for an
operating leaseback.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the associated right-of-use for
sales and leaseback entered into before the date of initial
application were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of other liabilities, retain
earnings and non-controlling interest, relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—-Z

—NFETZA=t—RLEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.4).
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 FERBRESFTREAE

(Continued)

(iii) Joint arrangements (i) BEZH
Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint BEEBVEREEENRES
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or ZH - RB AL IRESERE
joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual EEBRGLERE - 2y BEUAR
rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal BREZEZAKENREE - M3k
structure of the joint arrangement. The Company has both Bt RHE 2 ARER - NRARHSR
joint operations and joint ventures. BREEBREERE -
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity RE SRR R PR AR
method of accounting (see (iv) below), after initially being % ReBEbEIERPRERS
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of financial FOEARGEZB T X(V) -
positions.

(iv) Equity accounting (iv) BZEF
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments BEEREE  REVIHZUAKK
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to R EETUREE - DREETP
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or WRAEBE DI EE 2 WIEE
losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share A EE - A RREMEERA
of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee PR EE DGR E B 2 HA
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or FEKRAZE) - B Uk EIEE A
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as AREEREZREBRRBINER
a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. HEZHD
When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted EAKESERRSITREZERE
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, HERIBBENEE (B
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the R E A IR R AR )
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred REEBW T 2EAE—FEE K
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. FHEABEEAINRREMERE

SOEE

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its REBMBEEBENFREEDER
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of RH 2 RERWRIBEAEENZSE
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are B Em T ASEE - REREIE
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of INTLAESHE - BRIER HIREBIEE
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies AR EELRREE - B ARKR
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where WIREE ST BERBIRFEEL
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by B - DATER BN £ BN 2 R
the Group. R

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is Eam ARREZ REE RN
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described 2N3FTRBERAERERIE

in note 2.13.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—-Z

—NFETZA=t—RLEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(v)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in an
“Other Reserves” within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations

2.4 EBE6t

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business,

. equity interests issued by the Group,

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The excess of
the:

. consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
asset. Amounts classified as a financial asset are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The executive directors of the Group are regarded as the chief
operating decision maker who will review the operating results of
the Group on a consolidated basis, and make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$") is regarded as the Company's functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of
financial position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated statement
of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.8 Land use rights
Land use rights are recorded at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use
rights are amortised using the straight-line method over their lease
terms from 40 to 50 years.

From 1 January 2019, land use rights are reclassified as part of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at carrying values, representing cost less
depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives of 40 years to 50 years.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or commences
to be further developed for sale, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and land use right or properties under
development, and its fair value at the date of change in use
becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

2.10 Completed properties held for sale

2.11

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of reporting
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures, fittings and
office equipment, leasehold improvements, motor vehicles
and production equipment, rental construction equipment,
and construction in progress are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Motor vehicles classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the assets become available for its intended
use. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMERE
Buildings
B'F

Computer and telecommunications equipment
B R E AR

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment

BRA - KERFAERE

Motor vehicles

=

Production equipment

HERE

Rental construction equipment

HERERE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each consolidated statement of financial
position date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 TESTBEBEw

2.1 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 211 Y- BERRE®)

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for their intended use.

Contractual customer, distributor relationships and non-
compete agreement acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer/distributor relations have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.
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On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to property, ¥ BB KRR -
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
2.12 Intangible assets 212 BLEE

(i) Goodwill (i) BE
Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4. Goodwill on EEIR M 2. 4FT AL ET & o URBE M
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. BRAAIZEBFAEVEE -7
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment BNEHESE - BT FEITRE) ﬁIJ
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in o NEEEHLRABERE
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is TR RE IR E R ETTE AR /UME
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains AR - WIRE AR REHREE B
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying R HE—HEEz2E=REER
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. FEAEEEAACHERRE-
Goodwill is allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment AERREARMIEZERSES
testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups B ZOERIEAZ R EER
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business B REBEHSRREEEEN
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups SRS ELBMMERIEL - 2558
of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is iz 3% B8 fr 48 I 4R B BE 1R VE N A
monitored for internal management purpose. BERGZ &IERRT AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

HC GROUP INC.

Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical cost.
Patents acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The patents have a
finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Trade name and domain name

Trade name and domain name acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Trade name and domain name have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Software license and order back log

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to their
intended use. Order backlog are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The software license and order back log
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Data library

Costs incurred on acquiring the data library are recognised
as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility has been
demonstrated, and there is an ability to sell or to use the
assets that will generate probable future economic benefits.
The data library has a finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

License

License acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The license has a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

FESHBERBE )

212 |BLEE ()
(viii) BT

2.12 Intangible assets (Continued)
(viii) Technical knowhow

Technical knowhow acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The technical
knowhow has a finite useful life and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

REBE G &S 2 BT A
BREEATERR - BT m#EA
BIR ATt A4 HAN BE AR IR AR 2
S ORERB B -

(ix) Platform (ix) F&
Platform acquired in a business combination are recognised REBANPEEZFEERER
at fair value at the acquisition date. The technical knowhow BN T ERR - RiTAEARR
has a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost A5 A 4F BAND BE 18 1 PR 2R R 5T
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. MR EEEIER -

(x) Amortisation methods and periods (x) #iE75 5 RAE

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful
life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

REEP AT HARRA B EHH
BEEERAIERFH |ILEE

Contractual customer, distributor relationship and non-compete 3-17 years
agreement

BREFP - DHERIERENIEHRS 3E17HE
Patents 8 years
5 84
Trade name and domain name 9-15 years
5% K3 9E 154
Software license and order back log 1-5 years
BT AT R AE R AT B 1254
Data library 3 years
BERE 3%F
License 47.5 years
R AR 47 5%
Technical knowhow 7 years
Pl 7
Platform 7 years
T4 74
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:TBEHEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

213 FEMEEZRE

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

2.14 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the
follow measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business model
for managing the financial assets and liabilities and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OClI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
liability at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in “other gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
“other gains, net” in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in “other gain, net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 20 for further details.

Note 3.1(b) provides more details of how the expected credit
loss allowance is measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforce right must not be contingent on future event and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter

party.

Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for
property purchasers.

The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at
the higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position when, and only when,
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods comprises merchandises and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make
the sales.

2.18 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore
are all classified as current assets. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See note 20 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1(b) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Share capital and shares held for employee share

2.21

scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 32).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or a
share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the Group as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market under
the employee share scheme, the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for employee
share scheme and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the
related costs of the vested shares for employee share scheme
purchased from the market are credited to shares held for share
reward scheme, with a corresponding decrease in share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. These amounts are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Borrowings 222 B8

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the drawn down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity
of the bonds. The remainder of the proceed is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as finance costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

222

2.23

Borrowings (Continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments
issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FTESHBEBEw

224 EMNIBEIEFTSH (&
EEFEH ()

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued) (i)

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment property that
is measured at fair value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amount will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs

The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored pension plans under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain
formulas.

The relevant government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under
these plans, the Group has no further payment obligations
for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
for payment of bonus as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHBEBEw

225 EEEF (5)
(iii) KRG ZATZHE

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of share-based compensation
plans, including Share Award Scheme and Share Option
Scheme.

Under the Share Award Scheme, the directors and certain
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in
the Company. The shares held under trust by a financial
institution (“Trustee"”) for the benefit of the director and
employees, would be paid and the paid up consideration
would be capitalised in the Company’s reserves. The Trustee
has been instructed to buy shares from the market using the
funds held by the Trustee to grant shares to the director and
employees.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which options may be granted to subscribe for the
Company's shares.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the share options and shares awarded
is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued) 225 EERRM(E)

(iiij) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options and shares granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of shares or share
options that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each consolidated statement of financial position
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares
or share options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management'’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:TBEHEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

227 SHEWARER

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services performed, stated net of discounts, returns and value-
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of goods or services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control
of the goods and services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

o does not creates an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

When determining the transaction price to be allocated to different
performance obligations, the Group first determines the service
fees that the Group entitles in the contract period and adjusts
the transaction price for variable considerations and significant
financing component, if any. The Group includes in the transaction
price some of all of an amount of variable considerations only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents
the contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a contract related asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s
payment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:TBEHEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

227 SHEWARR (&)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract related asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods and services that the Group has transferred to
a customer or cost to obtain a contract. A receivable is recorded
when the Group has an unconditional right to a consideration. A
right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due. Contract
assets related to cost to obtain the contracts are recognised over
the life of the contracts to which they related.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the Group presents
the contract liability when the payment is made or a receivable is
recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group'’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the
principal revenue streams of the Group.

(i) Revenue from B2B trading platform

Revenue from B2B trading business primarily comprised
commission income and revenue from merchandise sales.
Commission income is recognised for transactions where the
Group is not the primary obligor, is not subject to inventory
risk and does not have latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers. Commission income is recognised on a
net basis which is based on a fixed percentage of the sales
amount.

Revenue from merchandise sales and related costs is
recognised on a gross basis when the Group acts as a
principal. Revenue from merchandise sales are recognised at
the point in time when the control of the merchandise has
been transferred, being when the goods are delivered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HC GROUP INC.

Revenue from online services and advertisement
Advertising income from internet portals, mobile devices,
trade catalogues, yellow page directories and printed
periodicals is recognised ratably over the contracted period in
which the advertisements are displayed.

Subscription fee income from online services is recognised
over the period of contracts entered with the customers. The
unrecognised portions of contract sum are recognised as
contract liabilities.

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the cumulative
payments made by customers is recognised as contract assets.
The contract assets are recognised as a receivable when the
Group's right to consideration is unconditional.

Some contracts include multiple performance obligations and
do not include any integration services. They are therefore
accounted for as separate performance obligations. Revenue
from each of the performance obligations is recognised by
allocating the transaction price based on the stand-alone
service price. Under HKFRS 15, the rebate to customers
is a variable consideration and to be net off against the
transaction price.

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting business
Anti-counterfeiting business comprises revenue from
providing anti-counterfeiting products and services. Revenue
from selling of anti-counterfeiting products is recognised
at the point in time when the control of the products has
been transferred, being when the goods are delivered.
Revenue from anti-counterfeiting services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction
and assessed on the basis of actual services provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided. Customers
are invoiced upon the completion of services or on a regular
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from marketing events, exhibition, seminars
and other services

Revenue from the hosting of marketing events, trade
exhibitions and business seminars is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction
and assessed on the basis of actual services provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided. Customers
are invoiced upon the completion of services or on a regular
basis.

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties are recognised at the point
in time when the control over the properties are transferred
to the purchaser, which occurs when legally binding
unconditional sales contract were entered, the construction
of the relevant properties has been completed, and the
properties have been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to
the sale contracts. The excess of cumulative payments made
by purchasers of properties over the cumulative revenue
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income is recognised as contract liabilities. The contract
liability is recognised as revenue when the Group satisfies its
performance obligations.

Revenue from sales of construction equipment

Revenue from sales of construction equipment is recognised
at the point in time when the control over the construction
equipment is transferred to the purchasers, which occurs
when legally binding unconditional sales contracts were
entered, the production of the relevant equipment has been
completed, and the equipment has been delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sale contracts.

2.28 Financing services income
Interest income attributable to finance leases is recognised over the
lease term on a systematic and rational basis so as to produce a
constant rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

228 RESRERE ZHERA (B

2.28 Financing services income (Continued)

Interest income and expense for asset factoring and micro-
credit financing services are recognised within “Interest income
from financing service” and “Cost of revenue” in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest
method, while the interest from bank deposits are recognised
within “finance income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and payments paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the credit-adjusted effective interest
rate to the cost of the financial asset.

2.29 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Earnings per share (Continued)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and
the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.30 Dividend income

2.31

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends
are recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right
to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this
case, the dividend is recognised in OCl if it relates to an investment
measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may need to be
tested for impairment as a consequence.

Leases
As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change in
note 2.2.

As a lessee

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and equipment,
in which a significant of the risks and rewards of ownership were
not transferred to the Group as lessee, were classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Leases (Continued) 231 HE®)

As a lessee (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:TBEHEME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Leases (Continued) 231 HE®)

As a lessee (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group where
possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

. any initial direct costs, and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

As a lessor

The Group classifies all leases as operating leases as the Group
will not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. Rental income from operating
leases where the Group is a lessor, including O20 business
exhibition centre and other investment properties, is recognised
within “Revenue” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Income from
renting of construction equipment is recognised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis or other systematic basis by reference
to the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying assets
is diminished. The lease terms are between 1 and 12 years, the
Group has classified these leases as operating leases. Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on their nature. The Group did not need
to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

232

2.33

234

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values
when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Sale and leaseback transaction

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset and
the leasing back of the same asset. The lease payment and the sale
price are usually interdependent because they are negotiated as a
package.

The Group measures the right-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the
properties held for sale that relates to the right of use retained by
the Group. Accordingly, the Group recognises only the amount of
any gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-
lessor. If the sale price is below fair value, it shall be accounted for as
prepayment of lease payments. If the sale price is above fair value,
it shall be accounted for as additional financing provided by the
buyer-lessor to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥RKRERE

3.1 BEREE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
majority of its transactions are denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective entities. The
Group has no material foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and does not have material
exposure on foreign exchange risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's interest rate risks
arises from its loan and interest receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, and restricted bank deposit, details of
which have been disclosed in notes 21 and 31.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
also attributable to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in note 36. Borrowings carry at fixed
rates expose the Group to low fair value interest-rate
risk.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2019, if
interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis points
(2018: 50 basis points) with all other variable constant,
the Group's loss after tax and total comprehensive loss
would have been approximately RMB5,862,000 higher/
lower (2018: profit after tax and total comprehensive
income would have been approximately RMB3,946,000
lower/higher).

The Group regularly monitors its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movements and regular reporting is
provided to the management for the Group’s debt and
interest rates exposure.

Price risk

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk
arises from investments held by the Group and classified
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as fair value either through profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (note 27).
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk (Continued)
Post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB4,017,000 (2018: Post-tax profit
for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB1,424,000) as a result of 10% gains/losses on
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss. Other components of equity would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB6,539,000 (2018:
RMB9,525,000) as a result of 10% gains/losses on
equity securities classified as either at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit risk
mainly arisen from a customer’s inability or unwillingness to
meet its financial obligations. It arises primarily from the loan
receivables from the financing service segment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has following types of financial assets at amortised
cost that are subjected to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
("ECL") model:

e Trade receivables

° Contract assets

o Finance lease receivables

o Loans and interest receivables

o Other receivables and deposits

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits

are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

3 BIERMEREG:

3.1 MERBEZE®)
(a) WHEE(E)
(i) 1B ()

MR B AR ATET ABR
ZemEEKTEIE10%
FRBRBREBBERLD, 18
n# AR#4,017,000T( ==
— )\ FABRBIE R R
/A 49 AR 1,424,000
TL) - MR DB AR AFE
AE A2 EURA Z BRI E S U
=/ E1810% - BRiEz
B ED 5 FEIG AN, R A HI AN R EE
6,539,000 (= —N\F : A
R #9,525,0007T) °
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EREL - EX2RABERBE D
BBz FEWE K

EREENRE
AEBFUTREHKATEZ S
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AR F IS 2 FIRHME E R A ([FEH
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o YRR

. AWEE

o REESRYGRIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The trade receivables and contract assets mainly arise
from the business of B2B trading, the online services
and advertisement, anti-counterfeiting products and
services, and market event services. The Group generally
grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to 270
days to customers depending on business segment.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

There was no significant credit risk for the B2B trading
business as the Group generally required customers to
prepay for the goods before delivery. For B2B trading
business, the Group only granted credit period for
certain customers that are considered creditworthy. The
Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group assesses the
credit risk on an individual and collective basis. Trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, the Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach collectively to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group's historical experience
in collection of receivables fall within the recorded
allowances.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables and contract assets are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEBRER@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
()  Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () EREARELEE (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December BIEE  BHEREREE
2019 and 2018 was determined as follows for trade HNEEBER_T—NEFR=
receivables and, contract assets. T-NF+ZA=+—HZE
BRELT -

Morethan Morethan Morethan Morethan  Morethan  More than
Current - 30 days 90days  180days  270days  365days  720days

31 December 2019 30days  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue

BAZE AKX @HX AMS0X  BH0X  A#365K  AMn0K
ZE-AETZA=t-H 30k Mk Nk Mk Nk Mk NE
Trade receivables, gross i€t 277,81 23,816 47,678 42,664 26,999 36,275 298 477201
Loss allowance for trade receivables U ERE (6,161) (1,365) G774 (10,574) (6712) (17483  (15460) (63529
Contract assets, gross ANEERE 7428 - - - - - - 7,428
Loss allowance for contract assets ANAEBRER (213) - - = = = = (218)
Expected loss rate EHEER 22% 5.7% 12.1% 24.8% 24.9% 48.2% 70.3% 13.2%

Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan  More than
Current - 30 days 90 days 180days  270days  365days  720days

31 December 2018 30 days past due past due past due past due past due
BRIE  MH0R  @E0R AHI0X  @E0R  AEek @
NE+ZR=+—H 0% A PAE Ik Ak Pk
Trade receivables, gross RS e 304,601 4489 117,500 29,819 5214 42,003 465 544,521
Loss allowance for trade receivables YRS ERE (2,099) (821) (6,852) (8.268) (1447)  (12,475) (465 (32427
Contract assets, gross EHAREER 8,242 - - - - - - 8,242
Loss allowance for contract assets ENEEEERE (108) - - - - - - (108)
Expected loss rate EHERE 07% 18% 5.8% 217% 27.8% 296% 100% 59%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EmEE(E)
(i)  Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () JEWREEAREAEE (&)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables and RZE-NFERZZT-NF
contract assets as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 +ZA=+—8  BRERK
reconcile to the opening loss allowances is summarised BRBE 2 FREREHES
as follows: BRI T

Opening loss allowance as at

RIB-N\F-A—-BZFNBEERE

Trade
receivables
FEUBR R
RMB'000

ARETT

Contract
assets

E
RMB'000
AREBTTT

1 January 2018 17,914 131
Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 RNEBUBREENEIRNEE 7,650 -
Increase in loss allowance recognised in FRARBRER 2 ERBERELN

profit or loss during the year 13,521 (23)
Receivables written off during FRME AT NE 2 YA

the year as uncollectible (6,658) -
Closing loss allowance at “E-N\F+tZA=+-BR

31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 “EZ-NF-A-AZEREREE 32,427 108
Increase in loan loss allowance recognised in - FRMEZHER 2 EFE BB EIE N

profit or loss during the year 33,904 858
Receivables written off during FAME AT E 2 KR

the year as uncollectible (1,934) -
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BEHEMBAR (868) (748)
Closing loss allowance at —E-hEFE+ZA=1+-RHZ

31 December 2019 EREERE 63,529 218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

(ii)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract
assets are presented as “net impairment losses of
finance assets” within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Finance lease receivables

The Group applies general approach under HKFRS 9
to measure expected credit losses for all finance leases
receivables.

Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through three stages based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2019, all of
the finance lease receivables are classified under stage 1
(31 December 2018: same).

Impairment losses on finance lease receivables are
presented as net impairment losses of financial assets
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

3

B R ERE )

3.1 MEBEEE)
(b) FEREGE)

(i)

(ii)

JEWIRA R ERIEE ()
ETFEANNEZAEES
iy - 7R SR B S P WUR R
BREE - MR KREZA
BEHZ ERRE(EREE)
(RIS AR B AR SR [BE BOE 3X
el -

FEYSR R M A M EE 2 BIEE
BERE2RNAIIE S/E
EREBRFE] - HRKE
FERTIE 2 £ R AR —IR
E

BEHERNTR

REEERE BV BRELR
FOZ —MITAETEE A
AHERKFIERSERRE

e

RE—RITE - GRMAETE
R L ERIE 2 = ERRE
B BB EREERT AR
RZF-NAF+ZA=1—
B - ARARERKTIAED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERBREE:
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EmEE(E)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BATHERFEZEHRZEF

The credit risk of loans and interest receivables mainly
arises from micro-credit financing business. To manage
risk arising from loan and interest receivables, the
Group has established relevant mechanism to cover
credit risk in key operational phases of micro-credit
financing business, including pre-lending evaluations,
credit approval, and post-lending monitoring. The
Group conducts customer acceptance and due diligence
by operating department and risk management
department in the pre-lending evaluations.

In the credit approval phase, all loans applications
are subject to the assessment and approval of the
Department Manager, General Manager and Risk
Assessment Committee of the Micro-credit company,
depending on the amount and nature of the loans.
During the post-lending monitoring, the Group
conducts on-site inspections and off-site inquiries to
detect potential risks by evaluating various aspects,
including but not limited to the customer’s operational
and financial conditions, status of collaterals and other
sources of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIERMEREG:

3.1 MEBEEE)
(b) FEREGE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATFHBERBEEEZEF
(Continued) (#&)

In accordance with the regulations issued by the local
regulatory authority, Chongqing Financial Affairs Office
(EEMERT/ERAE), the Group has established a
loan credit risk classification system based on the type
of collateral and credit period, and performs credit risk
management based on loan classification in one of five
categories. The Group classifies loans into the following
five categories: normal, special-mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss. Loans classified as substandard,
doubtful and loss are regarded as nonperforming loans.

BEEHEERBEETLR
TERRERMZIER - A%
EERFERRER REES
RIEREERBOBERSL
jﬁE?Fﬂfl*E%UZ BN
ETEERBRER - NEEE
fﬁ(ﬁv‘?%l%"l—ﬁi R R
%E B ORABE - AR
NABREE - DRRASE - TR
BRBEREZERRERTRE

oo
Normal: Borrowers can honour the terms of EEH: BRARAEITER
their loans. There is no reason to Rk - MR iz
doubt their ability to repay principal RERSTHER
and interest in full on a timely basis. REZHET
Special- Borrowers are currently able to service B BEERABMNA
mention: their loans and interest, although ENEEEFRRF
repayment may be adversely B BERERL
affected by specific factor. eXIRERRZ
PHIZE o
Substandard: Borrowers' ability to service their KB /TA/\ZE/MUJT?
loans is in question and they cannot BoOHMETRK
rely entirely on normal business SEBEBWEE
revenues to repay principal and BARE o AMEETT
interest. Losses may ensue even HWASKER - 5
when collateral or guarantees are BERMERER -

invoked.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRRMEE®

3.1 MEBEEE)
(b) EFEmEEGE)
(i) BEATHERFEEFZEF,

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business

(Continued)

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and
interest in full and significant losses
will need to be recognised even
when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot

be recovered or only a small
portion of them can be recovered
after taking all possible measure
or resorting to all necessary legal
procedures.

The Group applies general approach under HKFRS 9 to
measure expected credit losses for all loans and interest
receivables accounted for at amortised cost.

Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through the following three stages based on the change
in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion
of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIERMEREG:

3.1 MEBEEE)
(b) FEREGE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATFHBERBEEEZEF
(Continued) (#&)

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired (Continued)

At each financial reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and
also, forward-looking analysis.

The Group considers loan and interest receivables to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
if the loans overdue exceeds 30 days on contractual
payment.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIRRMEE®

3.1 MBEBER(E
(b) EEEE)
(i) BHFHERBEEEZES

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business

(Continued)

The Group considers a loan is default, when it is credit-
impaired. Generally, overdue for more than 90 days
on contractual payment terms is considered default.
In addition, other qualitative indicators have been
considered, including the borrower is in insolvent or
bankruptcy, or the loan is classified as nonperforming
loans under loan credit risk classification system.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-
weighted present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the financial asset discounted at its
original effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The amount of the loss is recognised
and presented as “net impairment losses of financial
assets” within operating profit.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase
in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months
ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBRER@

3.1 MEBEEE)
(b) EFEmEEGE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHEREEHZEF
(Continued) (#&)
As at 31 December 2019, the loss allowance for RZTE—NF+_A=+—
loans to customers of financing services business was H BERTRERBESZE
determined as follows. FPZERBHEETHOT -

2019
—B-hE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Low credit risk not credit- credit-

(12 month impaired impaired

ECL) (Lifetime ECL) (Lifetime ECL)

FRRESE FWREEE HEWHREE

Bk (+=f@A HE(2H BE(2H
RECERR) BAGERR) BHEEER) st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T ARET T ARBTR

31 December 2019 —E-NF+=A=+-A

Gross carrying amount RAGE 1,405,246 - 279,737 1,684,983
Loss allowance EEEE (13,597) - (126,417) (140,014)
1,391,649 - 153,320 1,544,969
Expected loss rate BHEEEX 0.97% - 45.2% 8.31%

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets
entails further estimations as to the likelihood of
defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of
default correlations between counterparties. The Group
measure credit risk using Probability of Default (“PD"),
Exposure at Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default
("LGD").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HREREEs
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERBEE®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EH@E@( &)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHERFEHZEF

(Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The expected credit loss is measured on either a
12-month or Lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred since
initial recognition or whether an asset is considered
to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the
discounted product of the PD, EAD and LGD.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and
EAD for each future month and for each portfolio.
These three components are multiplied together and
adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure
has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summarised. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The calculation of ECL incorporate forward-looking
information. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit losses.

As with any economic forecasts, the projections and
likelihoods of occurrence are subject to a high degree of
inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual outcomes
may be significantly different to those projected. The
Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes.

The assessment of ECL incorporates forward-looking
information in respect of PD. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic
variable impacting credit risk and ECL for loan portfolio:
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEBREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEBREEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREERE)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHEREXHZEF
(Continued) (&)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) B R BEIR (48)
As at
Key economic variable Scenario 31 December 2019
R=ZT—hF
+=—A=+—H”
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") growth rate Base 6.06%
BINEERE(TBENEEEE]IERE BN 6.06%
Upside 6.20%
17 6.20%
Downside 6.00%
AT 6.00%
Money supply measure (“M2") Base 8.35%
EHpEetE(M2]) BN 8.35%
Upside 8.71%
17 8.71%
Downside 8.00%
4T 8.00%
The Group uses economic variable assumptions when REEGFRAEBEZE KRR
determine the expected GDP growth rate and M2. The EEBENEELEERE
weightings assigned to each economic scenario at 31 EM2 - RZZE—NF+ZA
December 2019 were 80% for base, 10% for upside =+t—H FELEBERE
and 10% for downside (31 December 2018: Same). B HEREARZ0% « £17T

10% K& F1710% (—Z— \4F
+—A=+—8:#R) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 H¥RMREREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEAKBEZ®)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL
allowance are GDP growth rate and M2 growth rate.
Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 that would result from
increasing/decreasing GDP growth rate by 1% or M2
growth rate by 1% in each of the base, upside and
downside scenarios:

GDP growth rate BREEAEERE

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NFE+=ZA=+—H
M2 M2

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZTE—hE+-_A=+—H

The loss allowance recognised in the year is impacted by
a variety of factors, as described below:

e  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3
due to loan receivables experiencing significant
increases (or decreases) of credit risk in the year,
and the subsequent “step up” (or “step down")
between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

e Additional allowances for new financial
instruments recognised, as well as releases for loan
receivables derecognised in the year; and

e  Loan receivables derecognised and write-offs of
allowances related to assets that were written off
during the year.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(b) EFEmEEGE)
(i) BEAXTHRERFEZEZEF

(&)

B R B EBCR (5
FERHEEFRREZRE
ABRABNEERELRE
EM2IERE - RZZE—NF
E=ZF—NF+ZA=+—
B RER - TR TITEE
= BREERAERRESR
M2IE R RS R £, T#H1%
B 2B EEEEZEHT
W

+1% -1%
(1,118,965) 1,447,644
+1% -1%
(572,598) 478,048
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o FRERERZEER
B X B 2 o0 (= T FR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIERMEREG:
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEZE®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHEREEHZEF
(Continued) (#&)

B R ()
TRHAAFNEFRERER
HzESRERMEE 2 BERERE

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
The following tables explain the changes in the loss
allowance for loan receivables between the beginning

and the end of the year due to these factors:

5z

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE SH2REER S3RER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR AR%®Tx
Loss allowance as of HE-E-hF
1 January 2019 —A—HZEERE 27,981 35,352 41,230 104,563
Transfer: BE
Transfer from FilEgERs
Stage 1 to Stage 2 Eplicy = - - -
Transfer from FIRREBE
Stage 1 to Stage 3 SE3MER (572) = 25,876 25,304
Transfer from FREHEBE
Stage 2 to Stage 1 Nl = = - -
Transfer from FARBEEBE
Stage 2 to Stage 3 E3MER = (28,294) 152,454 124,160
Transfer from SIRHRELE
Stage 3 to Stage 1 ERE - - - -
Transfer from FIRHrELE
Stage 3 to Stage 2 F2MEE - - - -
Change in PDs/LGDS/EADs ERBR B HEK
K/ BHHOEH (16,886) - (86,851)  (103,737)
Loan and interest receivables FNFIRER
derecognised during EREF R
the year FE (19,373) (7,058) (2,249) (28,680)
New loan receivables originated ~ Ziz #TEME 22,447 = = 22,447
Write-offs HisH = = (4,043) (4,043)
Loss allowance as of BE-_Z-NF
31 December 2019 +=A=+-H
ZEERE 13,597 - 126,417 140,014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEBRER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EmEE(E)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHEREEHZEF
(Continued) (#&)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) B R BB ()

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F1BER F2UER F3MEEK

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARBTL ARETR

Loss allowance as of BE-_Z-N\F

1 January 2018 —B—AzEEEE 19,716 106 64,437 84,259
Transfer: #E
Transfer from F1lRERE

Stage 1 to Stage 2 HREER 4,110) 31,652 - 27,542
Transfer from F1lERs

Stage 1 to Stage 3 F3MEER 3) - 151 148
Transfer from FURREBE

Stage 2 to Stage 1 ey - - - -
Transfer from FRBEHEBE

Stage 2 to Stage 3 F3ME - (41) 290 249
Transfer from FEIREHEBE

Stage 3 to Stage 1 F1PE - - - -
Transfer from FIRRELE

Stage 3 to Stage 2 EMEER - 3,725 (26,062) (22,337)
Change in PDs/LGDS/EADs BRBEE EIOBEK

K/ ENHOE 13,691 (62) 6,500 20,129

Loan and interest receivables FREIGRTERZ

derecognised during [EWET K

the year AE (23,455) (28) (1,178) (24,661)
New loan receivables originated & H2 FTEKE = 22,142 - - 22,142
Write-offs HisH - - (2,908) (2,908)
Loss allowance as of BE-2-N\F

31 December 2018 +=A=1+-H

ZEERE 27,981 35,352 41,230 104,563
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HREREEs
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business (i) BEATHEREEHZEF
(Continued) (#&)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) B R BB ()
The gross carrying amount of the loan receivables FEN B AR AR B 3B TSP
explains their significant changes in the loss allowance as MEREEBER 2 ERE
discussed below: g :

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1R Eplid= 3R @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®TR

Gross carrying amountasof 1 BE=-E—ffF

January 2019 —A—HBZEEEEE 1,249,211 262,385 41,230 1,552,826
Transfer: BE
Transfer from FilEgERs

Stage 1 to Stage 2 Eplicy = - - -
Transfer from FIRREBE

Stage 1 to Stage 3 &R (35,644) - 35,644 -
Transfer from FREHEBE

Stage 2 to Stage 1 Nl = = - -
Transfer from FARBEEBE

Stage 2 to Stage 3 E3ME = (210,004) 210,004 -
Transfer from SIRHRELE

Stage 3 to Stage 1 ERE - - - -
Transfer from FIRHrELE

Stage 3 to Stage 2 F2MEE - - - -
Loan and interest receivables FREIGERZ

derecognised during JEMET R

the year FE (1,207,970) (52,381) (3,098)  (1,263,449)
New loan receivables originated 377 #TE M E 1,399,649 = - 1,399,649
Write-offs ki - = (4,043) (4,043)
Gross carrying amount as BE-E-1F

of 31 December 2019 +=A=+-8

ZREAE 1,405,246 - 279,737 1,684,983
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRRMEE®
BEEREEE)
(b) EEEE)

(i) BEATHERBEEZFZEFS

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business

(Continued) (#&)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

BRI ()

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F1PEE FMEER SE3PEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARET:
Gross carrying amount as BE-_Z-N\F
of 1 January 2018 -A-BZEELE 1558810 784 72519 1,632,113
Transfer: #g
Transfer from F1lRERE
Stage 1 to Stage 2 HREER (234,518) 234,518 - -
Transfer from FilERs
Stage 1 to Stage 3 F3MEER (160) - 160 -
Transfer from FURREBE
Stage 2 to Stage 1 EllEy - - - -
Transfer from FREHEBE
Stage 2 to Stage 3 H3ME - (307) 307 -
Transfer from FIRRBBE
Stage 3 to Stage 1 F1RE - - - -
Transfer from FIZRELE
Stage 3 to Stage 2 EMEER - 27,600 (27,600) -
Loan and interest receivables FREIRTERZ
derecognised during FEBER R
the year FE (1,338,479) (210) (1,248) (1,339,937)
New loan receivables originated 77 FTEU &5k 1,263,558 - - 1,263,558
Write-offs iG] - - (2,908) (2,908)
Gross carrying amount as HE-E-N\&
of 31 December 2018 +ZHA=+—-H
ZEEEAE 1,249,211 262,385 41,230 1,552,826
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RBREREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEKBEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
(iv) Other financial assets (iv) Htz@EE

Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit, as well as credit exposures
to other receivables and deposit. The carrying amount
of each class of these financial assets represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the corresponding class of financial assets.

To manage credit risk, bank deposits are mainly placed
with state-owned financial institutions in the PRC and
reputable international financial institutions outside of
the PRC. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions. The finance
department has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an on-going basis.

For balance with related companies, loans to
employees and other receivables due from third parties,
management make individual assessment on the
recoverability of the balances taking into account the
historical settlement records, past experience as well as
forward looking factors. During the year ended 2019,
there was an increase in credit risk on the balances
due from certain independent third parties and the
Directors believe that the recoverability of the balance
is uncertain. Therefore, the balance amounting to
RMB20,118,000 (2018: Nil) was fully provided for as at
31 December 2019.

Except for the amount mentioned above, the Directors
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables
and deposits and the expected credit loss is close to
zero.

EERRTRERENRESE
EMRERBIERTER - AR
HAbRWFIE RS 2 EE R
- ZETREESRR K
HEREASEMEAZERE
MEERRER < EREER

B -

REREERR  FREEE
RABERESREEREINE
EEZERSmEE - I
BEEEZET BB ZERC
B oo BT EDE IRTHUR - A
BEEFMERIZEEER

B o

SRR AR 2 5k - MBS
ER 2 ER AR E M ERE
ZHZREMmME BEEEK
TR EE RS - BALS
AR =R AR S
ZARERE - BEZT—N
FILFE  BUETBILIE=
FiEBRZEERBBRTISM
EFRBREHZTRERRE
BT - Bt - R=ZF—N
F+-A=+—0 " 2EEA
R#20,118,0007t (—Z— N\
F B ZEHEBHHRR
1o

Br Ll mmih  EERR A
SEHEMREYFERIZES 2R
EESBELREANENRE
R REHEEBBRED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and ensure
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank borrowing.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group’s finance department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents
and flexibility in funding through having available sources of

financing.

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated RMB331,893,000 (2018:

RMB471,672,000).

The table below summarises the maturity analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest date in which the Group
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates.

BERREE s

3.1 MBEBRREE®)

() mEEZmE
EaEBERDECRARER A%
BErEeRmRRREe RS EFE
Y WEBTHMAIARESH (R
BHRTEE ) RRERHES - B
RIEREEBZZENE - AREE
BRERHRE MRS EEMAE
FESERE - WEBEIS AT AR
BRFHEFESERMN -

R-B—-AE+=-_A=+—H &
SERSRRSEEMHABARE
331,893,0007C (T —\F : AR
#471,672,0007C) °

TREBBEDMN - O IRE
REBASN 2 &F A MG ER
AR S| B R R A BN B L B B
FOBTHRERH - 2FLHBER
BHMEAHFZMEER -

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1£R 1226 2E5F 5L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF
TZA=t-H
Trade payables FERTERSR 128,209 - - - 128,209
Accrued expenses and other payables e B R R EMENTIE 98,033 - - - 98,033
Borrowings e 1,922,869 417,829 121,197 - 2,461,895
Convertible bonds - liabilities proportion A E% — BB 101,030 - - - 101,030
Lease liabilities HEaE 79,757 11,112 6,583 - 97,452
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1+—A
Trade payables ANEE 94,516 406 - - 94,922
Accrued expenses and other payables EtERREMENTIE 247,075 - - - 247,075
Borrowings TE 1,507,520 668,232 143,523 - 2,319,275
Convertible bonds - liabilities proportion  A[# i EH — EEHH 46,593 - 88,565 - 135,158
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table above excludes the amount of guarantees given to
banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of
the Group's properties as the directors consider the likelihood
of default in payments by the purchasers is minimal. As at
31 December 2019, there is RMB16,828,000 outstanding
guarantees for mortgages (2018: RMB51,041,000). For
details, refer to note 43.

Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within an average period of one to two years
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the
full repayment of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of
properties.

Management monitors the Group’s liquidity through cash
flow projections covering a period of twelve months on a
rolling basis. Based on the cash flow projection, taking into
account the reasonably possible changes in the operational
performance and the continuous availability of banking
facilities, management considers that there will be sufficient
financial resources in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3

BEREEE )

3.1 MERBEZE®)

(0 FEESEEE)
FERTBEETRITERTALHE
MEZETERZIRIBRE Z R
$8 - DAREERABERBEXRN
HZARMRE - R-ZZT— &
TZA=Z+T—8 - RIBZREEE
RE5EAARK16,828,0007T(—F
—)\# : AR#51,041,0007T) * A
BRES - B2RIMRE4S -

BERN T AHREERLL
DET—RARTERERELEKF
—EMFHEMEZFHEEDRE
(N EERBRERZEE

o

s SRS

ERESEBRET @R REZER
EREFAANRS T AERAEE
ZRnBET - RERTREFRE
KREREBEBXRBLFEIR 2R
MECZAENEEY FEER
B RARE+ZEABEREHE
BIR - UREMSEERIMRETT -

3.2 EXERERE
AEBMEBRES Y BNAREAEESE
SRS - BIRERSREIR - R AE
A5 BRI - WS RIEEREE
BUR{E B AR A

RERNPEENGRE - AEER SR
BERNTHRRzBEEFE - AREREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEEREREE®
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 EXEREEE)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This REERBEERAELRERER « %t
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is RIRFEBRUBERTE  FEB 2
calculated as total borrowings (including convertible bonds) less B ERBEEE (BEHRRES )RR
cash and cash equivalents (including restricted bank deposits). e RRSEEW(BEIREIRITER)
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated BER BT E R R I (RE B
statement of financial position plus net debt. Accordingly, the AR R R) IFER - Bty - =T
gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows: —NERZZ-N\F+_A=+—-HBZZ&
REFBENT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT

Bank borrowings (note 36) RITEE (FIFE36) 1,591,089 1,228,244
Other borrowings (note 36) HiptaE (f5E36) 713,312 899,094
Convertible bonds - liabilities portion AR ES —BES D
(note 37) (M5E37) 90,670 127,562
Lease liabilities (note 15(a)) HEABE(HIE15) 91,995 -
Less: cash and bank A R RIRTT
(including restricted bank deposit) (BIEZRHIRITER)
(note 31) (PfF3E31) (614,064) (747,675)
Net debt HETS 1,873,002 1,507,225
Total equity MR 4,729,712 5,221,624
Total capital FEEEVIN 6,602,714 6,728,849
Gearing ratio BEXREELE 28% 22%
Note: The gearing ratio increased from 22% to 28% following the adoption et - RERM B BN B RS ERE1657HE
of HKFRS 16 Lease. Both net debt and gross assets increased % BRBELEH2%IEINE28% °
following the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on RZZE-—NF-—A—ARRACAEEE
1 January 2019. See note 2.2 for further information. LkiiEaER FEHEREEEHEMR

B E—ENBE2HNE2.2 -

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



A O |/ BB

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBRER@

33 AVEEH

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposit,
trade and other receivables, contract related assets, finance lease
receivable, amount due from related companies, trade payables,
accruals and other payables, contract liabilities, borrowings,
convertible bond and lease liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 by level of inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

AEEZzEREERABERRRERES
FEMEZRFRITER - BUSRR N E
fREKIA - ARIEMEE  mEAMER
WORIA - fEURRER A R FRIR - ENRRSR -
A ERRAMENTR - ANAE - &

MEE;BEEEHAZY  HEKEE
BN FERE -

TREARGFEAHEZEEIDEMRE
ANBBZER  pTR—T-NER-F
—N\F+ZA=t+—HAEERATFET]
RZERMTA - ARGABBIER/RT

BERERZ I =EER

HREEXBEEETRTISZME
CRIEFRR)(F—) -

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical .
assets or liabilities (level 1).

BEXAET AR ENPINER)
HEZ (AN ERSIA)BRZ&HA
BE - TRES-ARNZHE(E =
&) e

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that .
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

BENBERIWIKEAIERMS
R A (BT e A BUER) (5
=) e

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on J
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

TEEIAEBPR -_ZE—AER-Z—)\
F+-A=+-ARATEFEZSRA

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are at
fair value at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—1% E_R E=M
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT AREFT ARETR
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\§
+=A=t+—-H
Assets BE

BAVHEF AR BZERA

Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income JEREE 62,647 - 32,600 95,247

Financial assets at fair value through BAFE AR
profit or loss LEMEE - - 17,498 17,498
62,647 - 50,098 112,745
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3 BIRRMEE®

3.3 APEMF )

Level 1

&

RMB’000

Total

st
RMB’000

Level 3
E=R
RMB’000

Level 2
-t 1
RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥Tr ARETR ARET:
At 31 December 2019 R=EB-N%F
+=A=t+—-H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFET AR 2 ERA
other comprehensive income JemEE 65,387 - - 65,387
Financial assets at fair value through AT E N ER
profit or loss LERMERE - - 43,263 43,263
65,387 - 43,263 108,650

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 during the year.

(a) Financial instruments in level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the consolidated
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, price services
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on

observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

()  Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include the use of quoted market prices
and adjusted price-to-book ratios similar instruments.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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(a) F—-RZELMTA
EREMSEEZSRTARTE
RIBE G BN R BB Z TSGR
BtE - ERTR REHBIHFERR
S R B ERAL
BRERBAEZERERGRE
MABBRERRILZATZHELEE
TZEREERTER5E  Zm
SRR RERTS - REEMRTA
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il —IEEA £ 2 ERHm AL IF
ERABRZTSHE  ZTAR
AB=ZFRA -

(b)

() FAREERFEZ G ERN
BRIt I AEE AR
HERNEEERTSRE R
FRETAZ ERHBEMEE -



N -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHERER
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEFE)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b)) FE=FKzEMTAE)
The following table represents the changes in level 3 TREIHEZZ-NAF+A
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2019. =t+—BLFEE=RTEZEH-

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other
through profit  comprehensive
or loss income

(note ii and iii) (note i)

BAYE BAPERA
STAR#HZ Hip2EBA
SREE ZEREE

(=i i) (BrEi)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&E—A—H 17,498 32,600
Fair value changes credited to consolidated statement RAFHREREERTA
of comprehensive income ZAFEZS 25,765 -
Disposal HE - (32,600)
As at 31 December 2019 R-_Z—h&E+-A=+—H 43,263 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBRER®

3.3 APEMF )

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b) F=RZELHMTA(E)
The following table represents the changes in level 3 THRENBE-_Z-NF+A
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018. =+ BLFEE=QRTEZEH-

Financial Financial
assets at assets at Financial
fair value fair value liabilities at Available-
through  through other fair value for-sale
profit or comprehensive  through profit financial
loss (note i) income (note)  or loss (note i) assets
BAFBEHA
th 2 E Y
=)
RMB OOO RMB'000 RMB OOO RMB OOO
ARBFT RETT AREFT ARBFT
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—H—H 2,100 - (169,000) 528,960
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RWEBN RS
KERIEOE s 2 494,425 34,535 - (528,960)
Additions NE 3,500 - - -
Transferred to investment in EY RS AR
associate %E (541,000) - - -
Issuance of shares in related HIARERH
to contingent consideration BT A
arrangement 3,040 - - -
Cancellation of contingent BUESA
consideration arrangement RELZH - - 165,626 -
Fair value changes credited to REHHTERERTA
consolidated statement of ZANTEEE
comprehensive income 84,183 - 3,374 -
Fair value changes credited to REMZERAGA
other comprehensive income 2 A TERE - (1,935) - -
Disposal HE (28,750) - -
As at 31 December 2018 —Z-)\F
+-A=+t—-H 17,498 32,600 - -

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuation of financial asset required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values with

AEEMBAHRE-XEX A5
FEINE(EERD 2 1B T S
BMETHEZeREE(RES=

assistance of external valuers. This team reports directly to Bz AFENE - ZEFEEZERE
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Audit Committee EHBE(EFRMBE) REZEE

(AC). Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at least once
before the reporting date of every half year, in line with the

Group's reporting dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

SR A TER AR 2 E KA
ZEMEEME @ AEERR
FEERBEMEEZZHNE
UEBRAELBRARZTS
BRBIEFTAFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIBERERE
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMF @)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b) E=HRKZLHTA(E)
(i)  For the financial assets at fair value through other (i)
comprehensive income, the Group estimates the fair
value based on the latest unit selling price of the
financial assets on an arm’s length basis and the market
data of comparable companies.
(i) Contingent consideration arrangement related to the (ii)

(iii)

acquisition of Zale Inc. and Huijia Yuantian Limited,
which included in the fair value of the financial assets
through profit or loss was estimated by applying
income approach which considers the probability
that companies could achieve the performance target
and the market prices of the consideration share at
the valuation date. The key unobservable assumption
used in the valuation of calculating this contingent
consideration include:

Zale Inc.

Zale Inc.
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE = )N\F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t+—H

Probabilities to achieve the EREHEE

performance target 2= 100% 90%

AR eREERTER
fEEEEZale Inc. EETK
ERABIBEBIHIANRER
BE o R EURASE G
ERINAEKBOEZE A
BE I R E R H R E B A
LT o FTEZIARE MG
EfAZEEZTIEHEEBRER
#E

Huijia Yuantian Limited
EETRAERAE
31 December

31 December
2018
—ZT—N\F
+=A
=+—A

2019
—E-hE
+=5
=+-8

0% 80%

The remaining financial asset through profit or loss (iii)
represents the puttable fund. The key unobservable
assumption used in the valuation is the adjusted price-

to-book ratios which is 1.46 (2018: 1.00).

BT ABR SR EEER
REES - HEMAZEETR
AERBRALARTESR
1.46(=Z—/\fF : 1.00) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom
equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.12. For intangible assets with finite useful life, the
Group reviews internal and external sources information to
identify indications of impairment. In determining where
goodwill and intangible assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of cash-generating
units to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net present
value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset or cash-generating unit and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's
financial condition and results of operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EEgHMAEFRAEH @

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 BEESFHHAFHREBERE
(Continued)
(b) Fair value of the equity interest retained in Zhongmo (b)) RHABEFREZRERFE
Group
On 26 December 2019, the Group's subsidiary Hunan RZB-AE+-_A=-+B K
Zhongmoyun Construction Science and Technology Co., NAIME AR AmE P EEEERK

Ltd. ("Zhongmo") completed its share placement to an
independent third party in which the investors subscribed
1.96% of newly issued shares in Zhongmo with an aggregate
consideration of RMB20 million. Upon completion of the
above transaction, the Group’s interest in Zhongmo was
diluted from 36.80% to 36.08%. Subsequent to transaction,
the memorandum of article of Zhongmo had been revised,
and the acting in concert agreement that the Group entered
into with another shareholder as disclosed in Note 25
have also been terminated. Accordingly, the Group only
has right to appoint two directors out of five positions in
the Board of directors of Zhongmo, and will no longer be
able to control Zhongmo Group but continue to exercise
significant influence over Zhongmo Group. As a result,
Zhongmo Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group
with effect from 26 December 2019 and Zhongmo Group
has then been accounted for investment in associates in the
consolidated financial statement using the equity method
of accounting. Such transaction was recognised as deemed
disposal of subsidiaries. The notional purchase price allocation
was supported by valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer, the Group use judgement in making
the assumption on key estimates including revenue growth,
gross profit margin and discount rate based on the Group’s
past history, existing market condition and forward looking
estimates.

For details of the fair value estimate, refer to Note 26.

BRAR([HE])FEX A —BEL
FBZFEK - REEUNBREBAR
B20E & TR R 1.96% %
ThRM - PR SHEKE - A%
B R #5H36.80%#E =
36.08% ° R 5% - FRZAEME
ERUIELIEET + BERMI sE25FTH
BASEAS —ERETILZ—K
TEHRINE &I « B - ANEMR
EERERFEZESSNRMEBRMZF
ZAMEBES - BTHEHPESE
E - HEEEREEEEAERY
Z2hH Al  PESFEE=ZT—A
FH+Z A+ NARTBIEALAE
EMEAR  BPEEEBLC %
DRSS ERE M BREPA
RIVERB A AR ZIRE - BER
SERRBBELHENB AR - £&
BESRA BB FEGEME
TZEEXR  AEERREASE
ERAESE - BAEMRRAE NG
FTUERA(REHERAEER -
EF TR LA ) #ITRRRER A
ﬁﬁ °

BENFEMFTZFE - F2HMN
7126 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of intangible assets

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
useful lives of the intangible assets. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as the
attrition rates and obsolescence rates.

Impairment of other non-financial assets

At each date of consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to identify indications that the interests in
associates which are significant to the Group may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Significant judgement is exercised by the management
in determination of the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale by using (i)prevailing market data such
as most recent sale transactions and market survey reports
available from independent property valuers; and (ii) internal
estimates of costs based on quotes by suppliers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_-Z

—NFETZA=t—RLEFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(d) Impairment of other non-financial assets (Continued)

(e)

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group's interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at
any given reporting date. If an indication of impairment is
identified, such information is further subject to an exercise
that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount,
representing the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to
sell or its value in use. Depending on the Group's assessment
of the overall materiality of the asset under review and
complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessment utilising
internal resources or the Group may engage external advisors
to counsel the Group in making this assessment. Regardless
of the resources utilised, the Group is required to make many
assumptions to make this assessment, including the utilisation
of such asset, the cash flows to be generated, appropriate
market discount rates and the projected market and
regulatory conditions. Changes in any of these assumptions
could result in a material change to future estimates of the
recoverable amount of any asset.

Provision of impairment of financial assets

For loans and interest receivables, significant judgement
is exercised in the assessment of the collectability from
each counter party. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of historical
payment records, following-up procedures performed by
customer relationship personnel, counter parties’ payment
record, creditability, nature of loans, underlying security as
well as forward looking estimates.

The loss allowances for other financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

4 EESTHEFTRHAE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—-Z

—NFETZA=t—RLEFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Share-based payment
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the fair value of the share-based payments. In making its
judgement, management considers a wide range of factors
such as the share price of the Group and the expected vesting
number of share options.

Taxes

The Group's subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to income tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes (“LAT") in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of
LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with local tax authority in the PRC for its property
project. Accordingly, judgement is required in determining
the amount of the land appreciation taxes. The Group
recognised land appreciation taxes based on management’s
best estimates according to the interpretation of the tax rules.
The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in
which such taxes have been finalised with local tax authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(h)

Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities through profit
or loss, were determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates and fair value
of the Company’s shares, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumption used could materially affect the fair
value of these balances and as a result affect the Group's
financial condition and results of operation.

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Existence of significant influence over Jingu bank

In financial year 2018, Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural
Commercial Bank Company Limited (“Jingu"”) obtained the
approval from China Banking Regulatory Commission in
relation to the change of the composition of the board of
director. Upon the completion, the Group would have the
right to appoint one director to the board and participates in
all significant financial and operating decisions. The Group
has therefore determined that it has significant influence over
Jingu, even though it only holds 9.8% of the voting rights.

Revenue from merchandise sale through its B2B trading
platforms

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or
as an agent in the sales of goods on the Group’s platform
requires judgement and consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances. In evaluation of the Group acting as a
principal or an agent, the Group considers, individually or in
combination whether the Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilment the contract, is subject to the inventory risk, has
discretion to establish prices. Having considered the relevant
facts and circumstances, management considers that the
Group obtains control of those goods sold through the B2B
platforms before the goods are transferred to the customers.
Accordingly, the Group is acting as a principal for the direct
sales and the related revenue is presented on a gross basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4 EESTHEFTRHAE e

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Group’s 42 ERASEEH R ZEZAEH
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

(c) Fair value of sale and lease back properties (c) HEREHAHEIYHRZ L FE

The Group had started the pre-sale of the 020 business
exhibition centre in the PRC to third parties through its
indirectly owned subsidiary, Guangdong Huicong Household
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd.* ("EERZBEREBHIRE
BRAR]") since 2014.

Some of the properties sale transactions were subject to
sale and lease back arrangement, in which the properties
buyers entered into sale contracts with Guangdong Huicong
Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd. and non-
cancellable lease back agreements with Foshan Huiconghui
E-business Co., Ltd* ("#ILTAREEFREABERAF"),
another indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group. Pursuant
to the lease back agreement, the buyers would lease back
the units purchased to the Group in 20 years terms. At
consolidation level, the above contracts involved the sale and
lease back of same assets form a sale and operating lease
back transaction.

The Group has completed the handover certain units of
properties which under the sale and lease back transaction
and recognised the revenue in prior year. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, there was no sale of properties
under such sale and lease back arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value of sale and lease back properties (Continued)
The Group assesses the fair value of these properties based
on valuations prepared by independent and professional
qualified valuer. The fair value is determined by reference to
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) with adjustments to reflect any changes in
market and economic conditions; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
of current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

Deemed disposal of Zhongmo Group

As described in note4(i)(b) and note 26 the transaction related
to Zhongmo Group was recognised as deemed disposal of
subsidiaries.

Zhongmo Group was classified as a separated CGU for the
rental of construction equipment; however, since Zhongmo
Group is not a major line of business nor geographical area of
operations according to the management’s judgement and its
financial result do not constitute as a significant component
of the Group’s result, the Group determined that no separate
disclosure for discontinued operation is necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

%&

7 EER

BREREHEE (T ELBREHEE D)

RERPITES - WTEEEHNARBZR

%Bi&% ’ L\/{Ezﬁgigfﬁj]’:/\aai§7ﬁ . %IEE‘*E
B EREETREDE -

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating WITESRIBBRATERANEF (B8t 2T
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before income tax. This HEBHERE - RIS HEMRKREEHER
measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure I ETNE -

from operating segments.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is organised into the following —NF+ZRA=+—8 " A&EAH A

business segments:

(i)  Technology-driven new retail segment, which mainly include
provision of online advertising services through “zol.com.cn” as
well as B2B2C retail business of electronics products by leveraging
big data and internet technology through the Group’s websites
and trading platforms.

(i) Smart industries segment, which mainly include B2B trading
platforms, provision of anti-counterfeiting products and services,
supply chain management services as well as rental services and
construction equipment.

(iii)  Platform and corporate services segment, which mainly include the
online services provided through “hc360.com”, advance marketing
services utilising the digital big data and tools, and provision of
financing and other services.

(iv) 020 business exhibition centre segment, which mainly include
sales of properties and provision of properties rental and
management services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The table below shows the segment information of sales and there were
no sales or other transactions between the business segments for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PEER @
TRBFIBENHBEH - HRE-T—NE
+oASt-RLEE  SEBRRY R
HEREMZH(—F—\F: T) -

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-E-NE+-A=t—HLEE

Platform
Technology- and 020
driven Smart corporate business
new retail industries services exhibition
segment segment segment centre
=0
REHMEE EEEX R 0207 %
BERE BER BER REHL @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AR®T ARETR AR¥ETR AR®ET
Revenue HEWRA 844,493 13,050,827 796,942 20,707 14,712,969
Interest income from financing £ BIRISETG
services FEWA - - 119,863 - 119,863
Total revenue and income BIHEWARBA 844,493 13,050,827 916,805 20,707 14,832,832
Impairment loss on goodwill BENELEE
and intangible asset REEE - (38,426) (258,213) - (296,639)
Segment results DEEE (96,445) (9,817) (311,540) (152,755) (570,557)
Other income HigA 28,962
Other gains, net Hipla 55 272,453
Share of post-tax profit N (Y T/NG]]
of associates B A 13,593
Share of post-tax loss of ME—FHRELE
joint venture BEi B ER (5)
Finance income FIBBA 17,226
Finance cost BATER R (177,169)
Loss before income tax BrFETERiRIE IR (415,497)
Other information: HiER -
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& R 263,652
Share based compensation VAR BERE
expense HERZ 80,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 EBER @)

P

Year ended 31 December 2018
BET-\F+_A=+—HLLFE

Platform
Technology- and 020
driven Smart corporate business
new retail industries services exhibition
segment segment centre
RBEHEE BEER R 0207 %
£ i E £ Jit: BEH L
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT T AREFTT ARETT ARETT
Revenue WA 557,875 9,211,537 591,870 86,136 10,447,418
Interest income from financing 4 BARISFT 1S
services 2 A - - 135,693 - 135,693
Total revenue and income BIEEWARIA 557,875 9,211,537 727,563 86,136 10,583,111
Segment results AL 62,697 3,383 67,584 (40,508) 93,156
Other income Hnlg A 35,464
Other gains, net HihaF 58 258,181
Share of post-tax profit Akl -UNG]
of associates BRFE R A 28,014
Finance income BRI 12,044
Finance cost BTSN (94,424)
Profit before income tax B FTSH AR A 332,435
Other information: HipEH
Depreciation and amortisation  #TE K # s 151,817
Share based compensation PR BER 2
expense HERY 74,580
As at 31 December 2019, the total non-current assets includes right-of- RZE-NE+_A=+—H FRPEE
use assets, investment properties, property, plant and equipment and REPFBUNTBRZERAEEE  KRED
intangible assets located in PRC are approximately RMB3,601,901,000 ¥ E BEEAIXBUREBREEEDHDA
(2018: RMB4,311,602,000). R ¥3,601,901,000c( —Z— N\F : ARK

4,311,602,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the revenue is derived (E_T-NEFETZA=T—HILFE - B

from the operation in the PRC from external customers, except for the FTASFTIRER 2 BBt AT R 55N - FTBHEERA

related party transaction disclosed in Note 45 (2018: Same). HREPEEE 2 IMNBER - (ZZF—\F : 1/
A) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZHEBER )
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) DIHFHERA

2019 2018
—2-nE  —2)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETT

Timing of revenue recognition R E U AR R
— At a point in time — PRI 13,611,888 9,364,354
— Overtime — Be R 783,981 963,937

14,395,869 10,328,291

2019 PAONES
—2-nE  —2)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Revenue from contract with customers: BEAMIA :
Sales of goods through B2B trading platform  B2BX 5 & 13,417,176 9,102,366
Online services and advertisement B ERBRES 576,487 887,142
Anti-counterfeiting products and services B 17 i S AR 75 170,841 157,991
Marketing events, exhibition, seminars and LINEE) CRE i ek

other services E b AR 75 120,076 118,688
Sales of properties and properties SHE W R EE IR

management services 10,723 59,238
Sales of construction equipment FHE AL 97,971 1,032
Others Hi 2,595 1,834

14,395,869 10,328,291

Income from other sources: EAMIR AR -
Interest income from financing services SRR FTEHEWA 119,863 135,693
Rental income from investment properties WEMEMSHSIKA 15,038 13,462
Rental income from leasing of construction THEREERME

equipment Frigi e A 302,062 105,665
Total revenue and income HBIHE WA RN 14,832,832 10,583,111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oS@MER@
(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with (b) EEFANERCEERAR
customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities REBECHRATIREFEHNEHCEE
related to contracts with customers: REfE:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Contract assets related to online services MR FRRIEERESEBZ

and advertisement BHEE 7,428 8,242
Less: provision for impairment (note 3.1(b)(0)) & : LB B A5 (BH3E3.1(b)) (218) (108)
Contract assets related to online services W FREERESEB

and advertisement, net AHEEFRE 7,210 8,134
Contract assets recognised for costs incurred — FLBTTA KIFTE A B ANHER

to obtain contracts BHEE 15,180 30,831
Contract related assets, total BHHBEELT 22,390 38,965

Contract liabilities related to online services BAR PR N ES B

and advertisement SHBEE 125,371 140,190
Contract liabilities related to sales of goods HB2BR S FRHEE M

on B2B trading platform BEzaraE 215,993 185,856
Contract liabilities related to sales HIHEYE MEESERE

of properties, properties management @A EE

services 69,623 59,442
Contract liabilities aEHBaE 410,987 385,488
Less: Non-current portion B FERBIS - (36,622)
Current portion ENED D 410,987 348,866
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant changes in contract related assets and
liabilities

Contract related assets mainly represent revenue arising
from online services business recognised prior to the agreed
payment schedule date. Sales commissions and agency
fees paid in respect of obtaining subscription revenue has
also capitalised and amortised when the related revenue
are recognised. Contract related assets have decreased by
RMB16,575,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019
due to the Group had less number of contract obtained
from agency. The Group also recognised a loss allowance for
contract related assets in accordance with HKFRS 9, see note
3.1(b)(i) for further information.

Contract liabilities mainly represent advance payments
received from customers related to online services, B2B
trading platform and sales of properties. Contract liabilities
increased by RMB25,499,000 due to increase in B2B trading
platform contract activities.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the year related to carried forward contract
liabilities.

5

DEE R @)
(b) EEFAHNEREEERERB®)

()

(ii)

EHEHEERBEZEALE

AHNRBEEXZERTEERNRK
BRIFTERR A HE RS ZHE
WA o s ER Z ETRI B IRA 2
HEME RRIZEA D RIERME
BHERAR S BB RERTERN
FOEITEES c BE-_T—NE+ =
A=+—RLLFE  ANHEBEE
B AR 16,575,0007T © RE A
AEBEREBERNESOHREE
FTR L o REBIMRIRE S S 5 5HR
ERBFIORBENEEEERER
EERE  E—PAMBELHWNE
3.1(b)i) ©

SHBEBEEIEEER LR  B2B
ZHVERHEEMES B ERE
FIE - AMB2BRZF A ZAEH
EEIEM - AWREDEMARYE
25,499,0007T °

BENBEEZHERA
TRIRAAFE R AW A 82
rEANAERRE 2 -

2019
—2-nE

AONES]
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREETIT

RMB’000
AR®ET T

Revenue recognised that was included FFAFVIENBGEE®R
in the contract liabilities balance at ERERIEERA
the beginning of the year
— Online services and advertisement — B ERBRES 140,190 90,482
— Sales of goods on B2B trading —B2BR BT AHE
platform En 185,856 150,506
- Adjustment recognised on adoption — B A SIS 2ER|
of HKFRS 16 F165R R AE 12,809 -
338,855 240,988
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)

(iii) Unsatisfied performance obligation
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) was RMB441,271,000,
(2018: RMB392,848,000). Management expects that the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance
obligations will be recognised as revenue when the related
services, mainly related to provision of advertising services,
are provided over the next 2 years (2018: 1 years) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Group has elected the practical expedient for not to
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) for revenue contracts which have an
original expected duration of one year or less.

6 OTHER INCOME

5

6

DEBE R (@)
(b) EEFEHNEBEERERE®)

(iii) FKETZBHE
R—TE—-—hFE+=-—A=+—8"
DEERBIT(XBHKRET)E
NETZRBERBEAARE
441,271,000 ( —ZZE—N\F : AR
#392,848,0007T) - B ETAL] -
i 2 B B8 & 25 AR 75 40 B8 40 AR 75 A R
EZT-NF+ZA=+—HLF
E#25(ZT—N\F  1F) MR
- BEHSIREERBETROREZ
RS ERBERBHEWA ©

AEBEDERBERER T E T
TR HIR — S A AR S B A
BRRBESREERET(RIDKE
TIRHEEZ X HEIRERE -

HAKA

2019 2018
—g-nE T\

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Government grants T Eh 27,747 34,750
Dividend income R B U A 1,215 714
28,962 35,464

Various government grants have been received from the local
government authority for promoting electronic trading platform among
the enterprise in the PRC. The Group recognised these government
grants as other income when all the conditions specified in the
government approval completed.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AEECHRFEETEEREFES T AR
HEMBTEE 2 ZABRFHE) - AEEREK
FFHLAE 2 2 B0 RE IR M S R R F BN 1
B REMIA



N -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HikEFEEE
Other gains, net, mainly consist of the following: El e FREEERREATEE

2019 2018
—2-nE  —2)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Impairment loss recognised in respect of MREE R BIRE R

investment in associates RIEEE (2,735) (19,547)
Fair value gains on deemed disposal of RIELEPIEEB

Zhongmo Group (note 26) AN EWE(FIEE26) 246,797 -
Change in fair value on financial liabilities BATEGABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss THEBEATEY - 3,374
Gains on disposal of associates HER S AR Z W EE 1,289 -
Loss on disposal of an associate &g AT 2 B8 (149) -
Change in fair value on financial assets BATEFAEZRZ

at fair value through profit or loss eRMEEANTEZS 25,765 10,192
Change in fair value on financial asset B ARATFEFAREZ

at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEATEE

in relation to Jingu = 94,000
Fair value gains on deemed disposal on DR INEE SR E T

step acquisition on Shanghai Mianlian BB ERATRIEREZ

E-business Co., Limited N AW = 2,304
Fair value gains on deemed disposal on AEBRBEERREHAS T

step acquisition on Guangdong Jiadian ABAERABRIEHEZ

Shijie E-business Company Limited N ERE - 2,314
Fair value gains on deemed disposal on 73 P& B Ui B b T B s B

step acquisition on Beijing Rongshang BEERAGRIEHEZ

Tonglian Technology Co., Ltd. ~NHERE = 164,878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

8 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

The (loss)/profit before income tax is arrived

BRATISTAT(B51R), (MR

RMB’000
ARET T

8 BRATSBiAI(EE), EF

2019
—E-hF

2018
—=—N\F

RMB’000
ARETIT

at after charging/(crediting): (Bt A ) AT & IB1BED -
Direct expenses of B2B trading platform BB G EavEHEER 13,352,304 9,052,746
Cost of goods sold for anti-counterfeiting b m kR 2 BEEE M A

products and services 71,927 78,741
Cost of construction equipment sold BERERENAR 66,668 7,815
Cost of properties sold EEWIEA 13,535 28,250
Interest cost for financing services & RIS SH E AN 14,617 19,509
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI 5

— Audit services —ZH RIS 6,461 6,073

— Non - audit services — B R 1,232 3,519
Agency cost RIEFEH 29,609 40,267
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR B = 4,737
Amortisation of investment properties B 21,859 18,258
Amortisation of intangible assets G EE 100,705 79,532
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #7% - BRE R BEITE 95,265 49,290
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 45,823 -
Employee benefits expenses EERMFAX 516,233 451,293
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE - BEMEE 2 WE

equipment (199) (298)
Impairment for completed properties held for FESHER TYERE

sales 21,641 -
Impairment for inventories FERIE 662 -
Impairment for investment properties KREMERE 18,381 -
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets 792 [ M2 4 R E IS 18 296,639 -
Marketing and consultancy expenses EIHRERAER 190,812 243,438
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEUBRFURL B BB 33,904 13,521
Provision for impairment of loans to customers of B FRIERIEES Y BE 2

financing service business RERE 39,494 23,212
Provision for impairment of other loans and Hib &5 R SR E R E

interest receivables 40 765
Provision for /(reversal of) impairment of other  E.fth & gb & B fE B,/ (#[@)

financial assets 24,191 (354)
Repairs and maintenance expense for BERERER

construction equipment REEH 20,910 -
Staff commission ETH% 39,762 69,102
Subcontracting labour fee SEATER 78,316 19,379
Transportation expense B 19,576 2,385
Operating lease payments in respect of land Rt REFY

and buildings LETAAER = 57,371
Expenses relating to leases HEEHEER

— Short term leases —fEEIEE 8,237 N/ATN 3 A

— Rental of construction equipment — HHAE R 23,429 9,018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

9 RERANMAX

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Wages and salaries TENH® 370,136 316,931
Retirement benefits costs (a) RREFIK AR () 65,412 59,782
Share based compensation ARG D 24+ 2 #1E
— Share Option Scheme — RS 52,979 64,528
Share based compensation VARG IS 245 2 (&
— Share Award Scheme — &t SEENE &I 27,706 10,052
516,233 451,293

The employee benefits expenses amounting to RMB220,028,000 (2018:
RMB214,919,000) are recognised in selling and marketing expenses;
RMB280,496,000 (2018: RMB236,374,000) in administrative expenses;
and RMB15,709,000 (2018: Nil) in cost of revenue in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

(@) In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to
make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated
at 16% (2018: 20%) of the basic salaries of the employees, and
employees are required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries
to the plans. The Group has no obligations for further pension
payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond these annual
contributions. The retirement benefits are paid directly from
the plan assets to the retired employees and are calculated by
reference to their monthly basic salaries at the date of retirement
and periods of service rendered.

As at 31 December 2019, there were no forfeited contributions
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the
Group.

SR A ANR220,028,0007T (=T — \F : A
R #214,919,0007T) « AR % 280,496,000 7T
(ZZF—N\F : AR¥236,374,0007T) K AR
#15,709,000 (=T —\F : T) ZEE®BF
FEZ D RIRERE NamR 2 HE RTISHE
B THERAREERATER -

(a) REFER - AEEGFRZEEER
FE2m16% (ZFT—\F : 20%) MEIK
RGBSR - BERARZEBIEH
HEARFHE8% 2K - B FFEHRK
S ANEEBRAREEAM RSN R
RINERRT o« BRNRNBZ ST EEE
BEEMAERKEEXN - WBEEREKRA
HZEAAHFRRERE 2 FHAE -

R-B-AEFE+-A=1+—08 " BERK
MR AT AR AN EE B R R IKEFE
£ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 9 EEEFEX®
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EfUBRSFHFEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FHN - AEERRUSSHFALEE=4
Group for the year include three (2018: two) directors whose —T-N\F - WMBEF  EE22MEE
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented in note 10. The RFEI0PF 25N 2 DR R - RFER
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining two (2018: three) ERNRERNTFHRTME(ZE-—NF: =
individuals during the year are as follows: EIANT 20T -

2019 2018
—E-hF —T)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXFe  BERY -
other allowances and benefits in kind EhER R EYF = 1,520 2,310
Share based compensation — AN S5 2 i 1E —
Share Option Scheme MRk ERTE 5,253 3,410
Share based compensation — LARRAD S5 2 #1E —
Share Award Scheme A7 B2 BT & 2,839 4,589
Retirement plan contributions RIRETEIMERR 140 221
9,752 10,530
The emoluments for these two individuals (2018: three) fell within UMG(—E—N\E: ZZ)ATZIEE
the following bands: BT :

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Nil to RMB 1,000,000 Tz AR¥1,000,0007T = -
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 A R#1,000,0017c% AR #2,000,0007T = -
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 A R#2,000,0017c% AR #3,000,0007T = 1
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 A R#3,000,0017TC%E A R #4,000,0007T = 1
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR#4,000,00170% AR®S5,000,0007T 1 -
RMB5,000,001 to RMB6,000,000 AR ¥55,000,001 T2 A K #6,000,0007T 1 -
RMB6,000,001 to RMB7,000,000 AR#6,000,00170%8 ARE7,000,0007T = 1

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group (0 &R AEEYERNEES EERES

to the directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned FATZAERENE - EAMASA I

above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AREBR 7 B BRmE(ZE—N

compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil). F ) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EEEFMRER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHAEZHE
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the BHE-_Z-N\FRZZ-NAF+ZA
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 is set out below: =+—HIEFE  BEFREETBRAE

ZEHMEFIT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
REEFARRENBLEESATEARERZHE
Employer’s
contribution
Estimated toa
money retirement

value of benefit

Salary other benefit scheme

E21)

Hft R R RINER
s e  AEE¥E  SEOMR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR¥TR AR%TrR AR%TR

2019: “E-hE
Mr. Liu Jun AERE - 602 21,405 88 22,095
Mr. Zhang Yonghong (note i)  3&7KAT 454 (Pl i) = 1,302 8,061 88 9,451
Mr. Lee Wee Ong (note ii) Lee Wee Ong?t &

(FEEiD - - - - -
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (note vi) B/ S A (F i) - 741 4,141 89 4,971
Mr. Guo Fangsheng BAESE = - - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang FRENEE = - - - -
Mr. Sun Yang (note iii) T o A (B eiin) - = = - -
Mr. Zhang Ke RrfE 250 - - = 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RABEE 220 - - - 220
Ms. Qi Yan F L 220 - - = 220
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EEw®HRELR &)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHAEZME(H)
(Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAARESEMBEXEZ 2 ATENIERZHE

Employer's
contribution

toa
retirement
Share-based benefit
Salary payment scheme
Exy
PARR (7 e RIRAEA
e e ARE S & 105 t+
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETT AREFT ARETT
2018: ZE-N\F:
Mr. Liu Jun AEEE - 600 41,326 90 42,016
Mr. Guo Jiang (note v) ST A (f3Ey) - 150 - 22 172
Mr. Lee Wee Ong Lee Wee Ong%c &
(note ii) (FzEin) - 720 1,271 - 1,991
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (note vi) NS ) - 350 2,236 53 2,639
Mr. Guo Fangsheng DBRAELE - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang TNt - - - - -
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (note iv) T & 545% 4 (Kizriv) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Ke KRkt 250 - - - 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RAEEE 220 - - - 220
Ms. Qi Yan AL 220 - - - 220
Note: B -
(i) Mr. Zhang Yonghong was appointed as an executive director with (i) RKAGHEZTANTES B-Z
effect from 4 January 2019. —NF—AMBREERK -
(i) Mr. Lee Wee Ong had resigned as an executive director with effect (i) Lee Wee OngZt ABBHEMITESE - B
from 4 January 2019. T NEFE-AMNBERER -
(i)~ Mr. Sun Yang was appointed as a non-executive director with effect iy BELEEZTAENTEE B -F
from 27 May 2019. —NEREAZTHHBER -
(iv)  Mr. Wong Chi Keung had resigned as a non-executive director with vy TFTEBCEDBTEHITES -
effect from 27 May 2018. —NERA-FHBEER -
(v)  Mr. Guo Jiang had resigned as an executive director with effect from (v) EIERADEERTEE  BEZZ N
27 March 2018. FZAZHERBER -
(vi)  Mr. Liu Xiaodong was appointed as an executive director with effect Vi) BINEAEEREFETEAHITESE B
form 1 June 2018. —N\EFERA—BRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 45, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any time during
the years.

No director received any housing allowance; emolument from
the Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or
compensation for loss of office; emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of director’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

10 EEENRER @)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

EERAEF
BE_T-NF+-A-+—HILFE
B B B MR S S W ER R AR R IR AR R
(ZZF—N\&F ).

EERBERN
BE_T-NAFt-A=+—HILFE "
1 2 = 0 SR 3 W R (4T B B 4 )
(ZF—N\F |-

BFHEERBERE=TRHE2K
(i
BE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—ALFE "
AR RBEFL E SRS PEAE=S
IARECCE-NF &) -

BRNES  EFEAEEBRZ
FEECHEERBRZRAZE
o BERRHMRE 2ER

BHE_T-NGF+-_A=1+—HILtFE "
BEAENESHZEGEABREZSE
BEX/MEBERARBEAZENR  EEX
REMZ SR (ZFE—\F : &)

EERXRS  ZPFHEHNHZEKX
R

BRPFEASPTIREE & 51 - AN S BB Mt K
EBIUARBNBRRRETTOTR
AAREFEERIHEEREGEA AN
ZEFERSAZEFENTAEBDARE
BIBRRS  THRAEWD -

BE_T-NGF+-A=1+—HItFE "
BEERCWIERFERE - REAE
&2 B LAYE R I SRBEFR A SR B 2 3R
BiskREBmhE  TEEEREERAAR
HIE %7 KRS E N e EE 2
(ZF—N\&F ).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

11 FINANCE COST, NET 1 BRI FE

2019 2018

—E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFIT

Interest expense: FIERX -
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (94,368) (71,264)
— Other borrowings —HAifg & (61,419) (11,085)
— Convertible bonds (note 37) — AR ES (H7E37) (12,583) (3,872)
— Lease liabilities (note 15) —HEBE(ME15) (8,486) -
— Others —E A4 (1,329) (8,203)
Finance cost BTSN AN (178,185) (94,424)
Amount capitalised on qualifying assets (note) BEREEARNLeE (M) 1,016 -
Finance income g TN 17,226 12,044
Finance cost, net BTG AR AR F5E (159,943) (82,380)
Note: B & -

(i) The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs
to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the
Group's general borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
around 6.99%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12 FREBAX

2019 AONES]
—E-hEF —E)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Current income tax expense EHFTSHAY
- Hong Kong profits tax —HBNEH - -
— The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") — B EATSH
(TZEFEHL)
— Current year —KREE 57,398 69,367
— Prior year —E—5E (1,833) -
— The PRC land appreciation tax — FR ] £ IR (E R 35,728 29,509
Deferred income tax credit RIEFTSTIE 2
— The PRC corporate income tax — B EMEH (47,025) (38,737)
— The PRC withholding tax — R ETERR = (4,579)
44,268 55,560

(a)

(b)

(0

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year (2018: Nil).

The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the cities in the PRC in which the Group operates.

The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%,
except for certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which were
approved as High and New Technology Enterprise which subject to
a reduced preferential CIT rate of 15% for a 3-year period certain
subsidiaries of the Group also subject reduced preferential CIT rate
ranging from 5% to 10% for Small Low-profit Enterprises.

The PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates of 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including land use
right and all property development expenditures.

HNEF AT ENEBELERTER
SR S B BB B (B — N\
&) o

PEIMEMASHENE NI A KRB RS
EBAESERHIRTHE B ERTORH
B2 B

TEMMBEARZERBER25% © AR
SEETHEIME R RE KR RS IR
MRS ZENBARN=FHEF
BRAEEELEMEHEIS% - IR
SEETHWERRNE A/ NEBAEESR
SEMNEHEESLEMSHE N T
5%%10% °

B IR ET A IR E R (R E
MEMRBFRRBE L HERERAEY
FRRFAXERNZ AR ®RI0%E
60% Z IRAE T RAERUL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12

iR

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax from continuing
operations differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the tax rate of the location of the Group companies as follows:

AEERERHECEEBRTA(EE),S5F
ZBIBHEERAAEE QAR AR 2 REFE
PRSEmBEERNT ¢

2019 AONE:]
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMETTT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSREAT(E518) 5 (415,497) 332,435
Tax calculated at 25% (2018: 25%) 1R25% R E 2 TiH
(ZZ—NF :25%) (103,874) 83,109
Effect of different tax rates in other H A3 TR AT RIB R BHUR
cities/under preferential tax treatment BEFETITAMRE 22 13,619 (16,632)
Income not taxable BAERBMA (42,923) (44,435)
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for PRC Bt B (b P BLE H HUREY
corporate income tax proposes R £ b I E R (8,932) (7,377)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes CIE =1z 114,927 10,661
Tax loss not recognised RIERFIEEE 37,556 725
Overprovision of tax from prior year BEFEIEBERE (1,833) _
PRC corporate income tax R EATET 8,540 26,051
PRC land appreciation tax R £ 3 BE(E R 35,728 29,509
Income tax expense FTiSFif X 44,268 55,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

13 BR(EER) &F

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company (B51R), %

AR H ARG

2019 2018
—®-nE  ZF)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

(376,490) 275,610

Weighted average number of shares in issue BEBITIRG 2 98 1,120,494 1,119,464
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of RERTTIE B 35 L AR i 35 0

share option granted pd ) - 1,959
Diluted weighted average number of shares BEERR D 2 INE 5 2R 1,120,494 1,121,423
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (in RMB) FGREKR(ER) BF(AREK) (0.3360) 0.2462
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (in RMB) GRESE(BER) BR(ARK) (0.3360) 0.2458

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary
shares repurchased by the Company (note 32).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two categories
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible debt and share options.
The convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into ordinary
shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense
less the tax effect. For the share options, the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options
less the number of shares that could have been issued at fair value
(determined as the average market price per share for the year) for the
same total proceeds is the number of shares issued for no consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all of these convertible debt
and the share options had anti-dilutive effect to the Company and it is
ignored in the calculation of diluted loss per share (2018: Convertible
debt had anti-dilutive effect to the Company and it is ignored in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share).

BREX(EBR) BIRAQBEEEE AR
15(EBE),/SHFIBRIAFEARND BT E B INEF
BEFE (T REARARER 2 E@mR) (&
32)

Fh#E(EE) BT ﬁ%ﬂ”%ﬁ&é’l\%%ﬁ%
Eﬁbﬂ*&?ﬁ%ﬁ(%fﬁ“”ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ&?ﬁ B E
ERmAE ARBZECHTLRERD BB
8 T}ﬁﬁsd IE&ﬁﬁﬂx%"ﬂ}ﬁﬁﬂ ARRE
BRAE * MAEHI A B2 A EE LA S 3 7 B 5
i%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’xwa PEBREM S - REREARE
EiITRERE BT ZRNE B IRRAERME

REREAFEZFENERER D 2 FETEE
m)T%%ﬁZH%’ﬁ%(E & AMSHEERTZ
BiHEA -

BE-Z-NFT_A=+—HLFE =¥
ﬁE@T}ﬁHﬂ A RERESARTE REEY
2 BUEAEHESREIBER(ZZ-N
FABABRERMERESARRARE
BYE - WUERETESRETRR) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE
No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during and for the HEZZ-NFT_A=+—BLLFE X2
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). A ERNRERRE(ZT—\F - &) -
15 LEASES 15 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a) REHMBERARBRZEHE
of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the AR RA T RIBERRBE 22
following amounts relating to the leases: H
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARET T
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Initial recognition as at 1 January R—HA—BHYIZHER 259,118
Additions NE 7.814
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEENRB AR (6,804)
Depreciation (note 8) #rE (fiEs) (45,823)
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 214,305
Lease liabilities HESE
Initial recognition as at 1 January W—A—BYIZHER 163,310
Additions NE 7.814
Disposals & (7,119)
Payments (NES (80,496)
Interest expenses FERX 8,486
At 31 December BW+—-—A=+—H 91,995
Current R 74,598
Non-current B 17,397

91,995
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

15 LEASES (continued) 15 HE )
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) REMGENBRRBERZSHE
of comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the EiffFEERERIITATHAERR . ©
following amounts relating to the leases: B
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FEREEEZIEER
Land use rights T AR 4,737
Properties ME 41,086
45,823
Interest expense FER® 8,486
Expenses relating to short-term leases EICHATE A 2 X 8,237
Depreciation of approximately RMB26,776,000 is included in Pre&E B AR 26,776,000 L5t ATTHE
administrative expenses; and RMB 19,047,000 in cost of sales in the B R ARBE19,047,0007Tit AABHE A
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The total cash WamR ZHERAR - RZT—NF - HE
outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB88,733,000. ZIRE R ERE A AR 88,733,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 REWHE

2019 2018
—E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
At 1 January n—AH—H 623,829 642,087
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B - WE MK EER
(note 18) (PzE18) 187,242 -
Amortisation e (21,859) (18,258)
Impairment B (18,381)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 770,831 623,829

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held four properties (2018: 1) as
investment properties and measured at cost.

The fair value of the investment property of Shunde Household
Electrical Appliances Centre was determined by an independent valuer
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited at RMB778,000,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB878,000,000). The fair air value of the
investment property is derived using the market comparison approach.
This valuation method is essentially a mean of valuing the investment
properties by assuming sale of each of these properties in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession. By making reference to sales
transactions as available in the relevant market, comparable properties
in close proximity have been selected and with adjustments to valuer’s
interpretation on the difference in factors such as location and property
size.

The fair value of others investment properties were determined by
another independent valuer, Shenzhen Guoce Real Estate Land Appraisal
Co., LTD at RMB222,351,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: N/A).
The fair value of investment properties are derived using the income
approach. This valuation method is essentially a mean of valuing the
investment properties by discounting cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows.

The fair value is valued by independent professionally qualified valuers
who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location of the investment property valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purpose. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO)
and the audit committee (AC).

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17

At each financial year end, finance department:
e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report,

e Assesses property valuations movements when comparing to the
prior year valuation report, and

o Holds discussion with the independent valuer.
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. No other variable lease payments that

depend on an index or rate.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment
properties, refer to note 41.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

16 REWE =)

17

REMBFER - B -

o REBUMERSAMEIZEHABIE

o fEMEGEER L FHERSZS
B 5

o HBV(LERMEMR
REWEFLEREEEHELETE, - B
BAXN - SEEMBURR Y EE BRI TS

SHYFEME R -

AR E Y 2 RN SR & RFE 2R
410

FEHER TR

2019 2018

—E-hF —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREETTT

At 1 January B—A—H 82,500 110,750
Properties sold BEEWE (13,535) (28,250)
Impairment NEAIE] (21,641) -
At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=1+—H 47,324 82,500

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. The cost of
properties sold recognised as expense and included in “Cost of revenue”
amounted to approximately RMB13,535,000 (2018: RMB28,250,000).
The impairment recognised as expense during the year 31 December
2019 and included in cost of revenue amounted to approximately
RMB21,641,000 (2018: Nil) to write down certain properties held for
sales to their net realisable values.

FIEREHERIYEHUATE - EEWE
ZRARARY - Wit AHEKR] €5
£ A ARH13,535,000 0 (ZF—N\F : ARKE
28,250,0007T) « HE-ZE—AF+-A=1+—
HIEFE  HARKE21,641,000L(=ZF— N
F - m)RBEERAAZWET AHERE « LA
WA THELEMETH ] #IRFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buldings

Computer
and telecom-
munications
equipment

18 M% - MERRE

Fixtures,
fittings and
officc  Leasehold

equipment
e |

improvements

Motor  Production

vehicles~ equipment

Rental
construction
equipment

Construction
in progress

3 AE EETE 5]
RMBIOOO  RMB'0O0  RMBIOO0  RMB00  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000
\RETT  ARETT  ABETRL Tt AREBTr ARETT ARETR Tt ARETR
At1 January 2018 RZ8-\E-5-H
Cost B 336,837 92,341 24948 12,426 23,929 - - - 490,481
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (91,554) (64,676) (21,999) (8511) (17.383) - - - (204123)
Net book amount BEFE 2583 27,665 2,949 3915 6,546 - - - 286,358
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\E
TIR=T-ALEE
(Qpening net book amount EYEmTE 245283 27,665 2049 3915 6,546 - - - 286,358
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (note 24) YENBLA i) - 800 5t - 176 3,194 96,195 4am 05187
Additions AE 9,306 2,087 1,650 8,434 924 641 150,578 18422 192,042
Disposals it - B (19 - 428) - - - (510)
Depreciation (3] Q) (14,253) (9,965) (2122 (3:13) (3.046) (30 (16417 - (9
Closing net book amount FREMTE 240336 20,584 2,449 9,212 4172 3,485 230,356 23,193 533,787
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E
t2A=1-8
Cost K 336,234 90,732 25,981 17,540 20971 3835 246,986 23,193 765472
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (95899 (0,149 (353 (8328) (16799 (3% (16,630 - (231689
Net book amount BESE 240336 20,584 2449 9212 417 3,485 230,356 23,193 533,787
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18 M¥ - WMER®RE @)

Computer  Fixtures,

and telecom-  fittings and Rental

munications office  Leasehold Motor  Production construction Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment improvements  vehicles  equipment  equipment in progress

%AE\

53 ‘ &
RMBON)  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBOO  RMBOOD  RMBO00
ABRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARRTR ARRTZ ARBTr ARMTz ARMTz  ARMTR

A2 EERE REREN kEIR

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-NE
TZAZT-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 240,336 20,584 2,449 9212 417 3485 23035 B3 5B
Additions AE 986 1,610 1,047 569 780 1,167 - 124921 131,080
Interest capftalsed ERHE - - - - - - - 1,016 1,016
Transfer Additions g% - - - - - - 142931 (142,937) -
Transfer to investment properties (o) BRERANZD) (187,24) - - - - - - - (18140
Disposals e - (76) (192) (415) ®3) - - - (726)
Deemed disposal of BfEETEEE
Zhongmo Group (note 26) (H126) - (628) (475) (1,538) (672) (3611 (304353) (6193)  (317.4170)
Depreciation (3) () (11,589) (8.261) (936) (3.739) (1,802) (1,041)  (68,940) - (96,306)
Closing net book amount FREMTE 4249 13229 1,893 4,090 2435 - - - 64,139
At 31 December 2019 iy k3
+ZRzt-8
Cost ik 57,575 75,838 10413 13973 17083 - - - 174,822
Accumulated deprediation ZitnE (15083)  (62,609) (8,520) (9.883)  (14589) - - - (10,683
Net book amount FEFE 4249 13,229 1,893 4,09 2435 - - - 64,139
(@) Depreciation of approximately RMB1,041,000 (2018: Nil) capitalised (@) WEHAR®E1,041,00T(ZFE—N
as cost of “Construction in progress”; RMB2,594,000 (2018: FR)ERNMOBIEREIRIKAEA - OA
RMB3,440,000) is included in selling and marketing expenses; R#2,594,0000t( ZZE—\F : AR
and RMB23,731,000 (2018: RMB29,818,000) in administrative 3,440,0007T) & AR #23,731,0007T( =
expenses; and RMB68,940,000 (2018: RMB16,032,000) in cost of T—N\F : AR¥29,818,0007T) A KA
sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. R¥£68,940,0007TL(=ZF—N\F : AR
16,032,0007C) D RllaT A& BHR A I am &
ZHERTIZHEER  TREAREE
D NAR
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the property, plant by BE_ZT-NF+_RA=+—HILEE "
and equipment were reclassified as investment properties in the SRR B REEEN N = S K
consolidated statement of financial position, given the change in HNERIEE - B3~ R R B & DT
the usage of the properties from self-use as operating office to BIRARFEH DRI EME -

external rental.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BFREE

Trade name
Customer  and domain Technical
Goodwil  relationshi name license ~ Knowhow Platform Patent Others Total

5 FBE I - R T R
RMB'000 8000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
\RETT ABETR ARETR T ARETT ARETR NBSTR

At 1 January 2018 R-8-N\E-5-H
Cost TS 135207 3900 160,199 4000 100297 - - 711 2,542,334
Accumulated amortisation 2inE - ®1764 (9119 ©7)  (135%) - - {4052 (165934
Net book value FASE 135201 2621% 131080 953,028 86,742 - - 18187 2376400
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\E

tR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEmSE 135007 26013% 131,080 553028 86,702 - 6,590 1597 2376400
Acquiston of subsidiares (note 24) YEHERAWEM) 507,154 3,000 - - - 11590 32,100 200 680,154
Additions AE - - - - - - - 260 260
Disposals ik - - - - - - - (31) (31)
Amortisation (3 B SN (%) (1663 (13989 (139 (3059) (5864) (19532
Currency translation differences EHERZEE 11,404 - - - 3397 - - - 14,801
Closing net book amount FREMSE 1803785 233305 118093 541365 76150 115,761 35,631 79 299,05
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE
1 January 2019 tZB=t-AR

“E-75-B-A
Cost Ak 1803785 6900 160,199 4000 10486 115900 43,200 6983 323868
Accumulated amortisation ZirlH - (1135%) @106 (1263%) (871 (139) (7569 (41874 (246630
Net book value FEEE 1803785 233305 118093 541365 76,150 115761 35,631 7% 299,05
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19 BEFEEE®

Trade name
Customer  and domain Technical
Goodwill  relationship name Liense  Knowhow  Platform Patent Others Total

BE  EFBR  m¥REA BR  BANR ¥a L1 LU it
RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOX  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOO
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARBTR ARBTn ARBTr ARMTz ARMTz  ARMTR

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-fE

tZRZt-ALEE
Opening net book amount EEESE 1803785 233305 118093 541365 7615 115,761 35,631 7962 2,992,052
Additions e = - - - - - - m m
Deemed disposal of Znongmo Group =

(note 26) (¥zk26) (14933) - - - - - (6416 M) (#500)

Impairment Wil (287,585) - - - (9,054) - - - (296,639)
Amortisation () B0 - (32,031) (12,984) (11,663) (15,015) (16,557) (5,400) (7,055 (100,705)
Currency translation differences EUELZE 1,14 - - - 1,100 - - - 241
Closing net book amount EREETH 1,542,408 201214 105,109 529,702 53,181 99,04 3815 17933 2,552,626
At 31 December 2019 = ST

t2Azt-A
Cost A 1833819 36900 160,199 554000 10692 115900 11,100 08 317598
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2R RRE (91411 (145626 (550000  (4298)  (53781)  (16,6%) (1285 (29115 (623302)
Net book value EEEE 1,542,408 201274 105,109 529,102 53,181 99,204 3815 17933 2,552,626

(a) Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative (@) EEEEZHEFAGMHGERER2TT
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. BERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19 BEFEEE®

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets
Managements monitors and reviews the business performance at the
operating segment level. Goodwill are allocated to the following cash-
generating units (“CGUs").

BERAMETEERENR
EEEREEDBEREEREREBRE -
BEHOETTHRSELEM((REELSE
firl) -

2019 2018

—E-NEF —T)\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTFT

Anti-counterfeiting products and services b7 17 i I AR 7S 50,314 50,314
Online services — B2B2C business 4R ERRTE —B2B2CE 980,247 980,247
Online services — garment industry (note i) AREETT 2 4R 1 BR 7S (P 5T = 38,426
Integrated marketing and advertising services (note ii) & & R JE S AR (B i) - 248,018
Financing services (note iv) SRR (M V) 19,626 19,626
Trading services — cotton industry TG HRE—18 21,544 21,544
Construction equipment rental services BEFRBHEERS - 14,933
Electronic appliance e-business ERETHBE 15,957 15,957
New technology retails solutions MR ERRT R 454,720 454,720
1,542,408 1,843,785

The recoverable amount of the CGUs are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five year period or ten year period depending on individual
CGU circumstances. Cash flows beyond the five or ten years period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
Management estimates the pre-tax discount rate that reflects market
assessment of the time value of money and specific risk relating to the
industry.

As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group recognised
impairment for goodwill and other intangible assets for the (i)
online services-garment industry CGU and (ii) integrated marketing
and advertising services CGU amounting to RMB38,426,000 and
RMB258,213,000 respectively. For details, refer to the following notes.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ReEs Bz e RREREEAERE
E o EFEEEENRESSURALE
BEELEREDEFESHEFEHR MR
BEELZHARSRETRA - AFR+FH
MR 2B SRERA T X2 hFHE R E#E
g BEEMR T RRZITEEERREERS
FERR 2 5l 2 HATRRER X -

BARETRER S - AEERORETER L
REzIREELEMRINEALHELESR
BrRSELENRRATEREMELEE
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets
(Continued)

Note:

(0]

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“online services — garment industry”

On 18 December 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in ZhongFu Holdings Limited (“Zhongfu”), which is principally
engaged in the online service business in relation to the garment industry
in the PRC. The total consideration was HKD170,807,500 (equivalent
to approximately RMB144,573,000). The Group recognised identifiable
intangible assets amounted to RMB69,900,000 and goodwill amounted to
RMB38,426,000 in relation to such acquisition and allocated to the “Online
services — garment industry” CGU at the acquisition date.

Management has been reviewing the business development and operations
of Zhongfu where the operating environment for online service providers
on the garment industry continued to be very challenging. In the light of
the changing market conditions, the Group has initiated transformation of
Zhongfu’s business plan from being a traditional online services provider to
an advanced technology-driven retails solution provider in April 2019.

The Directors assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with reference
to the valuation performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional valuer.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of this CGU is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses a revised cash
flow projection based on financial budgets of the ZhongFu Holdings Group
covering a five-financial years business plan. Management consider the
financial budgets prepared is appropriate after considering the revised
business development plan, sustainability of business growth, stability of
core business developments and achievement of business targets. The
financial model assumes an average growth rate of 12% (2018: 14%) for
five financial years budgets, a pre-tax discount rate of 20% (2018: 16%) per
annum and a terminal growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) per annum beyond
the five years period taking into account of long term gross domestic
product growth, inflation rate and other relevant economic factors.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU determined
based on the value-in-use calculations was lower than the carrying amount
of the CGU. Accordingly, the management has provided impairment loss on
goodwill amounting to RMB38,426,000 and charged to profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

If the average growth rate used in the value-in-use calculation of online
service — garment industry CGUs had been 1% lower than management’s
estimates at 31 December (11% instead of 12%), the Group would have
had to further recognise an impairment against goodwill and intangible
assets amounting to RMB2,746,000.

19

BILEE @)
HEREMETEERBERR®)

BRI LIRS — RETE I 2B E REMET
AERERE

RZT—RAF+ZA+1\AB AEBTKK
fERRZERARAR(HR] - EERFPEH
FHEERETEZGERBER) 22K
T o B {E74170,807,50078 7T (FEE R LA
R#144,573,00070) - AEEERUE B H
REHARESERRAURNELEEARYE
69,900,000t & %8 A R #638,426,0007T * I
DEEMR LIRS — RETEIZIBSELSN -

ERE-BEENTRZEBERREE - AR
IR ERBZEERARAUBEE - &
WHSHERTE M  AEER -_E—NFN
RARMATREBHRE S BEAERRE
RIGHERER B RERRTERAN ZHEE
75 o

EER2EBY FEMEMG LR R
BRAREITZ (AR EREEESEMZ A
e

RZE—NF+ZA=+—08 HBSELE
NZIRERBEETEET - 25 EHAR
BoREPRAENRTE M BIEEFEHEE
A2 BERETER - EEICETEHBRER
B EBHMRUHBEN  ROEBBERTH
REBETBER  SEBRAAMGEHEHE
HEAE - LHARRPENEELELER B
IR REMABRBCERR - MBEXRERE
MRFEEE 2 FHEERAE12%(ZE—N
F:14%)  MATBIREAEF20%(ZF—N
F:16%)  MBEAFPHz&REREAT
F3%(ZZF—N\F :3%) °

RZZE—NEF+—A=+—8  kEREE:HT
BETZRSELAENAKBSHEERRRASE
AEMRAEE - Bt - BEEREEERE
B ARK38,426,000tREBE-_Z—H
F+ZA=1+—HUEFEZBERNE -

WRETEGR ERBRESELEN 2 FEHER
AEFERA FHRRREREEENT=-A
—t+—AZHEFHE1% (1% M IE12%) + BIR
EEA N SRR REREERRR
EAR¥2,746,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“integrated marketing and advertising services”

On 13 January 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in Huijia
Yuantian Limited (“Huijia”), which is principally engaged in the integrated
marketing and advertising services in the PRC. The total consideration
was RMB362,000,000 of which RMB162,652,000 was settled in cash
and the remaining portion was settled in shares, part of which has been
issued and the remaining portion had been accounted as “financial assets
through profit or loss”. The Group recognised identifiable intangible
assets amounted to RMB105,500,000 in total and goodwill amounted
to RMB250,096,000 in relation to such acquisition and allocated to the
“Integrated marketing and advertising services” CGU at the acquisition
date.

The impairment was mainly due to the downtrend of the automotive
industry in China, which is the major customer sector of Huijia. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the performance of Huijia is significantly
lower than the budgeted amount, therefore, the management has revised
the budget forecast.

The Directors assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with reference
to the valuation performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional valuer.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined
based on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projection based
on the revised financial budgets of the Huijia covering five financial years.
The directors and management considered financial budgets prepared
is appropriate after considering the revised business development plan,
sustainability of business growth, stability of core business developments
and achievement of business targets. The financial model assumes an
average growth rate of -22% (2018: 12%) for five financial years budgets,
a pre-tax discount rate of 18% (2018: 15%) per annum and a terminal
growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) per annum beyond the five years period
taking into account of long term gross domestic product growth, inflation
rate and other relevant economic factors.
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BILEE @)
FEREMETEERERR(®)

BieE « ()

(ii)

BRI BAEHMESIRE ) 28 A ET
BERERE

R-TB—+E—A+=0 A&£EKRESEET
AEBRAR([ER] TEZRFENEELSEH
RESIRGER) 2 2 HMIE - BREAARE
362,000,0007T * E A AR 162,652,000 LA
WEER - BT URMDES - EFBHA
BRI - MR T ABRIIE B2
SRHEE| ARECERWERERAEKES
TR A H R E & E S £ ARM105,500,000
JC B AR 250,096,000t ¢ WD ELE[
AEEREERBIZRSELEM -

BEZZANPEAETIX(BRIRE,T
RIZTTBERB - BE_T-NF+ A
St HUEFE BERZEAEERNEESD
- Eit - EEECERTREER -

EES T W B R LR (i
ERATET 2 GEETERSEL 2T
R -

RZZE-NFF+ZA=+—H hRLELS
Lz A Bl EBIRERAEEETEST - 25
AERARBEREER R AN REE ZLER]
MBIEEHEEH 2B RETEA - Z ISR
EBEESE  EBERABEE  ROES
BEBTULEREZEL  EFREEER
BFRECMEEEBRAE - Kt RREER
AEMEER O BRXRHEMEBCERS -
MHEEANBRE A EMBREEESE 2 P RE
B-2%(=ZF—\F : 12%) ~ AR R AT
F18%(ZF—/\F : 15%) * ML A FHHE
CEREBRRAEFI%(ZE—\F 1 3%) °
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i) Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“integrated marketing and advertising services” (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of this CGU determined
based on the value-in-use calculations was lower than the carrying amount
of this CGU. Accordingly, the management has provided impairment loss on
goodwill and intangible assets amounting to RMB258,213,000 and charged
to profit or loss in the year ended 31 December 2019.

If the average growth rate used in the value-in-use calculation of
integrated marketing and advertising service CGUs had been 1% lower
than management’s estimates at 31 December (-12% instead of -11%),
the Group would have had to further recognise an impairment against
intangible assets amounting to RMB3,427,000.

For the contingent consideration in related to this acquisition, since the
sellers and guarantors of Huijia could not complete the performance
target set out in the sale and purchase agreement, the Group is entitled
to repurchase the shares placed in the custodian account at HK$1 and
cancel the shares accordingly. As at 31 December 2019, these shares are
remeasured at its fair value as RMB22,671,000. Hence a fair value gain of
RMB22,271,000 was recognised in “other gains, net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. For details, refer to note 3.3(b)(ii) and
note 27.

19 BEFEEE®

AERAEMERLEERERNFE)

ML -
(ii)

(&)
ERIBAEHIESIRG | 28 R EMmER
EERERREE)

R-Z-AE+-—A=+—8  HEBEEHT
BEFZHASEESEMITRESEERLILE
SELBENEEE - At EEEREAERE
B EIRAEBERE ARK258,213,000
T WERBEZE-AF+ZA=+—AL
FE BN

MEBESEHIESREREEEEM 2 FERE
BAEMAZ FHRERERERERENT=A
=+ —AZEFHE1%(-12%MIE-11%) + B
SEAENEE SRR REREERIR
EAREES,427,0007T °

HEGBEEBEEEIKIARENS - ARE
FLERRERARETKEEHZMHZE
HEEZE  AEEERMNBTERTRNAER
FzRORBREHERG - R=ZT—NF+=
A=+—0 ZERMNERERATFEEFTFER
AR#22,671,0007T ° Et + AFERFZAR
#22,271,0007T A& BHR A W KPR A H
iz F 58 | - BRFEE  E2EME3.3(0)3)
K MI5E27 -
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

19

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)
Table below sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have

(iii)

significant goodwill and intangible assets allocated:

Anti-counterfeiting products and services
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

Online services — B2B2C business
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

Online services - garment industry
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

Integrated marketing and advertising services
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

Financing services (Note a)
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

Trading services-cotton industry
Average growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate
Terminal growth rate

BRI
TiESR
BiAIRETR %
BEHEE

# EPRI% —B2B2C¥E K
Fiig R
TRATELIR &
B RR

B LR — RT3
FHEEE
BAIRASE
BEERE

BAEHREERY
RS
BAIRRE
BlERE

SRR (Hiia)
FHEEE
BRI
BIEHRE

35 BRH — 1B 7T 3
FHEEE
BRI E
BIEHRE

BILEE @)
HERHEMELEERERR®)

GERNCY
TRUIBEABEREVAESEERSER

(iii)

SELBMZ TEMR

As at
31 December
2019

R=ZB—h&
=A==

1%
15%
3%

12%
12%
3%

12%
20%
3%

-12%
19%
3%

23%
16%
3%

15%
20%
3%

As at
31 December

1%
13%
3%

10%
19%
3%

14%
16%
3%

12%
15%
3%

18%
12%
3%

15%
20%
3%
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19 BEFEEE®

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets HEREMEFEEREIR(®)
(Continued)

BRE - ()
TREJNEEARERBLEESREZSS
SEEBUZETERER  (B)

Note: (Continued)
(i)  Table below sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have (iii)
significant goodwill and intangible assets allocated: (Continued)

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019
R=Z—NF
+=—A=+—H
Construction equipment rental services BEREHERS
Average growth rate FEg R R N/A R H 10%
Pre-tax discount rate THATALIR & N/A FiEH 14%
Terminal growth rate BRI R R N/A T B 3%
Electronic appliance e-business ERETHH
Average growth rate F R R 40% 40%
Pre-tax discount rate FATALIR = 25% 25%
Terminal growth rate BRI R R 3% 3%
New technology retails solutions FEMEERRIR
Average growth rate iR R 59% 59%
Pre-tax discount rate FRTALIE & 24% 24%
Terminal growth rate KRR 3% 3%

The financial budgets covering 5 years period for all CGUs, except for
financing services which covered 10 years to reflect its revised expansion

plan.

(a

For the financing services CGU, management has prepared a 10 years
business forecast which reflected management’s latest development
plan over the financing services business, included but not limited to
further inject working capital to the financing services segment.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of this
CGU had been further increased by 1% over management'’s estimates
(17% instead of 16%), the Group would have had to recognise an
impairment against carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets
amounting to of RMB62,304,000. In the prior year there were no
reasonably possible changes in any of the key assumptions that would
have resulted in an impairment write-down in this CGU.

For the remaining CGUs, the Directors and management have
considered and assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that could cause
the carrying amount of these CGUs to exceed its recoverable amount.

AERESESEFEMLZMRREREDFHRE
BETFHRARREEETRRASZER
BRIGERD o

(a)

REMRBREELEMMS - ERE
EREI0FEBTA - ARREEEL
CRRBEBTEZKRABRTE &
FBEARRE SRS BIRGFEET

WMtReEFBENZReRETEMER
AR EEREEE 2 (17%
M3E16% )i — 538 IN1% » Bl A& EA]
B ZETER 2 R A AR 62,304,000
CEEREREEREERE RLEF
- EZBIAPHMESBMREELSE
NEAEBEME 2 TSR g8 -

RRBREELEMNE EERER
EeZBRAfmEAMERREIEEA
BEEE)  UERNREMAESSHZS
ReErBEL s REEBLETKRES
HOER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 FEWERZ - #%e  AZERH
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES b & U T8

2019 2018
—2-nE  —2)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Trade receivables FEUAR K 477,227 544,521
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables R EUERROR B (63,529) (32,427)
Trade receivables, net FEMAR KT SR 413,698 512,094
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BRRIER
Hth AR 490,980 286,683
904,678 798,777
Less: Non-current portion B FERBNEH Y (3.568) (5,604)
Current portion mENE D 901,110 793,173
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEUWERRX
The Group generally grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to AEH-REBEBOBHETELNT
270 days to customers depending on business segment. The aging S0KRE270KRZZHH - FEHUR ALK

3= 4 <
analysis of the gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as ERABZERDITIOT

follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Current to 90 days EIEENCIN 301,627 349,430
91 to 180 days 91E180K 47,678 117,500
181 to 270 days 181F270K 42,664 29,819
271 to 365 days 271E365K 26,999 5,214
Over 1 year fBil—F 58,259 42,558

477,227 544,521
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 EWRF &€ AIRERH

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES fth FE UL SR IE ()

(Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) FEWERR (@)
Note: PEE
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are JEMBR T BB EEEINT -
as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF AN

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

At 1 January n—RA—H 32,427 17,914
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 BB ISR

FOHR T E = 7,650
Provision for impairment of trade receivables e BR FUR (B B 15 33,904 13,521
Write off for impaired trade receivables B R B FE U AR UM 8 (1,934) (6,658)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHEWE QA (868) -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 63,529 32,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 EBWER &2 AAIRERH
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES tb FE WKL —RIE ()

(Continued)

(a) PR (4)
FEMBR TR 2 BRI A LA N PEMRE ©

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.

BHUARYE  ARAEERZ TP
DERFEI S - BOANRE 2 R
EERERERR -

Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a
large number of customers nationally dispersed.

RS Rz &RREERR A ETHE
FEMBR TR 2 N FE - AKEIWESH IR

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not

hold any collateral as security.

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

HHA SRR o

(b) &S BAREARHEAEKRKIE

2019 2018
—E-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBTIT
Non-current portion EMENER S
— Deposits — % 3,568 5,204
— Prepayments —TE IR = 400
3,568 5,604
Current portion mENE D

— Deposits —i&& 5,986 21,614
— Prepayments (note (i) — FaRrRRIA (BREEG)) 343,315 240,637

— Amount due from an associate (note (ii)) — R —EEE A RIFIR
(BREEG)) 67,120 -
— Refund receivable from a supplier — BB ERRK 33,752 -

— Other receivables for disposal of a financial —HERAFEFAHM

assets at fair value through other ZHKAZ EREE
comprehensive income < HAb FEYRIE 17,600 -
— Other receivables — H b FEUEIR 19,639 18,828
487,412 281,079
490,980 286,683
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 EWERAR &L BNRERHE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES th PE W FR I ()
(Continued)
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) & ANFMERHEMERNIE
(Continued) (&)

2019 2018
—®-nE  ZF)\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBET T

The fair values are as follows: NEEET
— Deposits —&& 9,554 26,318
— Prepayments — IR 343,315 241,037
— Other receivables — H A EUFRIA 138,111 18,828
490,980 286,683
Denominated in: A THEREEHE -
HK dollars BT 1,862 2,506
Renminbi AR 489,118 284,177
490,980 286,683
Note (i): At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amount mainly represented MEEQ): RZZT—hER-ZT-NF+=A
prepayment to suppliers for B2B trading platform business. =t+—H Z&BEEEEBMNBBR
5 & B R KB -
Note (ii): The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable on PIEEGD : ZE BRI - 28 RARERE
demand. Such amount is denominated in RMB and approximates B AlEemUARBHEREBAR
its fair value. FEMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

21 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 21 BRERKFE
FEME TR R M B R BRI T B A A
FzEFREES -

Loans and interest receivables reflect the outstanding balance of loans
granted to associates, employees and customers.

2019
—E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Loans to customers of financing services business ERTREREEY
(note) 2 &P (fI3T) 1,684,983 1,552,826
Loans to employees BXTEE 3,885 3,885
Loans to associates ER T E QA 60,867 47,540
Interest receivables FEWLF S, 25,443 24,209
Loans and interest receivables, gross B T B 4a%E 1,775,178 1,628,460
Less: impairment allowance on loans to customers of & : B FRIE RIGEB 2
financing services business (Note 3.1 (b)iii) TP RERE
(P &E3. (D)D) (140,014) (104,563)
Less: impairment allowance on loans to employees B BRTIEE 2R ERH 31) (31)
Less: impairment allowance on loans to associates and &, : B3k TEE AT R
joint ventures GEMEBEREE (1,006) (749)
Less: impairment allowance on interest receivables W YR BRI E R (148) (365)
Loans and interest receivables, net FEWE T L B % 1,633,979 1,522,752
Less: Non-current portion A IERBNE S (42,257) (103,160)
Current portion TRENEE 1,591,722 1,419,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

21 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 BRERKFE @

Note: iz -
(@)  Analysed by nature (@) RMEEDN
The balance comprises loans granted in financing service business: BREHPERREEBELE 2B
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Loans to customers of financing services business BERTRERBEBZEP 1,684,983 1,552,826
Less: impairment allowance B ORERE (140,014) (104,563)
1,544,969 1,448,263
(b)  Analysed by type of collateral (b) IRER DRI DT
2019 2018
—B-NF ==\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Unsecured loans EEFER 1,169,729 443,084
Guaranteed loan BERER 190,684 834,612
Collateralised loans EEHER 324,570 275,130
Loan to customers, gross ERTREHEE 1,684,983 1,552,826
Less: impairment allowance B ORERE (140,014) (104,563)
Loan receivables, net FEWRE TR 1,544,969 1,448,263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019:

22 BT
UTFER-_E—NAF+_A=+—HBHFEHE
RAZEE :

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation registered share capital interest held  interests (%)
FERRER
EMA LR TEEBER Bt fisE e ER
HEERRER ik BAzHE il 3 EAl(%)
' Hong Kong Huicong International Group ~ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 21,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
limited in Hong Kong US$0.01
EREREAREEERAT RBRANE - RAZR-FA 21,0000008 B REE
BRAF 0.01% 2 £k
I HC Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 500,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
BRE(BR)ERAR &% BRATA RERR-BE 500,000/ BHREEET
ZERR
Orange Triangle Inc. State of Delaware, USA  Investment holding 200 shares of US$0.01 89.34% 10.66%
X8 2N RERK 20085 RAE0.01ET LKA
Orange Triangle (HK) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
&8 ARAT RARKR-BR 10,000BEMEE BT BB
Zale Inc. Cayman Kslands, limited  Investment holding 500,000,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
liability company in Cayman Islands US$0.0001 each
FERE BRAR  RABK-REHS 500,000,000 B HEE
0.0001%7T2 &iBK
Zale (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
&8 ARAA REBR-E% 10000REREE BT EER
Z. Tech Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding 50,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
in Cayman Islands US$1 each

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22 BB @)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019:
(Continued)

UTRR-ZB-AF+-A=+—HBZEWE

RAZBE - ()

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation  registered share capital interestheld interests (%)
FERER
EMA IR TEXBR B e FREER
tER R Fpub s BazE i EEBI(%)
ZhongFu Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in BVl 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
limited liability company US$1 each
PRERER AT ERANES ERAR RESR-ZBRLHE  S0000REREEIFTL ERR
Saidian HK Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
&8 ARAR RESR-BA 10,000REREE BT EER
TR EEEEEAERA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB500,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
PE - ARAT REFFEA-P AR 500,000,0007T
I REBEMESRIERAR The PRC, limited liability  Provision of business RMB2,200,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
mEl - BRAF REFREA - AR %2,200,000,0007T
IR EERLEEFAERAT The PRC, limited liability  Provision of business RMB36,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
ME - BRAR REFFAR - AEH36,000,0007
! ERBBZFEHREERA The PRC, limited liability ~ Construction and sale of ~ RMB166,670,000 37.49% 62.51%
company properties in the PRC
PE - ARAT BRRSEENZE - AE#166,670,0007T
: BUTELEETERERA The PRC, limited liability  Provision of properties RMB555,500 37.49% 62.51%
company management services
in the PRC
Ml BRAF RENEERRH-—FE  ARES55,5007
BREEERAT 2019 FR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22 BT @)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: NTAR-ZZE-NF+_A=+—HBFEWESE
(Continued) NEIZEE - (58)

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation registered share capital interest held  interests (%)
FERER
FMA LR TEEBR Bt fisa i ER
HEERRER ik BazHE il i EEI(%)
P BR(RR)ETHREEREERAA  The PRC limited liability  Investment holding RMB91,750,000 60% 40%
company in the PRC
ME - ARAH RERR-PE ARK91,750,0007
ENZERERHERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMBS,333,000 78.48% 2152%
company information in the PRC
mEl - BRATF REBREA - ARH8,333,0007
ERREEREARABRAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Anti-counterfeiting RMBS56,002,000 81.08% 18.92%
company Technology
Development in the PRC
ME - ARAE FEm AR —H ARE56,002,0007
ZRREARERRAR The PRC, limited liablity ~ Finance leasing servicesin  US$30,000,000 100% -
company the PRC
ME - ARAE RERERE - 30,000,000%7
ERE=ARRERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business U5$150,000 89.34% 10.66%
company information in the PRC
el BRAF REHFER - 150,000%7
RIS ER LR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB10,000,000 89.34% 10.66%
company information in the PRC
ME - BRAE REBHREA - A&E10,000,00070
ERZRHEEERERAA The PRC, limited liabiity  Provision of tradingand ~ RMB20,000,000 4330% 56.70%
company agency services in the PRC
ME - ARAH REEERABRE-HE AKR%20,000,0007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019:

(Continued)

ERERTABERAT

ERESRAARAT

ERABKBR AR ZARAR

RNBEAESHEARLA

RNEHNRARLA

IR REEHEERAT

MTHEABEN AR

ERRNEREE  EEFERAR

Place of incorporation

Principal activities

and kind of legal entity and place of operation

ML IR
EEERAR

The PRC, limited
liability company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited
liability company

T8 ARARE

The PRC, limited
liability company

T ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BRAA

The PRC, limited
liability company
hE - BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company

TR ARAT

The PRC, limited
liability company
hE - ARAT

The PRC, limited
liability company

T8 ARAAE

TERBR
T

Provision of trading and

agency services in the PRC

22 MBAT @)

NTRRZBE-—NFTZA=ZT—BEZENE

RAZBE : ()

Particulars of

registered share capital

B
RAE

RMB200,000,000

RESERRERE B AR%200,000,0007

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REBXEN-PE

Anti-counterfeiting
Technology
Development in the PRC

FEN AR -TE

Investment holding
in the PRC
REBR-

Investment holding
in the PRC
REER-

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-F

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REBRER-—PE

Provision of loan service
in the PRC
REEFRE -+

RMB220,000,000

AE#220,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000

AB#10,000,0007T
US$1,000,000
1,000,000
RMBS,250,000
ARH5,250,0007C
RMB10,000,000
AB#10,000,0007T
RMBS5,000,000
ARH5,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000,000

AK1,000,000,0007C

Proportion of

ordinary

shares held by
Effective non-controlling

interest held

FiH
D

100%

100%

81.08%

100%

100%

80.38%

80.38%

70%

SREEERAH

interests (%)

FERER
FFEER
EA(%)

18.92%

19.62%

19.62%

30%

2019 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019:
(Continued)

22 BT
AFAR-B—AE+=A=+—ATEWE
ARZEE : ()

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation registered share capital interest held  interests (%)
FERER
R AEE IEXBR Bt fisE  FREER
HEERER B BAGE i El(%)
IREZTAERERAR The PRC, limited liability  Provision of marketing UsD1,050,000 100% -
company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC
ME - ARAE RftmEERE 1,050,000 7T
ER - RE-1E
REERTAESERERAA The PRC, limited Provision of marketing RMB20,000,000 100% -
liability company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC
el BRAF RIS E R - A& 20,000,000
BR RE-TE
IRERESERL The PRC, limited Provision of marketing RMB10,000,000 100% -
liability company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC
ME - ARAE Rt e ERE ARE10,000,0007
ER - RE-1E
LERRETABERAR The PRC, limited Provision of B28 RMB63,505,000 51% 49%
liability company e-commerce services for
spot cotton trading
T8 ARAA HARRERHB2B AR 63,505,000
EBKR%
BRAEERETHHERAA The PR, limited Provision of B2B RMB40,000,000 75% 25%
liability company e-commerce service for
household appliances
ME - ARAE HREREBBIARY  AKH40,000,0007T
S N The PRC, limited liability  Provision of business RMB36,821,000 89.34% 10.66%

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019:
(Continued)

1

Shares held directly by the Company.

Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd and
Foshan Huiconghui E-business CO., Ltd are indirectly held through the
Company’s 60% owned subsidiary, Huicong (Tianjin) E-business Company
Limited* ("ZIR(KE)EFEIEERAE") (“Huicong Tianjin”). Huicong
Tianjin directly holds 53.1% equity interest in these two companies and
indirectly holds 9.38% (2018: 9.38%) of equity interest in these two
companies through its 20% held associate, Hui De Holding Co., Ltd* ("Z1&
R EBR A E]"). Hence, the Group effectively hold 37.49% (2018: 37.49%)
of Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd and
Foshan Huiconghui E-business CO., Ltd.

The Group holds 60% equity interest of Huicong Tianjin, and the remaining
40% is held by a non-controlling interest company (“NCI Company”). Liu
Jun, an executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
holds 62.5% equity interest in the NCI Company, and in turn effectively
holds 25% of equity interest in Huicong Tianjin.

English names are translated for identification purpose only.

22 BB T @)
NTAR-ZE—NFE+-_A=1+—BFEWE
AFZEE ()

1

B A RREERE °

EREZEREWIREFR DT RABILTEHE
EFEBERARAARARSBEEEF0%
EmsMBRARER(KE)EFREERAR
([BRX=Z]EEREE - ERXZEEREX
P A F),253.1% R AR I i B H 5 H 20%
BmZBENREEERERARMEREZ
MAEARZ9.38%(=ZF—/)\F : 9.38%) B A
o At - AEEERBABRRZEREM
KEBRARRBLUTEREETFHEERA
A)237.49% (=F— \4F :37.49% ) R Az -

AEEFABRRE0% 2 BAER - MERT
40% Bl i — I 3F I R a5 A ) ([ FRIZ AR iz
ADEE - AARRMTEREFRERNTEEE
FHIFEIRER D A62.5% 2 AR - A
ERRARIRRE25% 2 AR -

RXETHEMEERARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22 BT )
(a) Material non-controlling interests (a) EXRFEBRER

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEAHZR B L a2 HERH
material non-controlling interests E3
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXHIBERBRKEHIEEBRA
Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., BRI % J\EE HAERA TZWI
Ltd and Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-credit Company BEARZ % Ajﬁﬁ*ﬁ_éﬂiﬁlﬁﬁ
Limited that has non-controlling interests that are material to the :.EiﬁZéHiHﬂ Eom ©
Group.
Summarised consolidated statement of financial position SRR REE

Guangdong Huicong Household  Chongging Digital China Huicong
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit Company Limited
ERERZEHREERAT EECNBBEERMEERERAT

2019 2018 2019 2018
“g-A%F  “T\F SE-hE CFAF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

Current e
Assets BE 180,440 307,358 1,367,868 1,404,675
Liabilities B (522,727) (361,639) (159,478) (287,712)
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE/(BH)FE (342,287) (54,281) 1,208,390 1,116,963
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 745,198 788,236 30,558 100,936
Liabilities afE (155,958) (351,090) - -
Net non-current assets/(liabilities) ERBEE/(BE)FE 589,240 437,146 30,558 100,936
Net assets BEFE 246,953 382,865 1,238,948 1,217,899
Accumulated non-controlling interest 2t FFERRER 168,274 260,884 491,904 488,569
As at 31 December 2019, the non-controlling interests balances of RZBE—NF+_A=+—H ERZE
Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., IR BIWILE B R DA R BRI EHS
Ltd and Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-credit Company BR/NEERAERAR 2 IFERER A
Limited amounted approximately RMB168,274,000 (2018: B RIA A ANR 168,274,000 ( —F
RMB260,884,000) and RMB491,904,000 (2018: RMB488,569,000) —\F : AR¥260,884,00070) X AR
respectively. #491,904,000C(ZZE— N\F : AR

488,569,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22 fEAR @)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EXRFERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEAHZREZNBLAZHEEH
material non-controlling interests (Continued) HEE(45)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEBRREE

Guangdong Huicong Household  Chongging Digital China Huicong
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit Company Limited
EREBXEHREERAT EFNNRBERMEERERAR

2019 2018 2019

—E-NF —TN\F “E-NnE “E)N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBETTT AR¥T T ARETT

Revenue/Interest income HERA/FBRA 11,508 59,238 113,545 128,060
(Loss)/profit before tax BRHAI(BR),aH (99,752) (3,394) 29,113 63,604
Income tax expenses FERMAY (36,160) (33,284) (17,996) (21,200)
(Loss)/profit after tax BE%(EE) 5 (135,912) (36,678) 1,117 42,404
Other comprehensive income HitZEKA = - - -
Total comprehensive (loss)income 2 (E518) /& M2 %8 (135,912) (36,678) 1,117 42,404

Total comprehensive (loss)income DB EJEERER 2
allocated to non-controlling 2E(ER)/GHEE
interests (92,610) (24,992) 3,335 12,721

Dividends paid to non-controlling B IEERERRE
interests = - - -

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22 fMBAT @)
() BRI (5)
BEEAHLEREZHBLAGZHBEEHR
BE(E)
HERERME

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised cash flow statement

Guangdong Huicong Household  Chongging Digital China Huicong
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit Company Limited
ERERXEHREGRAT

ERANEEIR EERERAR

2019 PANES] 2019 2018
—E2-N1F “EN\E “E-NE “T)N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR®T R ARETT ARET T ARETTT
Net cash (used in)/generated from LEER(E)/
operating activities EEHSFHE (12,258) (9,176) 123,988 71,872
Net cash used in investing activities & B AR & %48 = (472) = -
Net cash used in financing activities Y& EENFTAE &5 (6,295) (5,000) (125,000) (100,000)
Net decrease in cash and BeRBEeSEY
cash equivalents FER D (18,553) (14,648) (1,012) (28,128)

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 HARBZEIRZIRE
EQUITY METHOD

2019 PAONES]

—E-NEF —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Associates iR 969,248 677,808
Joint venture SBPE - -
969,248 677,808
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

23 AR EIR2RE @)

2019 PAONES]
—E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Movements in the investment in associates REEENFLZ
are as follows: HEZFHMT -
At 1 January n—HA—H 677,808 124,418
Transfer from financial asset at fair value HEBEBRATERTA
through profit or loss BRsemEE = 541,000
Additions INE 60 26,330
Additions arise from acquisition of subsidiaries WEENB A RIFTEAZAE - 592
Additions upon deemed disposal of RIEHEPEEER RE
Zhongmo Group (note 26) (Mf7E26) 296,371 -
Disposal L& (750) (12,037)
Deemed disposal (note 24) WY& (Fi5E24) - (10,962)
Dividends received from an associate Bl —fEE A FRE (21,815) -
Share of post-tax profits of associates DEEEE R RIRER R T 13,593 28,014
Share of other comprehensive income of ok el 1) /NI )
an associate ZEWA 6,716 -
Impairment A (2,735) (19,547)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 969,248 677,808

Movements in the investment in a joint venture

are as follows:

R—RAEEEZRES
LI

2019
—E-NF

RMB’000
ARBT R

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARMEFTT

At 1 January n—HA—H - 165
Addition A= 5 -
Share of post-tax losses DERTZEE (5) -
Deregistration i - (165)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 - -

Set out below are associates and joint ventures which, in opinion of
directors, are material to the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
The associates and joint ventures as listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group;
the country of establishment or registration is also their principal place
of business.

NTHINEERAR -_E-NFR-_ZT-NF
ToA=tT - HEAKEBERZBEDA R
BERE - THBERRREEREZRASR
EeFEEER  BASEERSEH  MRLR
MR IR AL EE LR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

23 AR EVIRZKRE @)

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Place of business/
country of Nature of Measurement
Name of entity establishment % of effective interest  the relationship  method Carrying amount
=E 3 BERERAI L BERLE HEVES SREE
2019 2019
—B2-nE “B-nE
RMB'000
NS

BEZEMRERAR (AIE : BEER  PRC 12 12 Associate (note i) Equity method 18,122 28,140
AIR/A&] (Hui De Jia Mei Technology Ltd, HEl BEAFIME) S
formerly known as, Hui De Holding
Co., Ltd.®)

MIZEREBRAA PRC 296 296 Associate (note i) Equity method 35,740 39,169
(Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Ltd*) A BENE(WH)  ESE

NEATAERSARNEERIRGE  PRC 9.8 98 Associate (note i) Equity method 567,192 561,162
BRAT HE BENR (M) ERE
(Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural
Commercial Bank Company Ltd)

HEPRERENFERAR RBFEE  PRC 36.1 NA  Associate (Note 26)  Equity method 296,371 N/A
(R%) RERBERAR) i TER BERA(NESG) BRE TER
(Hunan Zhongmoyun Construction
Science and Technology Co., Limited,
formerly known as Zhongmoyun (Tianjin)

Construction Science and Technology
Co., Limited)
* English names are translated for identification purpose only * ENEBEMEFESR AR
Note i:  Hui De Jia Mei Technology Ltd* (formerly known as Hui De Holding Mizti:  BEEERERAERQRAE  B2EERE
Co., Ltd*) ("Zf=53E") provides investment management and project RARD)([BEEX)RPEREREERE
investments in the PRC. The Group holds 60% interests of its subsidiary, RIEERERY - AREREEMBARE
ZPA(K2)EFEBBER AR, which in turn holds 20% of interests in I(RFE)ETFEBERRARZ60%E
=S MEBR(KE)EFEBERAARERES
FE220% 5
Note ii:  Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Limited* ("3 IE4") engages in MisEiic  IZBREREARAR(DNIZRDGES

HERER AR EEEY - ARBEEESA

investment in real estate construction and management. The Group

directly holds 20% equity shares of #7)T Z & and indirectly holds 9.6%
equity interests through Zf&323<. Hence, the Group effectively holds
29.6% equity interest in /T 252

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 HRAR#HZESIRZIRE®)
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

Note iii: The Group directly holds 9.79% of equity interest of Jingu, which MizEii 0 AEEEERASOZ9.79% B A% - H
provides products and services on bank deposits, loans and advances PHRBEREEARTER  ERRERER
in PRC and other business approved by the China Banking Regulatory RRBARTRERITREEEEZES([Hh
Commission (“CBRC"). On 27 June 2018, the Group obtained approval BRE S A2 Hih%% - R-T—N\F
from the CBRC for the director appointment, which allows the Group NAZT R AREEREEESTESFHR
to exercise significant influence to Jingu. The investment had been BIREEHE - HEAKEHEATEE
reclassified from “financial assets of fair value through profit or loss” to FEN - ARRESRIERBIBMRR
“investment in associate company” on the approval date. During the FEF ARG SRMEE |EFH DR R
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received dividend from Jingu BNRZRE ] - HZE2019F12 8318 IH4F
amounting RMB21,815,000. B AEEB RS AREARK21,815,000

5o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 HRARE#HZESIRZIRE@®)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (a) REEQATZBRE
Summarised consolidated financial information for associates BERFGZEHUBEERHE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the TXHINEERBHASEBEX BiLE
associates which, in the opinion of director, are material to the mRSIAR 2B RN R 2 & OF IS B B
Group and are accounted for using the equity method. Ci
Hui De Jia Mei Technology Ltd Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Hunan Zhongmoyun
(formerly known as Zhejiang Huicong Investment Rural Commercial Bank Construction Science and
Hui De Holding Co. Ltd.) Co. Ltd. Company Ltd. Technology Co., Limited
SRR ENEERAT RELHAEELRER HEPEEREN
(ABSERRERA) MISERERRAT BERTROBRAT ARAF
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 2018
“E-nE ZE\F ZB-AE ZE-\F ZB-hE ' Z3-nE \F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETT ARETR ARETr  ARETm A ] AEETT T
Current ok
Total current assets THAELE 1,334,183 744,006 706,713 728543 Noteifffai  Notei ff3fi 193137 NATER
Total current liabilities TEREAE (1,355,148) (718783) (530,553) (577537)  Noteifffii  NoteiHfzi @,13)  NATES
Non-current ik
Total non-current assets AR 124,655 161,922 4429 46730 NoteiMti  Noteifffsti 306 NATEE
Net assets BETE 103,690 187,185 180,589 19773 5233722 5099248 102151 NATER
Opening net assets EEERE 187,185 172,566 197,736 164929 509948 5122516 - NATEE
Capital injection A - - - - 239 1,109 - NAZTER
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER) /& (83,495) 14,619 (17,147) 32,807 284,423 205,948 - NATER
Other reserve movement EibGEES - - - - (150,188) (230325) - NATGEH
Closing net assets EREETE 103,690 187,185 180,589 19773 5233722 509,248 10151 NATEE
Direct equity interestheld PR EERIMER 12% 12% 20% 20% 9.8% 98% 36.1%  NATER
Share of net asset value held ~ REEAEEE
by Group FE 12,443 22,462 36,118 39,547 512,905 499,726 36,856 NARER
Note i:  As at the end of 2019, the total assets and total liabilities are fisFi: RoT—hEKR BEEREAES R
amounting to RMB64,185,581,000 (2018: RMB61,680,692,000) B AR64,185,581,0007C (= —
and RMB58,951,859,000 (2018: RMB56,581,444,000), F: AR¥61,680,692,00070) & AR
respectively. #£58,951,859,0007L (= — /\F : A

R ¥56,581,444,0007T) °
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OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 HRAR#HZESIRZIRE®)
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) () REEARZEBEE
Hui De Jia Mei Technology Ltd Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Hunan Zhongmoyun
(formerly known as Zhejiang Huicong Investment Rural Commercial Bank Construction Science and
Hui De Holding Co. Ltd. Co. Ltd. Company Ltd. Technology Co., Limited
REERAEEEREN HErEERE
SERRERAR ISRREERAR BERTRHERAR NEERAR
2019 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
ZB-NE 21 IB-NE £ ZB-nf 2-)\F  ZB-hE
RMB'000 00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR  ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue HEMA 176,032 325,968 167,545 304,048 - - - NA
Interest income FlEMA - - - - 2,096,573 805,355 - NA
(Loss)fprofit after tax Bl
(BE)/ 57 (83,495) 14,619 (17,147) 32,807 284,423 205,948 - NA
Other comprehensive income  Efr2EYA - - - - 68,597 - - NA
Total comprehensive 2E(BR)/

(loss)/income N (83,495) 14,619 (17,147) 32,807 353,020 205,948 - NA
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the VAR R R OB N B A OF B TS SRR AT
consolidated financial statements of the associates (and not HC 23|z eB(WIHFBREBBRARFL
Group Inc.’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in ZEeH) AAEEEBE AR 25
accounting policies between the Group and the associates. BERERMEL T -
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

24 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 24 ¥(BEHF
Acquisition of Zale Inc. W kEzale Inc.

On 22 May 2015, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Beijing
Rongshang Tonglian Technology Co., Ltd. (At R @R AR A
7]) (“Rongshang Tonglian”) by subscribing its newly issued ordinary
shares for a cash consideration of RMB12,750,000. On 16 June 2016,
20 December 2017 and 14 May 2018, the new shareholders injected
capital amounting to RMB11,821,000 into Rongshang Tonglian. After
the transaction, the Group’s entity interest in Rongshang Tonglian
was diluted from 51% to 34.63%. The investment was classified as an
associate under “Investments accounted for using the equity method” as
the Group has significant influence in Rongshang Tonglian.

On 27 December 2018, Z.Tech Holdings Limited (“Z.Tech”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Zale Inc. (“Zale”) from Zale Limited, Ruthfly Limited
and Fejack Limited (collectively, the “Vendors”) for a total consideration
of RMB366,500,000, among which RMB100,000,000 to be payable
by cash and the remaining part by way of allotment and issuance of
10.66% Z.Tech consideration shares.

Zale indirectly holds the 65.37% equity interest in Rongshang Tonglian.
Following the completion of transaction and issuance of 10.66% share
consideration, the Group effectively holds 89.34% equity interest in
Zale and Rongshang Tonglian. As a result, Zale and Rongshang Tonglian
became consolidated subsidiaries of the Group.

The purchase price allocation of the acquisition of Zale Inc. in 2018 was
complete in March 2019 and no adjustment is made to the provisional
goodwill. The finalisation of purchase price allocation was supported
by a valuation performed by the independent professional valuer, Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. The Group has settled the remaining
consideration amounting to RMB35,742,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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26

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

—NE+ZA=+—-HILFE

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Disposal of certain interest in Zhongmo Group

In April 2019, Beijing Huicong Zaichuang Technology Co., Limited
("Beijing Zaichuang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into a share purchase agreement with X Z[EIREEEHE
B ("XKZEMIE"). Pursuant to the agreement, Beijing Zaichuang
agreed to transfer 5% of the issued share of Zhongmo to KE[GHE

for a consideration of RMB4,330,000.

In May 2019, ##& = has further entered into a share purchase
agreement with the non-controlling interests of its subsidiaries, 4
MHEGERMEARAR and HEALERTIERMER AR (the
“Subsidiaries”). Pursuant to the agreement, Zhongmo acquired the
remaining equity interests in the Subsidiaries settled by the allotment
and issuance of 20% Zhongmo's shares as consideration.

The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
RMB3,020,000 and increase in other reserve of RMB7,350,000. After
the above transactions, the Group held 36.8% of the issued shares of
Zhongmo, it is continued to be accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group by controlling the board of directors through entering into a
acting in concert agreement with another shareholder.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF HUNAN ZHONGMOYUN
CONSTRUCTION SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY
CO., LIMITED (“"ZHONGMO"”) AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES (COLLECTIVELY, “ZHONGMO
GROUP")

On 26 December 2019, the Group’s subsidiary Hunan Zhongmoyun
Construction Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongmo”) completed
its share placement to an independent third party in which the
investors subscribed 1.96% of newly issued shares in Zhongmo with
an aggregate consideration of RMB20 million. Upon completion of
the above transaction, the Group's interest in Zhongmo was diluted
from 36.80% to 36.08%. Following the completion of the transaction,
the memorandum of articles of Zhongmo had been revised, and the
acting in concert agreement that the Group entered into with another
shareholder as disclosed in Note 25 have also been terminated.
Accordingly, the Group only has right to appoint two directors out of
five positions in the Board of directors of Zhongmo, and will no longer
be able to control Zhongmo Group but continue to exercise significant
influence over Zhongmo Group. As a result, Zhongmo Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group with effect from 26 December 2019 and
Zhongmo Group has then been accounted for as investment in associates
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Such transaction was recognised as deemed disposal of
subsidiaries. A fair value gain on deemed disposal of Zhongmo Group
amounting to RMB246,797,000 was recognised as “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

25

26
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

26 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF HUNAN ZHONGMOYUN 26 R{ELENEHEERENES
CONSTRUCTION SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY RARI(THE)REHKEB AT
CO., LIMITED (“"ZHONGMO”) AND ITS (B hEER]) @)
SUBSIDIARIES (COLLECTIVELY, “ZHONGMO

GROUP") (Continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Zhongmo Group as at the REELERS  PESENFZEAVEER
date of deemed disposal were as follows: BEMT
RMB’000
AR%ETR
Cash and cash equivalents Re RESFED 6,190
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRi&tE 317,470
Right-of-use assets EREEE 6,804
Goodwill and intangible assets HEREREE 45,096
Trade receivables FEUBR X 89,375
Inventories =& 7,092
Contract related assets SHINEAEE 62,290
Prepayment and other receivables TEAT R IE K EAth FE Wy kI8 46,217
Bank borrowings RITEE (10,900)
Other Borrowings HibfEE (61,126)
Income tax payables FEFTEHL (20,398)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEMIBRE (6,073)
Trade and other payables FER IR R H A BT RIR (99,807)
Contract liabilities aRa%E (22,591)
Lease liabilities HEAR (7,119)
Amount due to the Group JERTAS S B FRIE (217,220)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 135,300
Less: net assets attributable to non-controlling interests & : FEIEIRIE R E(L B FE (85,726)
Net assets attributable to the Group REEEGEEFE 49,574
Net gain on deemed disposal: RIEHEW=FE
Fair value of the 36.08% equity interests retained in R REE(FIERB AR Z
Zhongmo Group as investment in associate % E )R 236.08% M HELNTE 296,371
Less net assets attributable to the Group disposed of B NEAEEENEEFE (49,574)
Fair value gains on deemed disposal of Zhongmo Group {B{EHEFEEE 2 A FEWZE
(note 7) (f3E7) 246,797
Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal: BRIEHEEENRSMEIFHE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSRIBSEFED 6,190
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

26 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF HUNAN ZHONGMOYUN 26 R{ELENEHEERENES
CONSTRUCTION SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY RATRI(THE)REHNB AT
CO., LIMITED (“ZHONGMO"”) AND ITS (R PEEE]) @

SUBSIDIARIES (COLLECTIVELY, “ZHONGMO
GROUP") (Continued)

The fair value of the 36.08% retained equity interests in Zhongmo Group
held by the Group as at completion date is determined by valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer. The valuation involved
significant judgements and estimates, including forecast revenue growth
rate, gross profit margin, terminal growth rate and discount rate used in
the projection period.

The notional goodwill arises from the recognition of investments in
Zhongmo Group is calculated based on the difference between the fair
value of the 36.08% retained equity interest in Zhongmo Group and
the share of the fair value of the net assets of Zhongmo Group as at the
date of deemed disposal.

The notional goodwill arising on the deem deemed disposal of Zhongmo
Group is as follows

REER K BB A R IREE 2 36.08%
REBRMEZ AT ERBILEXGEMETZE
EMEE - HESRERHERET - 2FR
BRAMREMAZBAEERAERRE - EF
T REBERERMRE -

RRAPREB 2 REMEEAZ AEEEIRE
R IEEEE 2 36.08% R4 Ik 2 A FEHES (G
FIEESERRIELEZAZEEFEAFEZ
ETERTHE -

BEHETEEBMEEZ RHZBMENT

RMB’000
AR®T T

Fair value of the equity interests retained in R ESERE

Zhongmo Group fEiENTE 296,371
Share of the fair value of net assets MEEEREATE

(excluding intangible assets) (TEREEFEE) (34,737)
Share of the intangible assets: DB EE

— Patent — =7 (82,876)

— Contract —&H (9,633)

— Software —®H (1,696)
Notional goodwill LEEE 167,429

HEZZ-—NF+ZA=Z+—HLEFE "
FEEESRALAEBEERHEERAA
R ¥ 400,033,000 7t } B # 1& @ 7 A R 85
39,991,0007T ©

During the year end 31 December 2019, Zhongmo Group contributed
revenue and profit after tax amounting to RMB400,033,000 and
RMB39,991,000 to the Group, respectively.
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27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 27 AV Est ABZRHEMZME

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE WAZEREE
INCOME
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value fair value through
through profit or loss other comprehensive income
RAVEFA BAVER AR
BHEvemEE ZERAZEREE
2019 2019
“E-hE T—\F “E-nF Z—\
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT ARET T ARETT
Contingent considerations in relation to ~ AEWEZZTAERAFZ
acquisition of Huijia Yuantian Limited FARE 22,671 400 - -
Contingent consideration in relationto A EUkE#EZale Inc. 2
acquisition of Zale Inc. S ARE = 340 - _
Trading securities - listed securities RHEH - LMESH - - 65, 387 62,647
Equity investment — unlisted securities ~ JRANRE —3E LS 20,592 16,758 = 32,600
Financial assets TREE 43,263 17,498 65,387 95,247
Less: Non-current portion B FETRENE D (20,592) (16,758) (65,387) (95,247)
Current portion REEHD 22,671 740 - -

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the contingent consideration
was of RMB22,671,000 (2018: RMB740,000). The change in the fair
value of RMB21,931,000 for the year was charged to “other gains, net”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For the fair value of the financial assets at fair value, please refer to note
3.3.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

R-TE—hFE+-A=+—B HAREZA
FEAAREE22,671,00000 (22— N\F : AR
#740,0007T) - FAARK21,931,00070.2 2
TEEZBEAMHRA WERI MK FEE] TR
R ©

BRATENECZSREEZ ATE  F2HN
3.3



Y -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

28 REHE D 2EBMTA

Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
Financial assets through
assets at fair value other
at amortised through  comprehensive
cost profit or loss income
b3 E BAYE BRATERFA
BAGEZ FABH Hitt2EEA
LREE ZERER ZERERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR%BT T AR%T T AR®ET ARET
At 31 December 2019 RZB-1F
+=ZA=1-H

Financial assets at fair value through

BRFESAREZERA

other comprehensive income JEREE - - 65,387 65,387
Financial assets at fair value through X ATEHABR Y

profit or loss SHEE - 43,263 - 43,263
Trade and other receivables USR5 R LA FEMRRIR

(excluding non-financial assets) (MREHEREE) 561,363 = = 561,363
Finance lease receivables REHRERNE 329,747 - - 329,747
Loans and interest receivables M ET R FIS 1,633,979 - - 1,633,979
Restricted bank deposit SRHBIIER 282,171 - - 282,171
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReFEY 331,893 - - 331,893
Total 5t 3,139,153 43,263 65,387 3,247,803
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 28 #ZERE s 2E€mI A

Financial assets at fair value through

BOFEIALL

(Continued)
Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets through
Financial at fair value other
assets at through comprehensive
amomsed cost profit or loss income
TEQ‘ ’(E?H
: st
RMB'000 RI\/IB OOO RMB' OOO RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NF
+=A=t-H

other comprehensive income 2ERAZEREE - - 95,247 95,247
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFFAEZZ

profit or loss PREE - 7,498 - 17,498
Trade and other receivables PR R 7 N B A FEMRRIR

(excluding non-financial assets) (MEEHEREE) 552,536 - - 552,536
Finance lease receivables AT EmREEE 88,855 - - 88,855
Loans and interest receivables M EZ TS 1,522,752 - - 1,522,752
Restricted bank deposit ERFFTER 276,003 - - 276,003
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHALSEND 471,672 - - 471,672
Total 4=t 2,911,818 17,498 95,247 3,024,563
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 28 #ZEREszE€®mIEw)

(Continued)

Liabilities at
amortised cost
REBEHRATTE
ZEafE
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NAE+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings R1T1EE 1,591,089
Other borrowings HivfgE 713,312
Trade payables FEFERRR 128,209
Other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities) HinEE(TeiEEemas) 98,033
Convertible bonds — liabilities portion RES —BESD 90,670
Lease liabilities HEaE 91,995
Total HEET 2,713,308
Liabilities at
amortised cost
REHR AT 2
ZBafE
RMB’000
AREETTT

At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\E+=A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 1,228,244
Other borrowings HEmEE 899,094
Trade payables FERTER X 94,922
Other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities) EEMZFIE(TREEemEasE) 247,075
Convertible bonds - liabilities portion AIMRES —B8EHD 127,562
Total st 2,596,897
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=-T—NF+-A=1+—HILFE

29 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 29 BMEESRWRRE

Certain equipment have been leased out through finance leases entered
into by the Group. Finance lease receivables, net of provision, comprised
of the following:

ETRECEBBHASEIIZREREED
M o BB E R YFOR (IR EHE) B3 AT &

oo

2019 PAONE:]

—E-hEF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Non-current JERNER 176,266 25,000
Current BNHA 153,481 63,855
Total ya=t 329,747 88,855

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for impairment
amounting to RMB3,215,000 (2018: RMB447,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2019, the balance included RMB139,600,000 represents
the finance lease receivables from Zhongmo Group, an associate of the
Group.

30 INVENTORIES

HE-Z-hF+=A= + Etif DERIE!
BEARE3215000T(ZZE—N\F : AR
447,00070) A& BHER A Y mimﬁﬁau n=
T—hF+-_A=+—HB EZHBEARE
139,600,0007T * ¥& FEUL AN &8 (B — R B & A A
PIREE B A EEUGRE -

30 78

2019 PAONES]

—E-hEF —ZT—N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREETTT

Merchandise held for trading HIEB S5 ER 143,953 348,676
Others Hib 3,570 6,308
147,523 354,984

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost
of revenue” amounted to approximately RMB13,490,899,000 (2018:
RMB9, 139,302,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 31 RERREEBEYMURZREIR
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS M

2019 2018
—E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRE R TEERS 330,393 469,492
Fixed deposits TFHIFR 1,500 2,180
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 331,893 471,672
Restricted bank deposit ZIR&IR{TE 282,171 276,003
614,064 747,675
Denominated in: A THNEEEEHE
— Hong Kong Dollars —BTT 299,220 287,965
— Renminbi — AR# 310,692 402,893
— US Dollars —E7T 4,152 56,817
614,064 747,675
The fixed deposits were highly liquid with original maturities of three FHEFRASREMN  REEBRAS=18A5A
months or less. As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents T RZZBE-NFTA=+—0 xEEZ
of approximately RMB310,543,000 (2018: RMB402,636,000) of the ReRkReEEMHARES10,543,0007T (=
Group were denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the T— \F : AR¥402,636,00070) AA RS
PRC. The conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign B WEFAPEZRIT - BAARBIEZ
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange SRR RAR R INE AR T BIBUR MM 2 SN
control promulgated by the PRC government. & IR R R AR DI P ARPR o
Restricted bank deposit mainly included bank balances pledged TRHEBETFAREITEBEREBE
as security for borrowings amounting to RMB248,500,000 (2018: AR #248,500,000t(ZF—\F : AR
RMB251,500,000 and they are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. 251,500,0007C ) IR {EHE R Z SRITAERR - HIA
BITLETE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 A
Number of
ordinary shares Par value
EZERHE HE
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—/\F—H—H 1,085,323,710 100,740
Issuance of shares in relation to contingent AR ELHE
consideration arrangement 1T D 36,028,500 2,964
Buy-back shares A1 B [ (1,350,000) (114)
Exercise of share options T B 400,000 35
At 31 December 2018 and R-Z—)\F+-_A=+—H8HK
1 January 2019 —E-hE—-HA—H 1,120,402,210 103,625
Buy-back shares (note a) R tn BE Rl (f5Ea) (1,100,000) 97)
Exercise of share options (note b) TR RE R (M sEb) 1,250,000 110
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-hE+=-A=+—8H 1,120,552,210 103,638
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 shares LERETREATRAENIET(ZE—N
(2018: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share F  HR%0.17 7T ) 2.2,000,000,000 A% (=
(2018: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid. Z— \4F : 2,000,000,0008%) ° FiE 31T
MWEEHRE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1,250,000 shares of the REBEE-ZE—NF+A=+—HLEFE "
Company were issued upon the exercise of share options under the RA R BITE T BB IR R 1T (218 0.82
share option scheme of the Company at exercise price of HK$0.82 and FETCIETT 1% - 1,250,000 8% 7K A 7] AR 1) HEE B
resulted in approximately RMB110,000 increase in share capital and 1 BEREAREROHED G INOARE
RMB785,000 increase in share premium. 110,000t & A R #785,0007T ©
The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,120,552,210 as RZEBE—NE+A=+—H0 XAAD%
at 31 December 2019 (2018: 1,120,402,210). TTRRID 4B EN 1,120,552, 2100 ( == — \4F -

1,120,402,2100%) °

(a) Buy-back of shares (a) BEIRHG
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had HE_Z-NFT+_A=+—HLFE "
repurchased and cancelled 1,100,000 (2018: 1,350,000) of its own A R)EAEE K& FEEH1,100,00008% (=&
shares. RMB97,000 and RMB2,937,000 had been deducted from —/\& : 1,350,0008%) B ER G - EAK
share capital and share premium respectively (2018: RMB114,000 R KRR E 5 BIF0BR AR #97,0007T &
and RMB4,991,000 respectively). AE#2,937,000c(ZZE—N\F : HHlA

AR#114,0007T 2 AR #4,991,0007T) ©

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



N .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32 A& )

(b) Share options (b) HERAE

On 20 June 2019, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to a director pursuant to share option scheme. The
grantee can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$4.6
per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of the twelve
months from the date of granting of option, being 20 June 2019,
Commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant, the
relevant grantee may exercise options up to 33.3% and gradually
up to 100% at the third anniversary of the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1,250,000 share
options were exercised (2018: 400,000 share options were
exercised).

The assumptions for valuation of fair value of share options are as
follows:

R-ZE—AFNA=18 - BEERES
&l - 53£10,000,0001) FEAR IR T — B E
F o ARATRBERERLABREIZZ
—NFERNAZ+TR) B+ @A EmRH
W2 TFER - RITEETRAEITITE
ZEERE - gL BT BH
AR AR ITERS33.3%ERE - LA F
SITFEERE AN TRAF 2 HZ100% 5
RHEE
REBEE-_ZT-—AF+-A=+—HBLF
1,250,000 BEAREE EITHE (=T
—J\FF : 400,00017 BEREAESET T{E) ©

AP EEEARE A EPT A 2 RRNT

7 April 28 March 3 April 18 November 13 October 19 July 20 June
2010 2011 2013 2013 2017 2018 2019
“B-%f CZB--F £-= - CZB-tfF ZE-\f ZEB-NF
MmAtH +—A+NA +At=H tAthA RAZTH
Exercise price 12
(in HK dollar) (Bm) 0.82 1.108 4.402 9.84 6.476 46 46
Fair value of the options ~ EEIRIEAT(E
(in RMB) (ARH#) 12,527,000 1,377,000 3,754,000 50,125,000 100,356,000 70,258,000 16,542,000
Risk free interest rate R F|=
(in %) (%) 2.865 2.820 1.1m 1915 1.745 213 1.44
Expected life (inyears) B EH(F) 3459 3849 9.196 4779 49 10 10
Volatilty (in %) (%) 798 774 75 62 70 65
Expected dividend per ~ TEEISRRAES.
share (HK cents) (&) - - - 567 - -

At the working date before options were granted, 6 April 2010,
25 March 2011, 2 April 2013, 15 November 2013, 12 October
2017, 18 July 2018 and 19 June 2019 the market value per share
was HK$0.82, HK$1.1, HK$4.3, HK$9.23, HK$6.40, HK$4.58 and
HK$3.31 respectively.

REREERNAIZ TR (ZE—ZF
WmANA - —E—HF=ZA=-+HAH -
—E-=HNWA-Q - _E—=F+—
At+HB - - ZTE—+tH+A+=ZH =
ZE-NFLtA+NBEZZ—NFRA
+hA) - FRMEDRA0.82ET « 1.1
BT - 43T - 9.23 T - 6,408 T -
4588 7L/%3.31787T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32 BA&um)
(c) Share options () B
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITERERESE RETEE2EZEH0
exercise prices are as follows: T
(i) Share Option Scheme (i) BRETZ
2019 2018
:g_ﬂff— :?7«”\¢
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
3EA BRBLTEE BRE SRETTEE FEfiE
At 1 January ®—A—A 0.604 - 0.604 400,000
0.82 1,438,000 0.82 1,438,000
1.108 200,000 1.108 200,000
4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
9.84 9,972,000 9.84 9,972,000
6.476 29,930,000 6.476 29,930,000

4.6 36,000,000 - -

Granted BERH 0.604 = 0.604 -
0.82 = 0.82 -

1.108 - 1.108 -

4.402 - 4402 -

9.84 - 9.84 -

6.476 - 6.476 -

46 10,000,000 46 36,000,000

Lapsed, forfeited or exercised 243K ~ RIS 17(E 0.604 - 0.604 (400,000)
0.82 (1,250,000 0.82 -

1.108 = 1.108 -

4.402 = 4.402 -

9.84 (6,592,000) 9.84 -

6.476 = 6.476 -

46 (5,850,000) 46 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32 A& )

(c) Share options (Continued) (o) EBRE®E

() BRETZE)

(i) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

2019
—E-hE 2\
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
3R BRETTHEE R fBiRE
At 31 December 29 September 2018 0.604 - 0.604 -
R+=A=1—H “Z-\FAAZTIA
7 April 2020 0.82 188,000 0.82 1,438,000
“E-TENALHA
27 March 2021 1.108 200,000 1.108 200,000
B -F=A-ttH
3 April 2023 4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
“EC=EMAZH
18 November 2023 9.84 3,380,000 9.84 9,972,000
“Zo=F+—-ATNR
13 October 2027 6.476 29,930,000 6.476 29,930,000
ZECHETATEH
19 July 2028 4.6 30,150,000 46 36,000,000
2o \FLATAR
20 June 2029 4.6 10,000,000 - -
—E-NFRAZTH

(d) Share Award Scheme
On 23 November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares
to 72 selected employees (including an executive director of the

(d) KiPEBEE
RZT——F+—AZ+=R8  RERD
HEFE  EFSRRATMLETER
B(BEARA-ZRTER)RTAH

Company).

On 14 June 2012, the Board resolved to grant Lee Wee Ong,
the then executive director of the Company, 3,000,000 shares,
subjected to a vesting period of 36 months.

On 20 August 2012, the shareholders resolved to grant Guo Jiang,
the then executive director of the Company, 16,700,000 shares,
subjected to a vesting period of 72 months.

On 8 July 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of
28,100,000 shares to 21 selected employees (including two
executive directors of the Company) subjected to a vesting period
of 36 months.

24,181,000/ %5 °

RZZ—ZFX A+HA  E5E#%)
A ARIRIEAITE FLee Wee OngiE T
3,000,0000%/% 15 - HEEAA36MEA -

RZE——FNAZ+H - BREFERAEKE
@ﬂmﬁﬁi%ﬂik%m7womhk
- FEBHAT2ER -

—NELANB EFSFHRE
NEFETRB(BEARAMEBRITE
E) T4 28,100,000 %17 - 7B H
A36fEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The following table represents the movements for number of
shares under the Share Award Scheme for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018:

At 1 January 2018
Shares vested during the year

32 BA&um)

(d) BB E(H
TRITHEZE-ZE-NFR-_ZT-N\F
TZA=t+—ALFERGREEET
BRABRE 2 &

Number of
shares (in

thousand unit)
BoEE
(FmR)

R-Z=—)\F—HA—H 15,360
AEEERBRG (2,360)

At 31 December 2018 and

RZE—)\F+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2019 —E—-hnF—H—H 13,000
Shares purchased from the market MSEERN 8,715
Shares vested during the year REZEHEBRD (2,520)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-NF+=-A=+—H 19,195

The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and
lapsed during the year since the set up of the Share Award

Scheme:

AT RE RO EEE BIREARFREEE L -
BBz B2

Number of shares
(in thousand unit)

R EE
(FR)

2019

—E-hF
At 1 January H—A—H 13,000 15,360
Granted during the year REEEET 28,100 -
Shares vested during the year REEEHBERD (2,520) (2,360)
Allocated but not vested BOMRERER 38,580 13,000

The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 to
account for the equity compensation expenses of the shares
granted at the date of grant at fair value.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

33 OTHER RESERVES 33 Hitif#E

Financial
assets at

fair value

through

Share and Shares held other

Convertible Share-based capital Available-for- forshare ~ comprehensive

Share bond Other Merger compensation redemption  Exchange sale financial reward income

premium [eserve [eserve [eserve [eserves [eserve Reserve  assets reserve scheme reserve

ARE  AKEE FORE ERR ¢ f L}
RMBD0  RMB'000 RMB000 RMBOD0  RMBI000
AEHTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR BT ARETL Tl

At1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-A-R 2509775 3,364 27,507 109,817 122,589 1478 (686) 63515 (99.418) - 273194

Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 BB K &S
iz ye - - - - - - - (83519) - - (B3519)
Fair value loss on financial assets %A T A2
atfair value through other WAZEBEEY

comprehensive income, NTEER
net of deferred tax ABEEHE - - - - - - - - - (16,856) (16,856)
Currency translation difference  E%EZZZ - - - - - - 18,845 - - - 18,845

Issuance of sharesin relation ~~ BtEIAR B
to contingent consideration {7

arrangement 163,620 - - - - - - - - - 163,620
Buy-back of shares BERR (4.991) - - - - 14 - - - - (4877)
Share based compensation WRRE R RE - - - - 74,580 - - - - - 74,580
Exercise of share options e 177 - - - - - - - - - 177
Vesting of awarded shares BEZERR 9 - - - (8.839) - - - 8830 - -
Issuance of convertible bonds - E/7AHRES -

equity portion Rigds - 12,359 - - - - - - - - 12,359
Transactions with HIERERETL

non-controlling interests 25 - - 169,875 - - - - - - - 169,875

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
t-F=t-8 2,668,590 1573 19738 109817 188330 1592 18,159 - (9058 (1685%) 3,092,149
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

33 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 33 Hitf#E e

IENE]
assets at
fair value

Shares through

Share- Share held for other

Convertible based  and capital share comprehensive

Share bond Other Merger compensation  redemption  Exchange reward income

premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve  Reserve  scheme reserve
BRATE
TALf
ROKE  2EUAZ
&R HRAXE  ROREX il SEEEZ
ROEE  BERE  EMBRE  AHER  RERR  RERR  EXBR  FRERR R Gh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETn AR®Tn AR®Tn ARMTn ARMTn AR¥TR AR¥TR

At1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-B 2,668,590 15723 197,382 109,817 188,330 1,59 18,159 (90,588) (16,856) 3,092,149

Fair value loss on finandial assets at farvalue B AT(EARBREMAZ
through other comprehensive income, SHEELLATEER:

net of deferred tax NRELHE = = = = = - - - 7816 7816
Currency tranlation difference FHENZR - - - - - - 3513 - - 3513
Buy-back of shares BERH (2.937) - - - - 97 - - = (2,840)
Share based compensation WAz - - - - 80,685 - - - - 80,685
Share purchase under shared award scheme  Ff EEET 2 TRRGEE

Share based compensation DRHX T2 BE

- value of employee services -EERBEE - - - - - - - (21,247) - (21,47)
Evercise of share options EBRE 785 - - - - - - - - 785
Vesting of awarded shares GERERN (3,400) - - - (8417) - = 1817 = =
Redemption of convertible bonds - fERE

equity portion - ks - (3,364) - - - - - - - (3.364)
Transactions with non-controlling interests ~~ EFEARERET 225 - - (4,550) - - - - - - (4,550)
At31 Decerber 2019 RSE-RESRSE-R 263088 139 198 10987 260598 1689 26 (100019 (904) 3152947
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

33 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 33 Hitf#E e

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly
foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not less than 10% of the
profit after income tax, calculated based on the PRC accounting
standards. Should the accumulated total of this reserve fund reach 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. The reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, retained earnings amounted
approximately RMB911,000 (2018: RMB3,729,000) had been transferred
to the statutory reserve. As at 31 December 2019, retained earnings
comprise statutory reserve fund amounting to RMB112,721,000 (2018:
RMB111,810,000).

RBERRIINEBECEZBRETEER - &
B E AR ARRPEE LA ERE D
REFERZEN10%Z2MES - HMtRFEED
Rt ESPENE AR ZZMEAR50%
AP B A RS HAELEME - FRE - RE
BEERAGHFRBRIEEZIER - %G
SERAEEE R EESILE -

HE-_Z-hE+-_A=t—HL=EE &=
WS AREEIN,0000(=ZF—\F : AR
3,729,000 ) BB EETFEHEE - RZT— 1
F+ZA=+—0 BEREREECHES
ARM112,721,000(ZF—\F : ARH
111,810,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

34 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

34 EZEBATEED

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current ERH 155,958 165,808
Current RED 11,450 10,650
167,408 176,458
As at 31 December 2019, deferred government grants mainly RZZE-NF+_A=+—8H  BETBFT®HY

represented a government grant amounted RMB165,808,000 (2018:
RMB175,658,000) which was to subsidise the Group to provide rental
discount to the prospective tenants of the 020 business exhibition

centre in Shunde of Guangzhou.

35 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND

OTHER PAYABLES

FE ARKE165,808,0007T( —E—\E : A
R #175,658,0007T) 2 BUN#B) + ALAE BN

SEAEMNIEEO20HMERE
2B -

D2 ETRP

35 EfSERA ~ ESTERAREMER

FIE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Trade payables (note a) FERTRRFR (P 5Ea) 128,209 94,922
Accrued salaries and staff benefits FERT BN & B T&F 32,518 35,577
Accrued agency commissions EETREME 15,432 14,459
Accrued expenses EErEH 38,101 100,502
Deposit from customers EEFR 37,485 66,908
Accrued consideration for acquisitions FEEHIRBE B - 35,742
Other payables H b e ATRUE 7,015 29,464
258,760 377,574
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

35 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND 35 FE{ERZ - EXtEARHEMER

OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) FIE ()
(a) The aging analysis of trade payables based on (a) ERNERREZRZIHZEREDS A
invoice date is as follows: T

2019 PANES
—g-nEF  —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Current to 90 days BNEfZ90K 115,752 83,415
91 to 180 days 91E180K 9,984 8,756
181 to 365 days 181%E365K 2,473 2,345
Over 1 year ik —F - 406
128,209 94,922
36 BORROWINGS 36 fHE

2019 2018
—-nE  —TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Non-current portion: JEmENE S ¢
Bank borrowings RITEE 480,000 368,000
Other borrowings HAiEE 23,539 351,162
503,539 719,162
Current portion: mENE S -
Bank borrowings RITIEHE 1,111,089 860,244
Other borrowings HifEE 689,773 547,932
1,800,862 1,408,176
Total borrowings BE®E 2,304,401 2,127,338
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

36 BORROWINGS (Continued) 36

Bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 6.69% per annum (2018:
6.17% per annum), mature ranging from 2020 to 2022, part of which

BB
BT B R TR 6.69% (=T — )\ 4 :
FEHE617%)EHE  R-_B-—TEF-T

amounting to RMB730,000,000 (2018: RMB372,376,000) are secured by
properties, investment properties and land use rights, which is classified
as right-of-use assets after the adoption of HKFRS 16 with carrying value
amounting to RMB979,310,000 (2018: RMB771,035,000). Other bank
borrowings amounting to RMB248,500,000 (2018: RMB251,500,000)
are secured by restricted bank deposits with carrying amount of
RMB282,171,000 (2018: RMB276,003,000).

Other borrowings of RMB27,816,000 (2018: same) were provided by a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, in which 25% of its equity
interest is effectively held by Mr. Liu Jun, an executive director of the
Company. These borrowings are unsecured, mature ranging from 2020
to 2022 and bear average interest rate of 6.34% per annum (2018:
6.34% per annum). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
corresponding interest expenses was approximately RMB1,763,000
(2018: RMB1,763,000).

Other borrowings with a total principal amount of RMB200,000,000
(2018: Nil) were provided by an independent third party with maturity
dates on July 2020 and November 2020. These borrowings are interest
free and secured by certain equity shares of a subsidiary.

The remaining other borrowings are provided by independent third
parties and bear interest rate ranging from 4.4% to 14.3% per annum
(2018: 4.5% to 13.7% per annum). Out of these other borrowings,
RMB442,218,000 (2018: RMB519,917,000) are either guaranteed by
the Executive Directors or Non-Executive Director of the Group (2018:
same) and secured by certain inventories, right-of-use assets, listed
equity shares held by the Group and the equity of certain subsidiaries
(2018: certain loan receivables, inventories, and listed equity shares held
by the Group).

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank and other
borrowings based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ZZFE8 - BB E AR 730,000,000T
(ZZT—N\F : AR¥372,376,0007T) MABR
E{E A RM979,310,000t (ZZ—/)\F : A
R#771,03500070) 2 Y% - HEWMER T
HWEREEER  ZEEERFEMNEEHG
HELEF1CREDBAEREEE - BE
AR #248,500,000 L (=T —N\F : AR
251,500,000 ) 2 A iRITEE REREE A
AERH282,171,000(ZF—\F : ARH
276,003,000t ) 2 Z R HISRITFERIEEIR o

Hi e AR%K27,816,0007T( —F— /\4F :
AR B — BB ARz — & IR IR
FZARZ25%BRIEBARNARNITERRE ik
EREHE - WEBEREER  NTZZT=Z
FEZT-_FHH - BIRFHFENE634%
—ZT—)\F: FFKR634%):TE - BHE-Z
—NFT+-A=+—BLLFE  A@AEHZ
4B ANRHE1,763,000L(ZE—NF : AR
1,763,0007T) °

HifEEA S BEE ARE200,000,00070(=F
—AE DYH—BBULE= il - FHEA
EFLARZZETF+—A - %5
BARETH—FEINERARZE TERKRER
j:qao

_7_

BRTHMEERBECE=FREE  LENT
RA4%ZE14.3% 2 FFE(ZT—\F : 7
EA5%ZE13.7%)FH B o WEHMEE
AR1442218,000 L (=T —NF : AR
519,917,0007T ) H AN & B #1175 F Sk IEFN1T
%%%Fﬁcf—ﬁi'mﬁ%iﬁ%¥r
CERAEEE ARERAZ EMESRE
?WE RlZEREER(ZE—N\F 5T
EWER FERAEBEIFEZ EHEER)
25K H B

TR R E P E S ETRRE

REZRITREMIEER BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

36 BORROWINGS (continued)

37

36 fEE @)

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

BITEE Hiti g &

2019 2019

“EB-hE “E)N\F —Z-NE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARBT T ARETT
Within 1 year —FR 1,111,089 860,244 689,773 547,932
Between 1 and 2 years —FERER 400,000 233,000 - 351,162
Between 2 and 5 years MEERER 80,000 135,000 23,539 -
1,591,089 1,228,244 713,312 899,094

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no undrawn banking facilities
(2018: Nil).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 5% per
annum at a total principal value of HK$780,000,000 (Equivalent to
approximately RMB615,342,000) on 27 November 2014 (the “2014
Convertible Bonds”). On 27 November 2017, at the request of the 2014
Convertible Bonds holders, the Company redeemed HK$728,400,000
(equivalent to RMB616,059,000) of the outstanding principle of the
bonds, which represent approximately 93.38% of the initial principal
amount of the bond. The remaining portion mature on 27 November
2019 at its principal amount or can be converted into the Group’s shares
at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$11.28 per share or at the
option of the bondholder to redeem all or some only of the convertible
bonds, with unconditional right, at their principal amount together
with interest accrued but unpaid to such date. This convertible bonds
had been fully redeemed at maturity date during the year ended 31
December 2019.

37

RZZBE-NFTZA=+—RH  TEEHER
RRZRITHERE(CE—\F &) -

AR ES
AARTRZTE—NFE+—AZF+ERAETR
& #4856 5780,000,000 5 L (FEERH AR
615,342,0007L) * ZEEBXFF5% 2 [
BREHF(ZZ—mOFABEES])  c RZF
—tF+—A=-++tH BT mOFAH
BREFFEAZER  ARREREHFZE
K838 7K £728,400,0007 7T (A& AR
616,059,0007T) ' HERBEF RS L
93.38% ° B TAR-_E—AE+—A—++
BIREARSERE KA REBEESHEAZE
BUASERN28B LA R AEAEERG SIRE
FEHEAZEEBEUASHERNEZSZ A MR
B R F) B A S R R BB B 2 20 sk 50 o AT
BES BE-_T—NAF+_A=Z+—HILF
B ZABRRESFCREMAREED -
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37 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 3 December 2018, the Company issued another convertible bond
to Chance Talent Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
indirectly held by China Construction Bank Corporation. The principal
amount of the convertible bond is HK$100,000,000, and is issued at
a coupon rate of 2.85% addition to HIBOR (the “2018 Convertible
Bonds”). The convertible bonds will mature on 3 December 2020 and
redeemable at 10% premium on the face value or can be converted
into the Group’s shares at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$6 per
share. This convertible bonds is classified as current liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Non-current liabilities).

The liabilities component of convertible bonds recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position were as follows:

37 "HRRES )
R-ZE—N\E+-A=80 A2FATEZE
BRTRODERRAEAEREZZEMNBA
A]Chance Talent Management Limited27T
S—HEUBRKRES  IBRRESFETESER
100,000,000 7T * LM B X2.85% MEH
RITEEFEFREIT([ZT— N\FAIHRRE
5] - AT BRBRESFBR T -_TF+-A=H
B E AR EEEE10%EE - kA RIEE
FRAEAZEEUSRET LB AREER
B e RZT—NF+_A=1+—8 ' ZABLK
EHEPEARDEE(ZT—N\F : ERDHAE

&) -

RAMHBRARRR Y THRRES A ESH
mT

2019 2018

—B-hEF —E)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBETIT

2014 Convertible bond ZE-NFEA SR ES = 44,417
2018 Convertible bond —E - \FaskES 90,670 83,145
Less: Non-current portion W FEmENE D = (83,145)
Current portion ENE Y 90,670 44,417
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37 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 37 WHRRES )

2019 PAONES]
—E-hEF —ZE—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARKETTT

2014 Convertible bond —E-NFURRES
At 1 January n—A—8 44,417 41,387
Effective interest expense (note 11) HEEM SR (1) 3,070 3,173
Principal redeemed BEAE (43,280) -
Interest paid BRI (4,411) (2,176)
Currency translation differences BEREHEZR 204 2,033
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 - 44,417
2019 PAONES]
—E-hEF —ZE=—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETTT

2018 Convertible bond —E-N\FuURKRES
At 1 January n—A—8 83,145 -

Initial recognitions at 3 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+A=AZ

BIRHER - 83,367
Effective interest expense (note 11) HEEM SR (1) 9,513 699
Interest paid 2RFLE (2,750) -
Currency translation difference BEEEREZR 762 (921)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8~ 90,670 83,145
The carrying amounts of convertible bonds - liabilities component are AR ES - AERS ZRABELETHE

denominated in HK$.

SWREMBERAT 2019 Fif



Y 2:: W NN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 38

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax
jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows:

IESE RSB
ERGAARHNITRNABENRIAEEL
EHRAEAGEERE  MEEMSHS MFE—H
BEDERRE - I ERIEMSHEERB FR
i o ST ¢

2019 PAONES)
—g-nE  —FNF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Deferred income tax assets (to be recovered RIEFTISTE E

after more than 12 months) (BrBdE+ =@ A%IE) 46,969 31,292
Deferred income tax liabilities (to be settled BEEMEHAE

after more than 12 months) (BRBE+—EREEH) (236,517) (274,100)

(189,548) (242,808)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

IRIEFTS AR B B EFEWT

2019 2018
—E-NF ZT)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

At 1 January Hn—A—H (242,808) (248,879)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEHTE A ) - (40,540)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHEHRB AT 6,073 -
Charged to the other comprehensive income SAEMEERA (73) 3,875
Charged to the consolidated statement of STAEHRE SR

comprehensive income 47,025 43,316
Currency translation differences EEES =R 235 (580)
At 31 December Wt+—A=+—8 (189,548) (242,808)

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities amounting to
RMB153,232,000 (2018: RMB147,482,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted earnings are to be
used for reinvestment. The income tax liability is not recognised where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 38 EILEFREBH @)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRREHIEEERA MBS CRET RIKHER—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the B REERAAR)AT -

same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE

Tax losses Bad debt provision Total
BEEE BERE #st
2019 2018 2019 2019

Z2-AE T\ ZB-hE T-\F ZB-hFE —T)\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR AR%TE ARBTRT ARETT ARETR AR%T:E

At 1 January ®—R—H 10,519 8,128 20,773 14,703 31,292 22,831
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B AR

(note 24) (Ftzr24) - 929 - - - 929
Credited to the consolidated RApHZAlER

statement of comprehensive A

income 1,535 1,462 14,142 6,070 15,677 7,532
At 31 December R+-A=+—H 12,054 10,519 34,915 20,773 46,969 31,292
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38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

38 ELEMBH )

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Fair value gains Dividends Deferred expenses Total
AERE RE 31353 it
2019 2018 2019 2019 2019
ZE-nE ZEZ\E ZE-hf “E-hE £ ZE-NE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBT T ARBT T
At1 January #—A-R 263608 251819 - 4579 1042 15312 24000 271710
Acquisition of subsidiaries R B AR (H5E24)
(note 24) - 41,469 - - - - - 41,469
Deemed disposal subsidiaries RIELERBAR (6,073) - - - - - (6,073) -
Credited to the other comprehensive S AE {2 EMRA

income 73 (3,856) - - - - 73 (3,856)
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated A& PHE A MG R

statement of comprehensive income 1% / (3t 1) (23,919) (26,385) - (4,579) (7,429 (4,820) (31,348) (35,784)
Currency translation difference EBEHER (235) 561 - - - - (235) 561
At 31 December RTZA=t-H 233454 263,608 - - 3,063 10492 26517 274,100

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. The Group have unrecognised tax
losses amounting to RMB153,125,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB2,900,000), among which RMB83,953,000 and RMB69,172,000
will be expired within 5 years and 10 years, respectively (2018:
RMB2,900,000 will be expired within 5 years.

FE AT 7% I 25 1R K 0] B2 38 38 R 2R FE AR Bt v
BER  ARRCEMSHEAERREETE
BiE - RZT—NF+-A=+—8 &%
E 2 AERFIEEE R ARM153,1250007T
—ZT—N\F : AR¥2,900,0007T) @ HEA
R 83,953,0007T &2 A K #69,172,0007T #% 5
RIASFERI0OFRNEEB(ZT—/\F : AR
2,900,0007C i A5 R EIER) o

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



A O/ EEA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

39 INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 39 FEMFTER R HipESFE
PAYABLE

2019 PAONES
—2-nE  —2)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Income tax payable: FEBFRSHL -
Corporate income tax EEFTEH 45,535 51,929
Other taxes payable: At eI
Value added tax ER 4,536 (32,469)
Cultural and development tax XAk KB RE 566 4,640
Land appreciation tax + IR {ER 84,108 48,325
Other taxes HibHiE 1,278 5,386

90,488 25,882
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REXBELECRE

(a) FRBiAT(EIR) EFIRKERKE
4+ 2R FRER

(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to net
cash generated from operating activities

2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BATE A (E518), % F) (415,497) 332,435
Adjustments for: FEE
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEMRTR 2 BB R 33,904 13,521
Provision for impairment of loans and EWERRFE
interest receivable RERE 39,534 23,977
Provision for impairment of other receivables HAb EBGRIE R E R 20,118 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of EHRBEERRE
contract assets and finance lease receivables TE NGRS 2 RE
Bt/ () 4,073 (354)
Provision for impairment of investment properties % & ¥ 2 BB & 18,381 -
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE 662 -
Provision for impairment of completed properties 35 {EHER T ¥%
held for sales DERIEREL 21,641 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEH 100,705 79,532
Amortisation of land use rights b {sh A A 8 = 4,737
Amortisation of investment properties SE-RES it 21,859 18,258
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BEMEREZITE 95,265 49,290
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 45,823 -
Impairment loss on investment in associates REERRZIREZ
REEE 2,735 19,547
Share based compensation VAR R A 2 i 1E 80,685 74,580
Gain on deemed disposal of Zhongmo Group REHEPIEEE 2 (246,797) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEZ
equipment (note b) Uz (B 5Eb) (199) (298)
Gain on disposal of associates, net S ARz = FEE (1,140) -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEESSE - 31
Dividend income AR B A (1,215) (714)
Finance income 2up T ON (17,226) (12,044)
Finance expense s 177,169 94,424
Share of profit from investments DMEREREARZIRE
accounted for using equity method vl (13,588) (28,014)
Fair value gain on financial assets at BRATHESABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SRMEEQAFERE (25,765) (104,192)
Fair value gain on financial liabilities at BRATHEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SRAEATERE - (3,374)
Fair value gain on step acquisition DR IEEEMSG
ANFEWREE - (169,496)
Impairment over intangible assets BV EERE 9,054 -
Impairment over goodwill HERE 287,585 -
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & F B4 Z R T 237,766 391,846
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 40 REEXBEEZRES (@)

(a) BREiAI(ER) GFEEEREE
E2REFREER )

(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to net
cash generated from operating activities (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E=—\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & 4 & ShaT 48 L 237,766 391,846
Changes in working capital: HEEFF -
Changes in completed properties held of sales BIERERTIYMEES) 13,535 28,250
Changes in trade receivables and contract related BRI &
assets ERREEEY (71,456) (217,109)
Changes in deposits, prepayments and e BERIER
other receivables Hoth flE W R IE B (175,677) (109,471)
Changes in finance lease receivables JEW L& TR B (104,507) 66,285
Changes in loans and interest receivables ERE R F S & (123,494) 74,267
Changes in inventories FEEH 199,707 (177,525)
Changes in trade payables FETRR 126,854 61,380
Changes in accrued expenses and other payables  fEzt 8 3 K H fh e < 5008
b=ak3)) (59,591) (29,837)
Changes in deferred government grants IR TR AT #7 Bh & & (9,050) (19,827)
Changes in contract liabilities AHAEED 60,899 22,642
Changes in other tax payable EAtb R T IE & &) 10,850 (38,049)
Net cash generated from operations REEFEE RS 558 105,836 52,852
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 40 REEXBEEZRES (@)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWMHE - MERZEZFAERIE
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal EAHRSRERA  LEVE  BEX
of property, plant and equipment comprise: B PSRRI RS -
2019 2018
—E-NF —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETIT
Net book amount: BRTEDFHE -
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) Y% - B R (HEE18) 726 510
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEKZREZ
plant and equipment Wz 199 298
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME BMENSEY
plant and equipment FriS s 925 808
(c) Net debt reconciliation (o BEXRFHEHK
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in REFH RS FE 2 BERFRERESF
net debt for each of the year presented. BEE 2 DT ©

2019 2018
—B-hF =T N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents B RBSEED 331,893 471,672
Restricted bank deposits ZIR4R{TER 282,171 276,003
Liquid investment (i) MENRE () 85,979 112,005
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (2,304,401) (2,127,338)
Convertible bonds - liabilities portions R ES —BEED (90,670) (127,562)
Lease liabilities HESRE (91,995) N/AT3E
Net debts (EU R (1,787,023) (1,395,220)
Cash and liquid investments BE MREEE 700,043 859,680
Gross debt at fixed interest rates REFENEFE 2 G5 ESH (1,224,048) (1,382,348)
Gross debt at floating interest rates RZEFIRFTE 2 BB (1,263,018) (872,552)
Net debts (Ehdks (1,787,023) (1,395,220)
(i) Liquid investment comprise current investments that are traded in an (i) MR ERENERMSEEZ R
active market, being the Group’s financial assets held at fair value B AREERAFEFAEMEEK
through other comprehensive income, financial assets held at fair ABBZeRMEE  BATEFAERR
value through profit or loss, excluding contingent consideration in BAEYAREBE  TeEABNESE
relation to acquisition of Huijia Yuantian Limited and Zale Inc. TRBMR AT RZale Inc. 2 i ARIE -
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 40 REEXBEEZRES (@)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () ERZHEUE®

Net debt as at 1 January 2018

R-F-NE-F-HZ

Cashand
cash
equivalents

RER
ReSEN
RMB'000
AR®TR

Restricted
bank
deposits
ERAH
B/ITER
RMB'000
ARETT

Liquid
Investment

RBRE

RMB'000
AR®TR

Bank and
other
borrowing
HTR
Eftfeg
RMB'000
ARBT T

Convertible
bonds -
liabilities
portions
TRRES
-8E&HS
RMB'000
ARETT

Lease
liabilities

REAR
RMB'000
AR®TR

Total

Rt
RMB'000
AR®TR

EEFE 401,918 - 169921 (1497,130) @1,387)  NATER (966,678)
Net cash flows BRETE 72,11 279,405 (177,748)  (474,659) (73600)  N/A TEF (373,830)
Interest paid BRFE - - - 80,572 2176 NIATER 82,748
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - (163974) - NATER  (163974)
Exchange adjustment EX A% (3,018) (3,402) 3,931 2,500 (1112 NATEA (1,101)
Interest expenses FlERY - - - (82,349) (3872)  NIATEH (86,221)
Other non-cash movements EtFEREEE - - 115,901 7,702 (9767)  NIATER 113,836
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 W=F—)\E+-F
ST-HZEEFE 471672 276,003 112,005 (127338)  (127562) NATER  (1,395.220)
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 IRANEERT iR 2E8
F16%252 - - - - - (1633100 (163310)
471672 276,003 112,005 (2127338) (1275620 (163310)  (1,558,530)
Net cash flows FHanE (141,439) - (150000 (209,668) 43,280 73,963 (248,863)
Interest paid REE - - - 123,113 7,161 6,533 136,807
Deemed disposal of RIELETEEE
Zhongmo Group - - - 72,026 - 7119 79,145
Exchange adjustment R A% 1,659 6,168 1423 (6,747) (966) - 1537
Interest expenses 5 - - - (155,787) (12,583) (8,486) (176,856)
Other non-cash movements HFREEH - - (12,449 - - (7.814) (20,263)
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 W=F—HE+-F
ST-HZBEFE 331,803 282,171 85979  (2,304,401) (90,670) (91,995)  (1,787,023)
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41 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE 41 KEHEFRE
(i) As alessee (i) 1EAFRBEA

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets
for these leases, except for short-term and low-value lease, see
note 2.2 for further information. The Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of buildings are as follows:

BE-Z-NAF-A—BE REECHZ
SHERAERREE e EEE
BRI E-HHIEF2AEME22 - K
SEERETZ BRI RIECEHE
BN 2 &IERERWFIRBENT

2019 2018
—F-hF =TN\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Within one year —FR - 53,012
In the second to fifth year inclusive FERF(REEERTE) = 132,051
Over the fifth year AEFAE = -
- 185,063
(ii) As a lessor (i) EAHBEA

At 31 December 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of buildings which expire as follows:

R-Z—HE+-A=+—8  K&EEH®
EF7 BRI s A E BERK
ZERIRFERIBERENT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBETTT

Within one year —F R 22,171 252,198

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERF(REEEMT) 142,843 10,639

Over the fifth year HEMNE 348,000 24,127

513,014 286,964

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42 HZAREE
As at 31 December 2019, there were no material contingent liabilities to RZB-NFE+A=+—H0 FAEEHES
the Group (2018: Nil). AFARBE(ZZT—N\F - &) -
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43 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the
Group's property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations of
such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within an average period of two to three years
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the mortgages. As at 31 December 2019, the amount of outstanding
guarantees for mortgages were approximately RMB16,828,000 (2018:
RMB51,041,000).

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in payments by
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantees measured
at fair value is immaterial.

MBER

REBREWMESBN 2 ETERTHRITR
& WIRHEERIMEAZSEREHREEZHE
o ZERRRUATREEFARLLL - ()R
TERERECREL —RENTHME =458
BNE 2 FER  Ji)MEEREMNZBER

o

m#%%%ﬁ WMZEERMBRIZIBER + A

EEBBEERER ZRBERA G ERE
ﬂ%&@mﬁ%mkﬁ TZEH  MAEER
BEEREEHEBMEZLAEER - AEEZ
EREAEDIZBERE R - RZT—h
F+ZA=+—0  EBERZAEEER:
A A ARE16,828,000L(—F—\F : AR
#51,041,0007T) °

EERREFHRNRZATRERE - BEA
FEFEZHBERLTEK -
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44 XA TMBEMRRIRRFEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EATHEKEMRE

2019 2018
—®-nE  ZF)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Assets BE

Non-current assets RBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 1,516,505 1,742,422

1,516,505 1,742,422

Current assets REBEE

Loan to a subsidiary BT KB AE 1,128,835 1,250,228

Other receivables H b e GRIA 28,413 16,401

Restricted bank deposit ZIRFIRITFR 147,804 144,573

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 6,225 -

Total assets BEE 2,827,782 3,153,624

Equity Em

Capital and reserves ERREHE

Share capital &N 103,638 103,625

Other reserves HAih 2,779,220 2,717,986

Accumulated losses RiT 518 (487,320) (113,366)

Total equity R 2,395,538 2,708,245

Liabilities afE

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Convertible bond - liabilities component BRESE — B &Y - 83,145

Other borrowings HiEE - 306,670
- 389,815

Current liabilities RBAR

Convertible bond - liabilities component RESE — B &Y 90,670 44,417

Other borrowings HitigE 322,570 -

Accrued expenses and other payables FEEHE R N H b fE st I8 19,004 11,147

Total liabilities Hwafs 432,244 445,379

Total equity and liabilities HEZNEE 2,827,782 3,153,624
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44 AR BB BERRRRBZEEH
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ()

(Continued)

(b) RABZHELH

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

Accumulated Other
losses reserves
8 ¥ HoAth 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARKETFTT
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-N\E—A—H (39,462) 2,462,198
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year REEEE (73,790) -
Other comprehensive income Hib2HEKA
Currency translation differences EEER =R - 9,929
Transactions with owners BEEAETZRS
Issuance of shares upon conversion of AR E AR BT
convertible bonds - 12,359
Issuance of shares in related to business combination FLEMA FEEITRD - 163,620
Buy-back shares AR (114) (4,877)
Share based compensation AR 2 A5 2 Fh B - 74,580
Exercise of share options TR EEAE - 177
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-EB-NE+=-A=+—H
FE=ZE-h&F—HA—H (113,366) 2,717,986
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year RFEBE (377,221) =
Other comprehensive income Hib2EKRA
Currency translation differences EREREZR - 7,215
Transactions with owners BEERBEAETZRS
Buy-back shares EaEl ) (97) (2,840)
Share based compensation AR 5 2 # (8 = 80,685
Share purchase under shared award scheme Rt B2EDET 8l TR EE B - (21,247)
Exercise of share options 1T RERR T = 785
Redemption of convertible bonds-equity portion B O TR ES — REE S 3,364 (3,364)
At 31 December 2019 R-sB—h&E+=-B=+—H (487,320) 2,779,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=-T—NF+-A=1+—HILFE

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 BEBALRE

(a) Key management compensation (a) FAREEASHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FANEERHEMFEERENKE 2 FHan
management during the year were as follows: g

2019 PAONES)
—g-nE  —FNF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits  #r& & E b 52 B (g EEF 8,751 5,164
Share-based payments LARRAD BERE Z IR 51,134 49,948
59,885 55,112

(b) Related party transaction (b) BEEALRZ

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, transactions were carried out with related parties in

BE G mAR M A D PAIREE SN - A
SEEBBATETZRIZNATEERB

normal course of Group's business. BHRR -

2019 AONE:]

—EF-hF —TN\F

Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000

REME AR¥T T ARBETTT

Associates (note i) Interest expenses 38,768 39,043
/NS ) MEFRXZ

Key management personnel Interest income = 1,563
HRERAE FLEMA

Associates (note ii) Interest income 4,994 1,802
Bt N &) (3D FLBUA

Joint venture (note iii) Revenue 1,132 -
&2 (i) SHEWRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Related party transaction (Continued)
The Group has granted loan receivables to certain associates, a
joint venture and certain key management personnel of the Group
and subsidiaries. The loans are charged at terms mutually agreed
by the parties concerned or in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements, where appropriate.

Note (i):

(ii):

(iii):

Bank borrowings of RMB563,000,000 were provided by Inner
Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Company
Limited. The borrowings are charged at terms mutually agreed
by the parties concerned or in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements, where appropriate.

The Group has granted loan receivables and finance lease
receivables to certain associates, a joint venture and certain
key management personnel of the Group and subsidiaries.
The loans and finance lease receivables are charged at terms
mutually agreed by the parties concerned or in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements, where appropriate.

The Group provided technical service fee to a joint venture.
The transaction was conducted at negotiated prices between
transacting parties.

(c) Related party balance
Saved as disclosed in note 20 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has following balances with related parties as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Bank borrowing and interest payable from:
An associate (note i)

Loan and interest receivable from:

FATALEE
— B 2 A (P EED

45 BEBALTRE @

(b)

(9)

FEYPIA T AL ER RS -

Associates and a joint venture (note ii) BE AR R—HeERE
(B =EiD)

Key management personnel (note iii) R E TR A B (MEii)

Deposit received from: EWATATIZS

Associates (note iv) Bt s X &) (P v )

Key management personnel (note iv)

Cash and cash equivalents from:
An associate (note v)

s ER A B (Mativ)

KEATATRESED
—FREE 2w (M)

BEMALXRS(#)
AEFECRETHEAR AEEEUAR
AEERMEARZETHRERARR
HEWEN - ZEEFIRBHE T LR
TEZ R ER IR B el 2 R (B )
WHRE R -

AREEFEFEA RN B ER
TRHABRARREEEITEREA
R #563,000,0007C ° ZE &%
GRS A ERBE 2 GERIIRIE
AR 2GR (WiE R ) Y 2
}Eﬁ o

BIRE () :

(i): AKEEAETHZERR  —H
BEMEURANEERKTERF
ZETHREEABRHEKRE
REERREREHNE - Z5H
REEERERERAREES
77 KRB E 2 R AR B B
2GR (HER ) & -

AEE R — A% hERERM
REER - ZRXHGMRHETTIR
KW e (BARHETT ©

RAEE A LiEER

BRE Ot SRR M 20 R 36T EH
I RZE—NEFR T N\F+=A
=t+—8  AEEHREBHA L E5D 5
R e

(iii) =

2018
—TN\E
RMB'000
ARBTT

2019
—E-NF

RMB’000
ARBT R

564,250 581,050
75,275 59,708
- 8,403

607 -
2,440 -
496 942
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Related party balance (Continued)

Finance lease receivables from
Associates (note vi)

Trade receivables from
A joint venture (note vii)

JEWiBg = X ]
A (Fiftv

5'55 *ﬁaﬁ/ﬁ\%

45 AL B @)

(c) PBAREATAERR(E)

ZREME
D)

©EZ

JEUR BR SR (P 5Evii)

RMB’000
ARBT R

2019
—E-NF

2018

RMB’000
ARBTT

Note (i):

(ii):

The balance represents bank borrowings from Inner Mongolia
Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited, an
associate of the Group. Part of the borrowings amounting
to RMB228,000,000 (2018: Nil) will mature on 20 October
2020, and is interest bearing at a rate of 7.1% per annum.
Part of the borrowings amounting to RMB335,000,000
(2018:RMB340,000,000) will mature on 15 October
2021, and is interest bearing at a rate of 7.4%per annum
(2018:7.4%per annum). Part of the borrowings amounting to
nil (2018:RMB340,000,000) will mature on 25 October 2019,
and is interest bearing at a rate of 6.2% per annum. These
borrowings are guaranteed by another associate of the Group.

The Group granted loans amounting to RMB20,800,000,
RMB20,800,000 and RMB5,940,000 to Z{&i=i B R AR
("Hui De") during the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016 respectively. The loans will mature during the years
ending 31 December 2022, 2020 and 2022 respectively, and
are interest bearing at a rate of 7%, 7% and 6% per annum.

The Group granted loans amounting RMB10,500,000 to
Zhongmo Group which become an associate of the Group since
26 December 2019. The loan receivables will mature on 2020
and are interest bearing at rate of 10% per annum.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

B () :

(ii) :

182,600 -
1,200 -
ZAEHREREAKEZ —HEE

ARAARHEFAEEEARNE
XRTBRMDBERARZRITE
B o o EE AR 228,000,000
T(ZE—NF T)BR=F
—EFE+AZTHEE S
FMETI%E - BHEEA
E ¥ 335,000,000 7 ( = & — )\
F AR # 340,000,000 7T ) #&
R-ZZE=—F+A+HBEH
WIEFRET 4% (ZT—N\F :
FREIA%)TE - BHBEEA
REZT(ZE—NF: AR
340,000,0007T ) # N =T — AL 4F
TAZ+HEBEE  WIEFHME
6.2%:TE - ZEEERALEE
S—MEHE N EER -

RAR(TERE]) 25
A B # 20,800,000 T © AR
20,800,0007T K A £ # 5,940,000
T ZEEFBARREE=ST
B EFEN_FT -
F+ZA=+—BLEFERH -
DRRFEFETI% « 7% K% 6% 5t
B o

AERRFEEE(EZZ—AN
F+-_A-+ X NBERBLE
BrEERR) BEERARE
10,500,0007C ° fEWE F &N =
TTFIEH - WERFFNEI10%
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HILtFE

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Related party balance (Continued)
Note (Continued)

(iii):

(iv):

As at 31 December 2018, the Group granted loans amounting
to RMB3,935,000 to one management personnel of Beijing
Panpass Information Technology Co., Ltd (“Panpass”), a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 8 October 2014, for their
sole purpose of purchase of shares of Panpass at market price
and the shares purchased are pledged to secure the loans. The
loans were interest bearing at a rate of 5% per annum. These
management personnel hold 2.92% (2018: 2.92%) issued
share capital of Panpass as of 31 December 2019. The loans
was fully repaid during 31 December 2019.

The balance includes deposits received by a financing services
company of the Group from certain associates and key
management personnel of the Company as guarantee for
the loan granted to their customers. The deposit would be
refunded upon the repayment of the loans which will mature
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The balance represents current deposits placed in Inner
Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Company
Limited, an associate of the Group.

The balance represents finance lease receivables of RMB
139,600,000 (2018: Nil) from Zhongmo Group, which become
an associate of the Group since 26 December 2019. The finance
lease receivable will mature on 2021 and are interest bearing
at rate of 10% per annum. Another finance lease receivable of
RMB43,000,000 (2018:nil) to an associate #1T Z G EHRE A
7] ("Zhejiang Huicong”) will mature on 2022 and are interest
bearing at rate of 8% per annum.

(vii): The balance represents trade receivables of RMB 1,200,000 (2018:

Nil) from a joint venture. The Group provided technical service
to the joint venture during the year.

45 A LR B @)

() BAERATAERR(E)

s (%)

(iii)

(iv)

(v) :

(vi) :

(vii) :

RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
AEE [ RIEE SRR G
ARAR([KE]  REBRZ
T-mIE+ANBKREZHBR
A —BEBABEBEERAR
#£3,935,0007T * B K EAEMN
MEBEKEZRG - MATER
DEREBEZERF - ERIRE
MES%E -BEZZT—NF
+ZA=Z+—8 ZSEEEMK
B AKE292%(ZE—NF:
2.92%) BEITRA - ZERER
—ET-NAF+-A=Z+—BHH

BREE -

HAEHBREASE—HE B RE
REMAEEE FHEAR L —
HHRREBABKRM LS - 1F
RETEREPZERER - A
BER(BRBE_Z_ZTF+-
RA=+—RLEFEIR  Z&
SHTRE -

KEBR IR 7 U AN 52 B A — ] B
REARETFIERF A BN
BERTROABRARDNZABF

E
A °

3

ZERERKTEEE(B=
—NF+—A=-+NBERAX
SEEHEAR) ZERERE
AR #139,600,0007C ( —F — )\
F:T)  EHBMEREFER
R —FEH - WRFF X
10%H8 » B—HEE KR — &
RAIERIEEGR AR ([
IEHE ) 2 ETEEREKRIEA
R #43,000,0007T (=& — /)\4F -
YR T Z_FEIH - WIEF
FIE8%:T S -

ZERERER A E R ERR
AE#1,200,0007T( = —/\F ¢
) - AEERFRNRE ERER
HEATARRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-—T—NF+_A=+—HILFE

46 EVENT AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

There is an outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19") in early 2020
throughout the world. The Group expects the economy in the PRC to be
negatively impacted and this may potentially affect the Group’s business
and financial performance in 2020. The Group will pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the date
of this report, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects
on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.
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RZZZZFY - 2REMEEFLERRS
R (TCOVID-19]) ° AREFETEHRH B EE T
2 &ﬁ?%ﬁ$%lﬁ_;_7¢2¥
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